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K G DENIM LIMITED

NOTICE OF 33" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is heraby given that the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Members of K G Denim Limited will be heid at 4:30 PM
Indian Standard Time (15T} on Tuesday, 9" September 2025 at the Registered Office of the Company at Then Thirumalai,
Coimbatore = 841302, totransact the following business{es):-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Torecelve, consider and adopt the Standalone and Conscolidated Audited Financlal Statements including Balance Shest
as on 31st March, 2025 the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Staterment of Cash Flow for the year ended on that date together with the Report of Board of
Directors and the Auditors’ thereon.

2. Toappoint a Directorin place of Shri. Balakrshnan Sriramulu {DIN: 00002560), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointmant.

3. Toappointa Directorin place of Shri. Ramaswamy Selvakumar (DIN: 00051608), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himsell for re-appointment,

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.To approve the appointment of MDS & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for
the first term of five (5) conssoutive financial years,

Toconsiderand, if thought fit, 1o pass. the fallowing resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicabie provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act’) read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory amendments or modification|s}or re-enactment(s ) thereof, for the time being inforce) and Regulation
244 of the Securlies and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(*SEBI Listing Regulations") as amended from time to time, read with relevant circulars and based on the recommendation of
the Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for the appointmeant of MDS &
Associates LLP (LLPIN: ABZ - B0B0), Company Secretaries, Coimbatore, who are holding a valid Peer Review Certificate
issued by the Institute of Company Secretanes of india (IC31), as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (five)
consecutive yaars commencing from the financial year 2025-26 o conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company on the
remunaration and such terms & conditions as detailed in the statement annexead ta this natice pursuant to Section 102 of the
Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Direclors be and Is hereby authorized 1o do all such acls, deeds, things and
matters, to sign all such documents and writings and to take all such steps as may be necessary to give effect to this resofution
and for matters connacted therewith or incidental therato,

5. Toapprove the offer, issue and allotment of warrants fully converfible into equity shares to the Promoter of the Company on
preferential basis.

Toconslder and, if thought fit, 1o pass, the following resolution as a Speclal Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the provisions of Sections 23(1 )b}, 42, 62(1 )} c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Actl’), the Companies {Prospéctus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, and other applicable Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
madificatian(s) or re-enactmeant{s) thereof, for the Ume being in foree) and in acocordance with Chapter V of Sscurities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations 2018, as amended ("SEBI ICDR
Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremeants) Regulations,
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2015 as amended ("Listing Regulations™), the listing agreements entered inta by the Company with BSE Limited ("BSE ) and
subject to any other rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars and notifications etc. Issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
the Securties and Exchange Beard of India (SEBI) and / or any other statutory or regulatory or competent authornities, from
time totime to the extert applicable and in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Azsociation of the Company and subject to such approval(s), consent{s), permission{s] and/or sanction(s ), if any, of any
Statutery { Regulalory Authorities, including but not limited lo SEBI, BSE and any other instilutions or bodies, as may be
required and subject to such terms and condition{s), alteration(s), correction(s), change(s) and/or modification{s) as may be
prescribed by any of them while granting such censent(s). permissionis) orapproval(s), and which may be agreed o by the
Board of Directors of the Company, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors to create, offer, issue and allot 13.47,000 (Thirtesn Lakhs and Forty Seven Thousand only) warrants, in one or
maore tranches, each fully converlible into, or exchangeable for. 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of the face value of Rs. 10/-
each {“Warrants™) at a price of Rs. 17/- per warrant as detarmined in accordance with Chaptar V' of SEBI ICDR Regulations
on the ‘Relevant Date' ("Warranis Issue Price') for cash consideration on a preferential basis, for an aggregate amount not
exceading Rs. 2,28,99, 000/- {Rupaes Two Crores Twenty-Eight Lakhs and Ninety-Mine Thousand Only) to Mr. B Sriramulu,
the Promoter of the Company as identified by the Board (hereinafter referred to as the "Proposed Allotiee” or “Warrant
halder”), in accordance with the terms of the Warrants as set out herein and on such other terms and conditions as the Board
may determine, subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the provisions of Chapter V' of SEBI ICDR Regulations
and lhe Act and [o allol equity shares upon the conversion of the Warranls in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations
and the Act arany other applicable law for the time being in force,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of Chapter V of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the “Relevant
Date" for the purpose of determination of the floor price for the offer, issue and allotment of Warrants shall be 8" August 2025,
being the date 30 (thirty) days prior to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company {since the Relevant Date falls
onaweekand, the day preceding the weekend has been reckoned as the Relevant Date)

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice to the generality of the above resolution, the issue of the Warrants to the
proposed allottes and the allotment of equity shares upon the conversion or exercise of Warrants, shall be subject to the
foliowing terms and conditions apart fram those datailed under applicable [aws:

a) The proposed allottee shall, subject to the Act, SEBI ICOR Regulations and other applicable rules and regulations, be
entitled to apply for and be allotted 1 (one) equity share against the conversion orexercise of each Warrant.

b) The minimum subscription amount equivalent o 25% (twenty five percent) of the Warrants |ssue Price shall be paid by the
Proposad Allofles at the time of subscription of each Warranl. The proposed allolizes shall make further payment of an
amount equivalent to 75% (seventy five percent) of the Warrants Issue Price at the time of exercize of the right attached to
the Warrant(s), to converl or exercise the Warrant{s) and subsaribe lo Equily Shares of the Company ("Warrant Exercise
Amount”).

€ The price detarmined above, and the number of Equity Shares to be allotted on exercise of the Warrants shall be subject
to appropriate adjustments as permitted under the rules, regulations and laws, as applicable from time to ime.

d) The Warrants shall be allotted in dematerialized form within a period of 15 (tifteen) days from the date of passing of the
special resolution by the shareholders of the Company for their Issuance, provided that where the allotment of Warrants is
subject to receipt of any aspproval or permission from any regulatory authorily, the allotment shall be completed within a
period of 15 {fiftean) days from the date of receipt of lastof such approval or permission, as the case may be;

&) The Warrants shall not carry any voting rights until they are converted into Equity Sharas and the Warrants by itself, until
axercised and converted inta equity shares, shall nol give the Warrant holders any rights with respect 1o that of an Equity
Shareholder of the Company.
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i The right attached (o the Warranis may be exercised by the Warrant holder, in one or more tranches, at any time during
the pericd not exceeding 18 (eighteen) months commencing from the date of allotment of the Warrants, by issuing a
written notice not later than 15 (fifteen) days prior to the Warrant Exercise Pariod {"Conversion Matice”™) to the Company
specifying the humber of Warrants proposed lo be converted or exercised. The Company shall accordingly, without any
further approval from the members of the Company, allot the corresponding number of Equity Shares having face valua of
Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten anly) each In dematerlallzed form, as menticnsd in the Conversion Notics, subject 1o recelpt of the
relevant Warrant Exercise Amount from the Warrant holder through normal banking channels in the designated bank
accountol the Coempany.

g) The tenure of the Warrants shall not excesed 18 {eighteen) months frem the date of allotment of the Warrants. If the
entitlement agalnst the Warrants to apply for the Equity Shares of the Company is nol exercised by the Warrant holder
within the aforesaid period of 18 (eighteen) menths, the entitlement of the Warrant Holder to apply for Equity Shares of the
Company along with the rights attached thereto shall expire and any amount pald by the Warrant holder an such Warrants
shall stand forfeited by the Company.

h) The Warrants allotted in ferms of this resolution and the resultant Equity Shares arising on exercise of ights attached to
such Warranis shall be subject to lock-in as specified in the provisions of Chapter V' of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as
amended from time to time.

i1 The Warrants so allotled under this reselution and the resultant equity shares arising on the exarcise of rights altached
to such Warrants shall not be sold, transferred, hypothecated or encumbered in any manner during the period of lock-in, as
specified in the provisions of Chapler V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended rom lime lo time

i} Tha pre-preferential allotment shareholding of the Proposed Allottes, if any, in the Company shall be subject to lock-in
as specified in the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

k} The equily shares to be allotted on exercise of the Warranis shall be in demalerialized form and shall be subject (o the
provisions of the Memorandum of Asscciation and Articles of Asscciation of the Company and shall rank pari passu with
the then existing Equity Shares of the Company In all respacts including the payment of dividend and vating rights.

I} The Equity Shares allofted upon conversion of tha Warrants shall be listed on the Stock Exchanga where the existing
Equity Shares of the Company are listed, subject 1o the receipt of necessary permissions or approvals, as the case may
be.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company 15 authonsed to file all the necessary applications, papers and documents
with the Mational Securities Depository Limited, Central Depository Services (India) Limited, BSE Limited or any ather
authorities in order to give proper effect to the above resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT fur the purpose of giving effect to this resclution, the Board of Directors be and is hersby
authorized, for and on behalf of the Company, tolssue and circulate the private placement offer cum application letter(s)in
the prescribed Form PAS-4 to the above proposed allottes, as identified by the Board, for subscription on private
placemant basis with a stipulation that the allotment would be made only upon receipt of in-principle approval from the
Stock Exchange, receipt of consideration as aforesald and within the timelines prescribed under the applicable faws and
lo maintain the reguisite record of the privale placement offer in the prezcribed Form PAS-5 with the details of the
proposed allottes,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board ba and is hereby authorized to accept any modification(s) in the terms of issue of
Warrants, subject to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, withoul being required to seek any furthear
consent or approval of the Members.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposa of giving effect to this resclution, the Board (which term shall be deemed o
mean and include one or more committee(s) constituled by the Board to exerclse its powers including the powers conferred
by this resolution) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem necessary,
desirable or expedient as may be necessary lo give effect to the aforesaid resolution, including withaut imitation, issuing
clarifications, resoclving all gquestions of doubt, effecting any modifications or changes to the foregoing (including
modification(s) to the terms of the issue), entering into contracts, arangemeants, agreemeants, documents (including for
appointment of agencies, intermediaries and advisors for the said issue) and to authorize any such persons as may be
necessary, in copnection therewith and incidental thereto as the Beard in its absolute discretion may deem appropriate,
without being required to seek any fresh approval of the Members and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubits that may
arise in regard to the offer, issue and allotment of the Warrants and/or Equity Shares and listing thereof with the Stock
Exchanges as appropriate and ulllisation of proceeds of the issue, lake all other steps which may be incidental,
consequantial, relevant or ancillary in this connection and to effect any meodification to the foregoing and the decision of the
Board shall be final and conclusive.

6. To approve the offer, lssue and allot 6% Non-converible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares through private
placement.

Tocongiderand, ifthought fit, to pass, the following resolution as 5 Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant lo the provisions of Seclions 23(1)(b), 42, 55, 82{1)(c) and other applicable provisions, fany, of
tha Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thareof, for the time being in force) and subject to any other rules, regulations; guidelines, circulars and
notifications ete, issuad by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and / or any other stalutory or regulatoery or competent aulthorities,
from time o time lo the extant applicable and in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Assaciation of the Company and subject to such approval{s), consent(s), permission{s) and/or sanction(s), ifany,
of any Statutory ( Regulatory Authorities as may be required and subject to such terms and condition(s), alteration(s),
comection(s), change{s) and/or modification{s) as may be prescribed by any of them while granting such consentis),
permission(s) or approval(s), and which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company, the consent of the
mambears of the Company be and Is hareby accorded o the Board of Directors to create, offer, issue and allot, in one or more
lranches, up to 10.00,000 {Ten Lakhs anly} 6% Non-convertible Cumulative Redeemabie Preference Shares of face value of
Rs, 100/- each (*"NCRPE") at a par, aggregating to an amount not exceeding Rs.10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores only), for
cash consideration ona private placemeant basis, to the following persons belonging to the Promoter { Promoter Group of the
Comparny, as identified by the Board of Direclors (hereinafler referred to as "Proposed Allottees”), in accordance with the
terms of the NCRPS as set oul herein and aon such other terms and conditions as the Board may determine, subject to Act or
any other applicable law for the time being in force.

B Mame of the  Proposed Category Mumber of MCRPS Amount of
Na, | Allottess proposed to be offered | gonsideration
and issued (Amt in Rs.)
i) Mr. K.5. Balakrishnan Fromaoter 500,000 5,00,00,000
2 Mir. B Sriramulu Fromater & 00,000 5, 00,00,000
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 55 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Campanies Act, 2013 and Rule 9(2) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the NCRPS shall
be iszued and allotted upon the following terms and conditions and subject to the folfowing rights apart from those detailed
under applicable laws:

a) NCRPS shall carry a preferential right vis-8-vis equity shares of the Company with respect to the payment of dividend , if
any, declared by the Board and repayment of capital on winding up.

b} NCRPS shall not be eligible to parficipate in surplus funds of the Company.

c) NCRPS shall not be eligible to participate in surplus assets and profits, on winding up which may remain after the antire
capital has been repaid.

d) NCRPS shall be entitled to a fixed dividend of 6% per annum on the face value of the share.
&) Dividend payable onthe NCRPS shall be cumulative in nature,
fi WNCRPS shallnot be convertible into equity shares.

g} The voling rights of the persons holding the MCRPS shall be in accordance with the provisions of Seclion 47 of the
CompantesAct, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),

h) MCRPS shall be redeamable al par at the optlon of the Board of Directors of the Company, in three equal instalments in
the 6", 7" and 8" years from the date of allotment In accordancs with the provisions lald down in Section 55 of the Act.

Il MCRPS will not be listed on any stock exchanges.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the prior approval of shareholders; the Company shall have the right to vary the
tarms of issue of the NCRPS in compliance with the provisions of the Act,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolufion, the Board of Directors be and is hereby
authorized, for and on behalf of the Company, to issue and circulate the private placement offer cum application letter{s) in
the prescribed Form PAS-4 fo the above proposed alloftess, as identified by the Board, for subscription on a private
placement basis. with a stipulation that the allotment would be made only upon receipt of the consideration as aforesaid
and within the timelines prascribad under the applicable laws, and (o maintain the requisite record of the privale placement
offerin the prescribed Form PAS-5 with the details of the Proposed Allottees.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resalution, the Board {which tarm shall be deemed to
mean and include one or more committesis) constituted by the Board fo exercise its powers including the powers
conferred by this resclution) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem
necessary, desirable or expedient as may be necessary lo give effect to the aforesaid resolution, including without
limitation, issuing clanfications, resolving all guestions of doubt, effecting any modifications or changes to the foregoing
(including modification(s) to the terms of the issus), entering into confracts, arrangements, agreamants, documants
(including for appointment of agencies, intermediaries and advisors for the said issue) and to autharize any such persons
as may be necessary, in connection therewith and incidental therete as the Board in its absaolute discretion may deem
appropriate, without baing required to seek any fresh approval of the Members and to settle all guestions, difficulties or
doubts that may arise in regard lo the offer, issue and allotment of the NCRPS as appropriate and utilisation of proceeds of
the Issue, take all other steps which may be incidental. consequential, relevant or anclllary In this connection and to effect
any modification o the foregoing and the decision of the Board shall ba final and conclusive.

b
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STATEMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND REGULATION 36 (3) OF THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA [ LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015:

ITEMNO.4

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 244 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Dizclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requireaments) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 notlfied on December 12, 2024 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations”), and the provisions of Section 204 of the Companias Act, 2013 and Rule 2 of the Companies { Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personneal) Rules, 2014, every listed Company, based on the recommendafion of the Board of
Directors, shall appoint a Secratarial Auditor who shall be a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary in Practice for a term of 5
ifive) consecutive years with the approval of its members at the Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the Board of Directors
at their meeting held on 117 August. 2025 has recommiended the appointment of MDS & Associates LLP (LLPIN: ABZ - B0B0),
Company Secrataries, Coimbatore, who ara holding a valid Peer Review Carlificate issuad by the Institute of Company
Becretarles of Indla (IC8I). as Secretarial Auditors of the Company 1o conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company fora term
of 5 (five) consecutive financial years commencing from the financial year 2025-26 on the following terms and conditions,
sublect to the approval of the members al the ensuing 33" Annual General Meealing:

a) Term of appoinimeant: 5 (five) consaoutive financial years commeancing from the financial year 2025-26 till the financial yaar
2029-30 to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company.

b) Proposed Remuneration: Rs.2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Only) plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, if any,
in connection with the secretarial audit for financial year ending March 31, 2026 and for subsequent year(s) of their term, such
fee as may be approved by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Secretarial Auditors. The other terms of appointment
of the Secretarial Auditors will be specified by the Board. Besidas the above, the Company would obtain cerfification as may
be required under various statutory regulations from time to time and such other services, which are not restricted, with
necessary approval of the Board and the same will be remunerated separately on mutually agreed terms.

¢} Basis of recommendation: The Board of Directors has considered the credentials of the appointee Secretanial Auditors, as
aiven below and recommended their appointmeant, as sat oul in llem No4 of this notice, based an the fulfilmeant of the aligiklity
criteria and gualifications prescribed under the Act & Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations with regard to the
exparience of the firm, capability, Independent assesament and audit experience,

d) Profile: MDS & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries, a Limited Liability Partnership, is a Practicing Company Secratanas’
firm based in Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu. The firm houses a team of qualified and seasoned professionals whe bring together
maore than 36 years of rich experience and expertise knowladga in the field of Corporate, Securities and allied laws, The Firmis
specialized in Secrelanal Audits, Board Process Audits, Corporale Governance Audits, Corporate Actions [ Transactions
based Due Diligence Audits and mergers and acquisitions. The firm consists of 3 partners who are fellow members of The
Institute of Company Secralanes of India (IG5}, Sri. M. D, Selvaral, FCS, 15 the Manaaging Partner. The firm holds a valid Peer
Review Cerificate issued by ICS| and meats the criteria of appointment as prescribed undear Regulation 24A of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

) MDS & Associates LLP have given their consent fo act as Secretarial Auditors of the Company and confirmed that their
aforesald appointment (if made) would be within the limits prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of Indla or under
the Act & Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations. They have also confirmed that they are not disgualified from
being appointed as Secretarial Auditors in lerms of provisions of the Act & Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing
Regulations,
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Accordingly, the Board of Directors heraby recommend the Ordinary Resolution set out in ltem No. 4 of the Notice for the
approval of the members,

Mone of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnal of the Company and their relatives is concemed orinterested. financially
orotherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 4 of the Notice.

ITEMNO.5

The Company proposes to raise addifional funds for repayment of loans and for general corporate purposes. Considering
raising of funds through preferential issue to be most cost and time effective way for raising additional capital, the Board of
Diractors of the Company {"Board"), at their meeating held on 117 August 2025, has granted their approval for raising of funds
by way of offer, issue and allotment of up to 13,47.,000 (Thirteen Lakhs and Forty-Seven Thouszand only) Warrants, each
convertible into, or exchangeable for, 1 {one) fully paid-up equity share of the Company of face valus of Rs.10/- each
("Warranls”) al a price of Rs. 17/- per warrant (“Warrants |ssue Price”) for cash consideration, which may be exercised in one
or mare tranches during the period notl exceeding 18 (sighteen) manths commencing from the date of allotment of the
Warrants, to Mr, B Sriramulu Promoter of the Company (referred lo as the "Proposed Allottee”), by way of a preferential issue
thraugh private placemsant offer. on the terms and conditions as set out in Bem No. 5 of this Notice, subjsct to the approval of
the members by means of a special resolution and such other authorities as may be requirad in this connection,

The Proposed Allolles has also confirmed his aligibility in tarms of Regulation 159 of Sscurities and Exchange Board of India
(lssus of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (the “SEBI ICDR Regulations”), lo subscribe lo the
Warrants lo be issued pursuant to the preferential issue, Further, the Company is also gligible 1o make the preferential
allotment in terms of the provisions of Chapter V' of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

In accordance with Sectlons 23(1)(b), 42 and B2(1)(c) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act™) and
the Companies (Prospectus and Alletment of Securities) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014 and other applicable rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the
tima being in force) and in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Sacurities and Exchanga Board of India
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), as amanded from time to tima
approval of sharehaolders of the Company by way of special resolution is required to issue securities by way of private
placement on a preferential basis.

The offer, issue and allotment of Warrants including resultant equity shares arising aut of exercise of the rights attached to
Warrants shall be subject to the following terms and conditions, apart from such ether terms and conditions as specified under
the Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations:

« Pursuantto Regulation 180( c ) of SEBI ICOR Regulations, the allotment of the Warrants {including the Equity Shares o be
gllotted upon conversion of such Warranis) shall be made only In dematerialised form,

« Inaccordance with the provisions of Regulation 161 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the 'Relevant Date' for the Preferential
Issueis Friday, 8" August 2025, being the date 30 (thirty) days prior to the date of this Annual Genersl Meeting of the Company
(since the Relsvant Date falls on aweekend, the day preceding the weekend has been reckoned as the Relevant Date ).

s The Warrants proposad to be offered. issued and allotled shall be made at a price of Rs. 17/ per warrant determined in
accordance with the pricing formula prescribed under Regulation 164 of SEBI ICDR Regulstions on the ‘Relevant Date'
("Warrants lssue Price”)

« Inaccordance with the SEB| ICDR Regulations, an amount eguivalent o 254% (Twenly-five per cent) of the Warrant Issue
Prize shall be pald by the Warrant holders to the Company at the time of subscription of such Warrants and the balance
consideration of an amaount equivalent to 75% of the Warran! Issue Price shall be pald by the Warrant holders at the time of
exercise of the rights attached to the Warrants, to convert or exercise the Warrants and subscribe to Equity Shares of the
Company ("Warrant Exerciss Amount™).
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« The tenure of the Warrants shall not exceed eighteen months from the date of their allatment. If the entitlement against the
Warrants to apply for the Equity Shares of the Company is not exercised by the Warrant holders within the aforesaid paeniod of
18 (eightean) months, the antitlermant of the Warrant Holders to apply for Equity Shares of the Company along with the rights
attached thereto shall expire and any amount paid by the Warranl Holders on such Warrants shall stand forfeited;.

« The inilial consideration for subscriplion and allotment of Warrants and the balance consideration for exercise of the rights
attached to the Warrants shall be paid by the Proposed Alloties to the Company from his bank account to the designated
bank account of the Company.

» The pre-preferential allotment shareholding of the Proposed Allottee, if any, in the Company and the Warrants allotted in
terms of this resolution and the resultant Equity Shares anising on exercise of rights attached to such Warranis shall be
subject to lock-in as perthe provisions of the SEB| ICDR Regulations.

» The Proposed Allotiee has not sold any equity shares during the 90 trading days preceding the Relevant Date.

= The Equity Shares fo be allotted by the Company to the Proposed Allottee upon the exercise of rights attached to the
Warrants shall be governed by the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and shall rank pari passu inall
respects including entitlemeant to voting powers and dividend, with the existing fully paid-up Equity Shares of face value of
Re.10/- gach of the Company,

Information pertaining to the proposed preferentiat allatment in terms of Chapter V of SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Act
read with the Rules issued thereunder are set forth below;

a. Particulars of the offer including date of passing of Board resclution, the total number of shares or other
securities to be issued, kinds of securities offered and the price at which security is being offered:

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 117 August 2025, had approved the offer, issue and allotment of up to
13,47,000 (Thirteen Lakhs and Forty-Seven Thousand only) Warrants, each convertible into, or exchangeable for, 1 {one)
fully paid-up eguity share of the Company of fate value of Rs 10/~ sach {"Warrants™} et a price of Rs, 17/- per warrant as
detarmined in accordance with Chapter V of SEBI HCDR Regulations on the 'Relevant Date' {("Warrants lesus Price”) for cash
consideration, which may be exercised in one or mere tranches during the period not exceeding 18 (eighteen) months
commencing from the date of allotment of the Warrants, to Mr. B Srramulu, Promoter of the Company (refersd 1o as the
‘Proposed Allottes”), by way of a preferential issue through private placement offer, on the terms and conditions as setoutin
Item Mo. 5 of this Notice, subject to the approval of the members by means of a special resclution and such other authaorities
as may be required in this connection.

b, Object of the preferential issue:

The Company intends (o raise funds not exceeding Rs_ 228,99 000/- {Rupees Two Crores Twenty-Eight Lakhs and Ninety-
Ninea Thousand Only) ("lssue Proceeds”) by way of offer, |ssue and allotment of 13,47, 000 (Thirteen Lakhs and Forty Seven
Thousand only ) Wamants convesrtibie into equity shares of the Company of Rs, 10/- each to Mr, B Sriramulu, the Promotar of
the Company, a5 identified by the Board and as sl oulin [lem No. 5 of this Notice, on preferential basis. Given thal the Tunds
lo be recelved against Warrant conversion will be in tranches and the quantum of funds required on different dates may vary,
therafore, the broad range of infended use ofthe Issue Proceeds forthe above Objectsis set out hereinbelow

sl. Objects of the Issue Estimated Tentative time frame
No. amount to be for utilisation
utilised (in Rs.)
1. Repayment of loans 1,72,00,000 | Within 36 months from
z. General Corporate Purposes 56,99,000 | eceipt of funds for the
Warrants

*Considering 100% convarsion of Warrants into equily shares within the slipulated time.
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Given that the preferential issue is being made for Warrants, the |ssue Proceeds shall be received by the Company within a
period of not exceeding 18 (eighteen) months from the date of allotment of the Warrants In terms of Chapter V' of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, and as estimated by ocur managemant, the entire lssue Proceeds would be utilized for all the
aforementioned Objects, in phases, as par the Company’s business requirameants and availability of Issus Proceeds, within
36 months from the date of recelpt of funds for the Warrants (as set out herein ),

Ir terms of the relevant Circulars and SEBI ICDR Requlations, the amount specified for the aforementionad Objects may
deviate #/- 10% depending upon the future circumstances, given that the Objects are based on management estimates and
other commercial and technical factors. Accordingly, the same is dependent on a varlety of factars such as financial, market
and sectoral conditions, business performance and strategy, competition and other external factors, which may nol be within
the control of the Company and may resultin modifications to the proposed schedule for utilization of the Issue Proceeds at the
discretion of the Board, subject to compliance with applicable laws.

The Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time o tima, will have fexibility to deploy the
Isgua Proceeds. Pending complete utilization of the Issue Proceeds for the Objects described above, our Company intends to,
inter alia, invest the lssue Proceeds in money market instrumeants including monay market mutual funds, deposits In
scheduled commercial banks, securities issued by government of India or any other investments as permitted under

applicable laws.
c. Material terms of raising such securities and maximum number of specified securities to be issued

The material lerms relating to the offer, issue and allotment of up to 13.47,000 (Thirteen Lakhs and Forty-Seven Thousand
anly} Warrants, shall be as set out in ltem No. 5 of this Notice, subject to the approval of the members by means of a special
resolution and such other authorities as may be reguired in this connection.

d. Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities

The Company intends to raise an amount nol exceeding Rs. 2,28,29 000/~ (Rupees Two Crores Twenty-Eight Lakhs and
Minety-MNina Thousand Cnly) through the above preferential issue,

e. Price or price band at/within which the allotment is proposed; Basis or justification for the price (including
preamium, if any) at which the offar or invitation is being made

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) for a period of more than 90 trading days as on the
Relevant Datei.e., 8" August 2025,

The Equity Shares of the Company are frequently traded on BSE in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, in which the highest
trading volume in respect of the Equity Shares has been recorded during the preceding 90 trading days prior to the Felavant
Data.

Accordingly, in terms of the provisions of Regulation 164 of the SEBI ICOR Regulations. the minimum price at which the
Warrants to be offered, issued and allotted shall be higher of the following:

1. 90 trading days volume weighted average price of the relatad equity shares quoted on BSE preceding the relevant dateie.,
B" August 2025 (or)

2. 10 trading days volume welghted average prices of the related equity shares quoted on BSE preceding the relevant date.
i.e., 8" August 2025,

Further, the Articles of Association of the Company do not provide for a method of determination of the fioor price for any
sauritias,
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The Campany has abtained a certificate from Mr. C N Paramasivam (FCS 4654/ COP 3687). FCS, Comipany Secratary in
Praclice, certifying the compulation of the loor price for the proposed preferential issue of the Company, based on the pricing
formula prescribed under the Regulation 164 ol the Chapter V of SEB] ICDR Regulations.

Further, given that the equity shares of the Company have been listed for a period of more than 90 (ninety ) trading days prior lo
the relevant date, the Company would not be required to re-compute the issue price as per Regulation 164(3) the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

f. Undertakings
In terms ol SEBICDR Regulalions, the Company hereby undertakes that;

a. the Company shall re-compute the price of the Warrants offered, Issued and aliotted in terms of the provision of the SEBI
ICOR Regulations, where it is required to do so.

b, If the amount payable, if any, on account of the re-computation of price is not paid within the time stipulated in the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, the undearlying Equity Shares shall continue o be locked in till the time such amount s paid by the
proposad aliotiees,

g. Relevant date with reference to which the price has been arrived at

in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 181 of the SEB| ICOR Regulations, the ‘Relevant Date for the preferential
Issue is Friday, 8" August 2025, which is 30 days prior to the date of this Annual General Meeting i.e., Tuesday, 9" September
2025, (since the Relevant Date falls on a weekand, the day preceding the weekeand has been rackoned as the Relevant Data)

h. Basis on which the price has been arrived atalong with report of the registered valuer; Name and address of valuer
who performed valuation

Since the proposed preferential issue is not expected (o result in a change in control or aliotment of more than 5% (five per
cent) of the postissue fully diluted share capital of the Company, the Company is not required to obtain a valuation report from

an indepandent registered valuer.

i. Class or classes of persons to whem the allotment is proposed to be made and intention of promoters, directors,
key managerial personnel ar senior management to subscribe to the offer

The preferential issue of 13,47 000 (Thirtzen Lakhs and Forty-Seven Thousand) Warranls is proposed lo be made o Mr. B
Sriramulu, the Promaoter of the Company (" Proposed Allottes”), as set out In Item Mo, § of this Notice. Other than the above,
none of the other Promoters (Member{s) of the Promoter Group / Direclors / Key Managerial Personnel! Senior Management
intend lo subscribe o the proposed preferential issue.

j. Proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed:

As required under SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Preferential Issue of Wamrants shall be completed, within a percd of 15 days
from the date of passing of the spacial resolulion contained in this Notice, Provided thal where the allotment on prefarential
basis is pending on account of pendency of any approval or permission of such allotment from any authority under the
applicatle laws, the aliotment shall be completed within a perlod of 15 days from the date of receipt of last of such approval or
permission, as the case may be.
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k. Names of the proposed allottees and the percentage of post preferential issue capital that may be held by the

allottee(s) and change in control, if any, in the company that would occur consequent to the preferential issue.

Mame of tha Pre-preferantial issue Post lesue holding (on a fully
proposed allottes shareholding diluted basis)*
MNo. of eguity Y of Ma. of eqguity % of
shares shareholding shares shareholding
hAr. B Sriramulu
22,08,658 8.81 49,05 658 13.18
(Promotear)

*The post praferantial percentage of shareholding has bean calculated assuming that all the Wamants allotfed will be
converted into Equity Shares of the Company

There will b2 no change in the composition of the Board nor any change in the control of the Company consequent o the

above proposed preferential issue.
|. Current and proposed status of the Allottee({s) post the Preferential Issue namely, promoter or non-promoter

The preferential Issue of Warrants Is intended to be offered, Issued and allotted to Mr. B Sriramulu, the Propased Allotiee, whao
is the existing Promoter of the Company, as mentioned above and the status of the Proposed Allottes post the Prefarantial

Issue remains unchanged.

m. Identity of the natural persons who are the ultimate beneficial owners of the shares proposed to be allotted and /
orwho ultimately control the Proposed Allottee(s);

The prefarential issue of Warrants isintended to be offered, issued and allotted to Mr. B Sriramulu, the Proposed Allottes, who

is the existing Promoter of the Company.

n. Number of persons to whom alletment on preferential basis have already been made during the year, in terms of

number of securities as well as price

Thie Company has not made any preferential issue of securities during this financial yvear, other than the propoesed preferential
issus as seloul under ltem Mo. 5 of this nolice:

o. Justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together with valuation

report of the registered valuer

Mot applicatie.

"
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p. The shareholding pattern of the company before and after the Preferential Issue

5. Category Pre-lssue Post-Issue
Mo, MNo. of Shares % of Mo. of Shares % of
held Share- held Share-
holding holding

A | Promoters/Promoter Group

1 Indian i B B ]

a. Individuals/ Hindu 08,956,811 32.60 1,12,43,811 41.67
Undivided Family

b. Bodies corporate f Trust 51.62,145% 20,13 51,623,145 19.13
Central Government/ B - - -
State Government{s)
Sub-total A (1) 1,50,58,956 58.74 1,64,05,956 60.80
Foreign - % 5 B

a. Individuals _ _ _ |
(Non-Resident  Individuals/
Foreign Mationals)

b Government B = N =

&L Institutions _ N N J

d. Foreign Portfolio Investors _ _ _ B

e, Any other . - - |
Sub-total & (2] z z z .

} Sub-total A (1) + (2) 1,50,58,956 58.74 1,64,05,956 60.80

B Public

1. Institutions [Domestic)

a. Mutual Funds 3,200 0.01 3,200 0,01

b. Venture Capital Funds - - - -

cC. Alternate Investment Funds

d. Banks - - - -

e Insurance Companies - - - -

E Provident Funds/ Pension _ _ _ il
Funds

g, Asset Reconstruction - - - =
Companies

h. Sovereign Wealth Funds - - - -

i. MBFCs Registered with REI - - - -

i Other Financial Institutions _ o o il

k. Any other B _ _ |
Sub-total (B){1) 3,200 0.01 3,200 D.01
Institutions (Foreign)

a. Fareign Direct Investment _ _ _ ]
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5. Category Pre-lssue Post-Issue
MNo. Mo. of Shares %% of MNo. of Shares % of
held Share- held Share-
holding holding

b. Foreign Venture  Capital - - -
Investors

[ Foreign Sovereign \Wealth _ _ _
Funds

d. Foreign Portfolio Investors - - -
Category |

e. Foreign Portfolio - 5 =
Investors Category ||

L Overseas Depositories = - =
({Holding DRs)

E. Any other - - -

= Sub-total (B)(2) - - -

3 Central Government/ State
Government

&, Central Government/ - - -
President of India

b, State Government,/ - - -
Governor

C. Shareholding by Companies - - -
or Bodies Corporate where
Central / State Government
is a promaoter
Sub-total (B)(3) - - -

4 MNon-Institutions
Associate Companies /! - - -
Subsidiaries

b. Directors and their relatives 500 - 500
{excluding independent
directors and nomines
directors)

[ Key Managerial Personnel - - -

d. Relatives of Promoters - - -
(other than ‘immediate

refatives” of promoters
disclosed under ‘Promoter
and Promater Group’
categary)
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Category

Pre-lssue

Post-lssue

No. of Shares
held

% of
Share-
holding

Mo. of Shares
held

% of
Share-
holding

Trusts where any person
belonging to 'Promoter and
Promoter Group' category is
trustee', ‘'beneficiary', or
‘author of the trust’

Investor Education and

Protection Fund (IEPF)

9,71,328

3.792

9,71,328

3.60

Resident Individual holding
nominal share capital up to
Rs.2 lakhs

43,852,305

17.1.0

43,389,805

16.27

Resident Individuals holding
nominal share ecapital in
excess of Rs.2 lakhs

42,93,650

16.75

42,993,650

15.91

MNon-Resident Indians (MRIs)

2,08,807

2,08.807

0.77

Foreign Mationals

Foreign Companies

el (8 (Ll B

Bodies Corporate

2,94,833

2,594,823

1.08

3

Any Other

Clearing Members

1,000

1,000

Hindu Undivided Families

4,15,466

4,15,466

1.53

LLP

280

280

Sub-total (B){4)

1,05,75,669

1,05,75,669

39.19

Sub-total (B)

1,05,78,869

1,05,78,869

39.20

Non-promoter
shareholders

Non-public

Custodian / DR Holder

Employee Benefit Trust /[
Employee ‘Welfare  Trust
under SEBlI ([(Share Based
Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021

Sub-total {C)

TOTAL

2,56,37,825

100.00

2,69,84,825

100.00

Note! The post preferential percentage of shareholding has been calewated sssuming that sl the Warrants aliotted will be
converted info Equity Shares of the Company:
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q. Principal terms of assets charged as securities:
Mot applicable
r.Lock-in:

The Warranls allotied pursuant o this resolution and the resuliant equily shares lo be issued and allolied upon exercise of
rights attached to the Warrants, as above, shall be subject to lock-in for such period as prescribed under the provisions of

ChapterV of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Furthar, the entire pre-preferential shareholding of Proposed Allottee shall also be locked-in for such period as prescribed
under the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

g, Othardisclosures:

I} The Company or none of its Promoters or Directors is a willful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower. Hence, disciosures
specified under Schedule V| of SEBI |ICDR Regulations does nol arise. Further, none of the Promolers or Directors are fugitive

geonomic offendars as specified under the SEBIHCDR Regulations.

ii) The Company Is eligible to make the Preferential Allotment to its Promoter and the Person(s) belonging to its Promoter

Group under Chapter Vol the SEBI ICOR Regulalions.

i} The Promoter and the Personis) belonging to the Promoter Group of the Company, who has sold their equity shares during

the S0 trading days preceding the Relevant Diats shall not be eligible for alletment of Warrants on preferential basis.

W) The proposed Preferential [ssue is being made to a Resident Indian and hence, the compliance with the Foreign Exchange
Managemeant Act, 1928 doas notapply.

v} The proposed preferential issue will not attract the provisions of SEB| (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011.

vi} As the Equity Shares have been listed for a period of more than 20 days as on the Relevant Date, the provisions of

Regulation 164({3) of SEB! ICOR Regulations goveming re-computation of the price of shares shall not be applicable.

vii) Offer, issue and allotment of the Warrants and the Equity Shares which would be allotted upon exercise of the rights
attached to the Warrants would be well within the Authorised Share Capital of the Company.

viil) Since the proposed preferential Issue is not more than 5% (five percent) of the post [ssue fully diluted share capital of the
Company, @ valuation report from an independent registerad valuer is not required under the provisions of Regulation 166A of
SEBI ICDR Regulations and under second proviso 1o Rule 13{1) of the Companias (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014,
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ix} A copy of the certificate obtained from Mr. C N Paramasivam (FCS 4654/ COP 3887), FCS, Company Secretary In
Practice, certifying that the above preferential Issue is belng made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the SEBI
ICOR Regutations, will b& open for inspection al the Registered Office of the Company during normal working hours on sll
working days (excepl Saturdays and Sundays) up to the date of the Annual General Meeting and the same shall also be made
available electronlcally for Inspection by the members during the said meeting. The sald cerificate will also be placed on the

Company's wabsite hitps Siwww. kgdenim, comfagm/

%) The Company will take necessary steps to obtain the required approvals from BSE Limited, Securities and Exchange

Board of Indla or any other regulatory authorities as may be applicable for the proposed preferantlal Issue.

Fursuant to the provisions of Section{s) 42, and 62(1){c) of the Companias Act. 2013 read with Regulation 180{b) of the SEBI
ICDOR Reqguiations, the special resolution as set out in llem Mo, § of this Notice, s placed beforz the mambers for their

approval

The Board of Directors opine that the proposed preferantial issue isin the best interest of the Company and its members and,
therafore, recommends the passing ol this special resalution

Excapt Mr. B. Sriramulu, Managing Director and Mr. K G Balakrishnan, Executive Chairman and Mr. B Srihari, baing his
relatives, none of the other Directors or Key Managernal Personnel of the Company and/or their relative(s) is in any way
concernad orinterested, financially or otherwise, inthe proposed resolution set outin ltem No. 5 of the Notice,

ITEMNO.6

The Company propeses to also raise additional funds for repayment of loans and for general corporate purposes.
Considering ralsing of funds through preferential issue (o be most cost and time effective way for ralsing additional capital, the
Board of Directors of the Company (“Board"), at their meeting heid on 11" August 2025, has also granted their approval for
raising of funds by way of offer, issue and aliotment of up to 10,00,000 6% MNeon-converfible Cumulative Redeemable
Praference Shares of Rs, 100/ each ("NCRPS") al par, aggregating o an amount not exceeding Rs.10,00.00,000/- (Rupeas
Ten Crores anly), for cash on a private placement basis to Mr. B. Sriramulu and Mr. K. G. Balaknshnan ("Proposed Allotiess™),
Promoters of the Company on the terms and conditions as set out in llem No. 6 of this Notice, subject to the approval of the
members by means of a special resolution and such other authorities as may be required in this connection.

In accordance with Sections 23{1){b), 42, 55 and 62{1 ){c) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Acl")
and the Companies {Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules made thereunder {including any statutory modificationis) or re-enactment(s) thereof
fior the time baing in force), approval of sharebolders of the Company by way of special resolution is required to issue NCRPS
by way of private placement,
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FPursuant to Rule 8({3) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the material facts relating to the

said issue of NCRPS are as follows:

a) | Size of the issue and number of | 10,00,000 &% MNon-convertible Cumulative
preference shares to be issued | Redeemable Preference Shares (“NCRPS") of
and nominal value of each share Rs. 100 each at par, aggregating fo an amount

not exceeding Rs.10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten
Crores only)

b} | Mature of such shares The MCRPS will be cumulative,
non-participating and non-convertible.

¢} | Objectives of the issue The proceeds of the issue will be utilized
towards repayment of loans and general
corporate purposes of the Company,

d} | Manner of Issue of shares The NCRPS are proposed to be issued on a
private placement basis to Mr. B. Sriramulu
and Mr. K. G. Balakrishnan (“Proposed
Allottees”), Promoters of the Company on the
terms and conditions as set out in item No. 6
of this Notice.

e} | Price at which such shares are | The NCRPS of nominal value of Rs. 100/-each

proposed to be issued are proposed to be issued at par at the rate of
Rs. 100/- per NCRPS

f} | Basis on which the price has been | Not Applicable as the shares are being issued
arrived at at par.

g) | Terms of issue, including terms | The NCRPS shall subject to the provisions of
and rate of dividend on each | the Articles of Assaciation of the Company and
share ate. the Act, confer the holders thereof a right to a

fixed cumulative dividend of 6% per annum on
the face value of Rs. 100/- each. Other terms
and conditions of the issue of NCRPS have
been set out in Item No. 6 of the Notice.,

h} | Terms of redemption, including | NCRPS shall be redeemable at par at the
the tenure of redemption, | option of the Board of Directors of the
redemption of shares at premium | Company, in three equal instalments in the 6",
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and if the preference shares are

convertible, the terms of

7" and 8" years from the date of allotment in
accordance with the provisions laid down in

canversion Section 55 of the Act.
NCRPS shall not be convertible into equity
shares.
i} The manner and modes of NCRPS will be redeemed either out of profits
redempton of the Company or out of the proceeds of fresh

issue of capital in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the relevant rules made thereunder.

i

The current shareholding pattern
of the Company

The current shareholding pattern of the
Company is given below

k)

The expected dilution in equity
share capital upon conversion of
preference shares

Mot applicable since the NCRPS are proposed
to be issued on non-convertible basis.

Current Shareholding Pattern:

5. No.

Category

% of Share-
holding

MNo. of Equity
Shares held

A

Promoters/Promoter Group

Indian

Individuals/ Hindu Undivided Family

98,896,811 38.60

Bodies corporate / Trust

51,62,145 20.13

0lo| .

Central
State Government(s)

Government,/ - -

Sub-total A (1)

1,50,58,956 58.74

Foreign

Individuals
{Non-Resident
Mationals)

Individuals/

Foreign

Government

Institutions

Foreign Portfolio Investors

plaio o

Any other

Sub-total A (2)

Sub-total A (1) + (2)

1,50,58,956 58.74
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2
P

Category

Mo. of Equity
Shares held

% of Share-
halding

Public

Institutions (Domestic)

Mutual Funds

3,200

0.01

Venture Capital Funds

Alternate Investment Funds

Banks

Insurance Companies

Provident Funds/ Pension Funds

Asset Reconstruction Companies

ol Ll Eond B Lt B Bl Bl ol -

Sovereign Wealth Funds

NBFCs Registered with REBI

e
'

Other Financial Institutions

e

Any other

Sub-total (B)(1)

Institutions (Foreign)

Fareign Direct Investmeant

Foreign Venture Capital Investars

Foreign Soversign Wealth Funds

Foreign Partfolio Investors Category |

Foreign Portfolio Investors Category I

Overseas Depositories (Holding DRs)

o ol 6 Bt Bl B B

Any other

Sub-total (B)({2)

Central Government/ State Government

Central Government/ President of India

State Government/ Governor

ool w

Shareholding by Companies or Bodies
Corporate where Central /  State
Government is a promoter

Sub-total (B)(3)

MNon-Institutions

1)

Associate Companies / Subsidiaries

Directors and their relatives (excluding
independent directors and nominee
directors)

500

Key Managerial Personnel

Relatives of Promoters (other than
‘immediate relatives’ of promoters
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5. No. | Category MNo. of Equity % of Share-
Shares held holding
disclosed under ‘Promoter and Promoter
Group' categary)
e Trusts where any person belonging to -
‘Promoter and Promoter Group' category
is 'trustee’, 'beneficiary’, or "author of the
trust'
f. Investor Education and Protection Fund 9,71,328 3.79
(IEPF)
E. Resident Individual helding nominal share 43,89, 805 17.10
capital up to Rs.2 lakhs
h. Resident Individuals holding nominal 42,93,650 16.75
share capital in excess of Rs.2 lakhs
i MNon-Resident Indians (NRIs) 2,08,807 0.81
j- Foreign Nationals -
k. Foreign Companies - -
1. Bodies Corporate 2,94,833 1.15
m. Any Other
Clearing Members 1,000 -
Hindu Undivided Families 4,15,466 1.62
LLP 280 -
Sub-total (B)(4) 1,05,75,669 41.25
Sub-total (B) 1,05,78,869 41.26
[ Non-promoter Non-public shareholders
a. Custodian / DR Holder - -
b Employee Benefit Trust [/ Employse - -
Welfare Trust under SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Eguity)
Regulations, 2021
Sub-tatal (C) - -
TOTAL 2,56,37,825 100.00

Further, as required under Rule 14{1) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014, additional disclosure for issue of NCRP5 on private placement basis is as follows:

al | Particulars of the offer including
date of passing of Board resolution

The Board of Directors of the Company at its
meeting held on 11" August 2025 approved
the offer, issue and allotment of up to
10,000,000 6% Non-convertible Cumulative
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Redeemahble Preference Shares of T100/-
each ("NCRPS") at par, agpregating to an
amount exceeding Rs.10,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Ten Crores only), for cash on a
private placement basis to Mr. B. Sriramulu
and Mr K. G. (“Proposed
Allottees”), Promoters of the Company on the
terms and conditions as set out in Item MNo. 6
of this Notice, subject to the approval of the
members by means of a special resolution
and such other authorities as may be required
in this connection.

not

Balakrishnan

b) | Kinds of securities offered and the | The Company proposes to issue 6% MNon-
price at which security is being | convertible Cumulative Redeemable
offered Preference Shares of RBs.100/each at par for

cash consideration.

c) Basis or justification for the price | The NCRPS is being issued at par and
(including premium, if any) at which | redeemed at par and hence the requirement
the offer or invitation is being made | of providing justification for the price does

not arise.

) Mame and address of wvaluer who | Mot applicable as the NCRPS i= being issued at
performed valuation par and redeemed at par

e} | Amount which the Company intends | The Company intends to raise up to an
to raise by way of such securities amount not  exceeding  Rs.10,00,00,000/-

(Rupees Ten Crores only) by way of issue of
MNCRPS

) Material terms of raising such | The Company proposes to issue 6% MNon-

securities convertible Cumulative Redeemahle
Preference Sharesof Rs.100/- each at par for
cash consideration on a private placement
basis to Mr. B. Sriramulu and Mr K. G
Balakrishnan ("Proposed Allotteess”),
FPromaoters of the Company on the terms and
conditions as set out in Item No. & of this
Motice, subject to the approval of the
members by means of a special resolution
and such other authorities as may be required
in this connection

Bl proposed time schedule The proposed offer and issue of NCRPS shall

be completed within a period of 12 moanths
from the date of passing of the special
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resolution as set out in Item No. & of the
Motice within which time the offer shall be
accepted and subscribed

The purpose or objects of the proposed issue
of NCRPS is to raise funds for the repayment of loans
and for general corporate and working capital
pUrposes.

h) purposes or objects of offer

i) contribution being made by the
promoters or directors either as part
of the offer or separately in
furtherance of cbjects

The Company proposes to issue NCRPS at par
for cash consideration on a private placement
basis to Mr. B. Sriramulu and Mr. K. G,
Balakrishnan {(“Proposed Allottees”),
Fromoters of the Company. None of the other
promoters of directors intend to subscribe to
the offer.

Mot Applicable

il principle terms of assets charged as
securities

Accordingly, lhe Board recommends the Special Hesolution sel out at Item Nao. 6 of the Notice for approval by the
Membears.

Except Mr. B. Sriramulu and Mr. K.G. Balakrishnan, being the allottees and Mr. B Srilvar| being his relative, none of
the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relative(s) is in any way concerned or
interastad, financially or otherwisa, in the proposed resolution set out in ltem Mo. B of the Notice.

In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings, brief profile of the Directors, who are proposed to be
appointed! re-appointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, other directorships
and committee memberships, their shareholding and relationship with other Directors of the
Company are given below:

Mame of the Director Shri Balakrishnan Sriramulu Shri R Selvakumar

DIN 00002560 00051608

Date of Birth/Age 27-04-1967 / 58 vears 30-05-1970/ 55 years
MNationality Indian Indian

Date of appointment on | 03-11-2003 07-08-2023

the Board

Qualification

B.Tech, MS (Textiles)

B.E (Mech), MBA

Experience [/ Area of
Expertise

More than 3 decades of practical
experience in the setting up and
management of textile units

PMore than 2 decades of
experience  in sourcing of raw
materials, chemicals, and human
resources administration in KG
Derim Limited

MNeo. of Shares held in the
Company

22,08,659 Equity Shares

il
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Inter-s& Relationship with
other directors

shri Balakrishnan Sriramulu is the
son of Shri K G Balakrishnan,
Executive Chairman and Brother

Shri B Selvakumar is not related
to any of the directors of the
Company

af Shri B Sriharl, Director of the
Campany

Managing Director

Retire by Rotation

Board position held
Terms of Appointment/
Re-appointment

Whaole-Time Diractar
Retire by Rotation

Remuneration sought to | Rs.5,00,000/- per month plus | Rs.1,42,000/- per month plus
be paid perquisites and 1% Commission | Bonus

on net profits of the Company.
Remuneration last drawn Ml 19.32 Lakhs

MNo. of Board Meetings | 7 7
attended during the year

List of Directorships held | 1. Crocodile India Private Limited il
in other Companies 2. 5ri Kannapiran Mills Limited
3. K G B Securities and
Investments Private Limited
4. Kumaranganapathy
Investments Private Limited
5. KGB Education Foundation
6. Ganapathykumaran
Investments Private Limited
7. Enterprise Telesys Limited
Details of Membership in | Nil Ml
Committees of Other
Companies
Names of listed entities in | Mijl Ml

which the person has
resigned in the past three
years

By order of the Board
For K G DENIM LIMITED

Govindaswamy Maidu Balakrishnan
Executive Chairman
DIN; 00002174

Flace: Coimbatore

Date: 11th August 2025
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NOTES

1. A membaer entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “meeting”) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on a poll instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company.

2. The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the company nat less than forty-
eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form for the Annual General Meeting is enclosed.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of
the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other
person or shareholder,

4, Mambers may note that M/s. Gopalalyer and Subramanian, (Firm Registration No, 0D09605) Chartered Accountants, Caimbatarna
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the shareholders at their Annual General Meetng (AGM) held on 28"
September 2022, to hold office for a pericd of 5 years Hll the conclusion of AGM to be held during the year 2027, Hence, no resolution

15 being proposed for the appointment of statutory awditors at thes 337 Annual General Meeting.

5. The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies ct, 2013 with respect to the Special Business set out in the Notice |s
annexed,

B, Institutional / Corporate Sharehiolders [Le. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/IPG
Format} of its Board or governing body Hesolution/ Authorization ete., authorlzing (ts representative to attend the AGM through VC/
QAWM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resalution/Authorization shall be sent ta the Scrutinizer by email
through its registered email address to mdsimdssssocintes in with a copy marked to the Company at gskgdliekedenime in and to its

RTA at investorircameaindio. com

7. Members / Praxies should bring the attendance slips duly filled and signed, along with PANS DP 1D & Client 1D/ Folia No. for
attending the meeting:

8. Membars may note that the Netice of the 33" Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for the Ainanclal year 2024-25 hava
been made available on the Company's website www . kodendm . coim and also the website of Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at
wiw  besindia. com and on the website of Central Depository Services {India) Limited at www .svotingindl s, com The
physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office for inspection during normal
business hours on working days.

8. Members attending the AGM in person shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 102 of the Act.

10, Detalls a5 raquired under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI|Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regulrements] Ragulations, 2015 and
sSecretarial Standards on General Meétings (55-2) In respect af the Director seeking re-appointment at the 337 Annual General
Mesting are furnished as annaxure and forms part of the Notica,

11. Thie Company has paid the annual listing fees for the period 2025-26 to the Stock Exchange, BSE Limited, Mumbal,

12 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and
Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed
during the period from Wednesday, 3" September, 2025 to Tuesdzy, 9" September 2025 (both days inclusive) for determining the
names af the members eligitle for Annoal General Meeting.

13, Members whose shareholding is in the electronic mode are requested to update bank account detalls {Bank Account Number,
Name of the Bank, Branch, IFSC, MICR code and place with PIN Code) to thelr respective Depository Participantis) and not with tha
Company. Members whose sharehoiding is in the physical mode are requested to direct the above details to the Company or to tha
RTA. Regular updation of bank particulars is intended to prevent fravdulent encashment of dividend warrants.
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14, a. Members are requested to notify any change in their address, immediately:
I. tatheir Depository Participant(s) {“DPs"}in respectof the shares held in electronic form, and

i, tothe Company orits BTA, in respect of the shares held in physical form together with proof of address viz, Aadhar Card [Electricity
Bl Talephane Bil/Ration Card /Voter 10 Card/ Passport ek,

b, In case the registered mailing address is without the Postal (dentification Number Code (“PIN CODE"), Members are reguested to
kindly infarm thelr PIN CODE immediately to the Company/ RTAS OPs,

15. Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India [ "SEBI") Circular Na. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD/P/CIR2025/97 dated July
02, 2025 a special window has been openaed for re-lodgement af share transfer deeds, which were lodged prior to deadline of April L,
2029 and rejected / returned / not attended to due to deficiency in the documents / process or otherwise, for a period of & manths from
July OF, 2025 till January 06, 2026 The shares that are re-ladged for transfer during this period shall be issued only in demat mode. Such
re-lodgement requests along with the requisite documents shall be submitted to Cameo Corporate Services Ltd, the Aegistrar and Shara
Transfer Agent{RTA} within the stipulated time.

16. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members may file nomination forms in respect of thieir physical
shareholdings. Any member wishing to avail this facility may submit to the company’s Registrar & Share Transfer &gent in the prescribed
Form 5H-13 (hosted on the website of the Company and RTA). Should any assistance be desired, members shall get in touch with tha
company’s Rogistrar & Share Transfor Agent. Members holding shares in electronic form must approach their Depository Participant(s)
for completing the nomination formalities,

17. Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to send tothe Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent [“*RTA"), the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings into ane folio,
Aconsolidated share certificate will be returned to such members after making reguisite changes thereon,

18. Non-Resident indian ["MRI”) Members are requested to inform the Company or RTA or the concemed Depository Farticipants, as the
tase may be, immediately:

n)tha change in the residential status on return ta india for permanent settlement or
bithe particulars af the NRESNRD Account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earller,

19. Those members who have nat encashed dividend warrants of carlier years may return the time barred dividend warrants to the
Company orits Registrarand Share transfer Agents for revalidation of such instruments.

20. Members who wish to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed, are reguested to correspond with the Company Secretary / BTA af
the Campany.

Meambers are requesied to note that pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 dividends not claimed within seven years from
the date of transfer to the Company's Unpaid Dividend Account, will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
["IEPF"} established by the Central Government under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, The details of unpaid dividend can be
viewed on the Company’s website. As per the provisions of Rule & of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company will be transferring the share{s) on which the beneficial owner has not encazhed
any dividend during the fast seven years to the IEPF demat account as identified by the IEPF Authority. Details of Shareholders whose
shares are liable to be transferred to IEPF are available on the Company’s website, The Sharehalders whose unclaimed dividend fshare
has been transferred to the ‘Iwestor Education and Protection Fund', may claim the same from the |IEPF authority by filing Form IEPF-5
along with the requisite documents,

21. Sharehoiders holding shares in demat form and who have not yet reglstered their e-mall address are requested to register their email
address with their respective Depository Participant (DP) immediately. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to
dematerialize their shares and ragister their emall address with our Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, Camen Corporate Services
Limited, "Subramanian Building’ No.1, Club House Road, Chennai— 600002 email id: irnvestor@eamecindia. com.
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22,

A Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI”) had earlier mandated that the transter of securities held in physical form, except in
case of transmission or transpositon, shall not be processed by the listed entities / Reglstrar and Share Transfer Agents with effect from
1" April 2015,

B, Further, SEBI had mandated the listed sntities to issue shares only in dematerialised mode, with effect from 257 January 2022 to
shareholder(s)/claimant(s) holding shares in physical mode, as against their service requests including for transmission or transposition
of shares.

As per the said circular, the Company has opened a separate Escrow Demat Account for the purpose af crediting the shares of the
Shareholders who fail to submit the letier of confirmation with the respective Depasitory Participant within the prescribed timelina,

C. Further, SEBI vide its circular(s) dated 3" November 2021 and 16" March 2022 has also mandated that the Shareholders holding shares
In physleal form are reguired to update thelr PAN, KYC detalls, bank detalls and nomination detalls with the RTA on ar before 1" October
2023, failing which the securities held by such Sharehoider will be frozen by the RTA. The securities once frozen will revert to normal
status anly upon receipt of requisite KYC documents or upon demateriallsation of the sald securities. Shareholders holding shares in
physical farm may also note that once the securities are frozen, the dividend payments will be processed only upon receipt of requisite
EYC details and thersafter credited 1o the bank account of the Shareholder electronically, Therefore, Members halding share(s) in
physical form are requested to immediately update their KYC details / dematenialise their shareholding in the Company.

0. Further, SERI vide its circular(s) dated 37 November 2021 and 16" March 2023 has also mandated that the Shareholders halding shares
in physical form are required to compulsarily link their PAN and Aadhaar. Accordingly, the physical foliosin which PAN and Aadhaar are
not linked have been frozen by the RTA. The securities which have been frozen will revert to normal status only upon receipt of requisita
EYC documents or upon dematerialisation of the sald securibes.

Mecessary prior InHmation|s) in this regard was provided to the Shareholders. A copy of the said circular dated 16" March 2023 is
availabie on the Company's website www . Kadenim, com-

23, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in the sacurites market, Members holding shares in electranic farm are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to thair
Depository Participantis) In the prescribed form with whom they are maintaining thelr demat account{s). Members holding shares in
physical form can submit their PAN details to thie Company of Registrar and Share Transfer Agents,

24, In case of joint halders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of
the Company will be entitled to vote at the &AGM,

15, Membears desiraus of raceiving any information on the accounts or operations of the Company are requested to forward his/her
gueties ta the Company Secretary at least seven working days prior to the date of the 337 Annual General Meeting, the same will ba
replied by the company suitably.

26, The Company has entered into agreements with National Securibies Depository Limited {"NSDL") end Central Depository Services
{India) Limited {*COSL"). The Depository System anvisapes the elimination of several problems involved in the scrip-based system such as
bad daliveries, fracdulent transfers, fake certificates, thefts in postal transit, delay in transfers, mutilation of share certificates, stc,
Simuitaneously, Depository System offers several advantages like exemption from stamp duty, elimination of concept of market lot,
elimination of bad deliveries, reduction in transachon costs, impraved liquidity, etc. Members, therefore, now have the option of holding
and dealing in the shares of the Caompany in electronic farm through N50L or COSL. Members are encouraged to convert their holding to
electronic mode

27, Members are requested to farward their share related queries and communications directly to the Registrar and Share Transfar
Agents of the Company — Cameo Corporate Services Limited, "“Subramanian Bullding” No.1, Club House Road, Chennal - 600002, India,

emailld; investordcaneoindia, comorthe Company Secretany of the Company; emailid: gakadl fkodenim. in.

28. As per the green initiative taken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, members are advised to register their email address with the
Company in respact of sharas held in physical form and with the cancernad depository participant in respect of shares held in demat farm
toenahle the Company to serve documants in electronic form.
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29. Members are requested to make all correspondence in connection with shares held by them by addressing letters directly to the
Company Secretary of the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Cameo Corporate Services Limited, 'Subramanian
Building” Na. 1, Club House Road, Chennai — 600002; email id: investar@cameaindia,.com., by guoting the Folio number or the Client
10 numberwith DR ID number.

30, Members are requested to note that the 33" Annuwal General Meeting will be held at Then Thirumalai, Coimbatore - 6413032, the
Registered Office of the Company, The route map containing the complete partdoutars of the venue is printed an this Notice,

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, {including any statutory modification(s), amendments, clarifications, axemptions or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force), Regulation 44 of the SEBI |Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (55-2), the Company is providing to its Members with the facility to cast their vote
electronically from a place other than venue of the Annual General Meeting [“remota e-voting”) using an electronic vating system
provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited {"CD5L™), for all Members' of the Company to enable them to cast their votes
electronically, on all the business items set forth in the Notice of Annual General Meeting and the business may be transacted
through such remote e-voting/ voting during the AGM. Instructons to Shareholders provided hereinafter for remote e-voting

explain the process snd manner for genarating/ receiving the passward, and for casting of votels) in a secure manner,
Howeaver, the Members are requested to take note of the following items:

i) Ay person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of the Company after dispatch of Annual General Meeting
Notice and holding shares as on Tuesday, 2™ September 2025, may refer to this Notice of the Annual General Meeting, posted on
Company's website www.kedenim.com for detailed procedure with regard to remote e-voting. Any person who ceases to be a
memberof the Company ason the cut-off date and is in receipt of this Notice, shali treat this Notice forinformation purpose anly.

i) The facility for voting, either through electronic vating system or polling paper shall also be made avallable at the meeting and
members attending the meeting wha have not already cast their vate by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their vote through
electronic voting system or polling paper at the Annual General Meeting. The Members who have cast theirvote by remote e-voting
prior ta the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vate again, Once the vote ona resolution is
cast by the member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

iii} The voting period begins on Saturday, 6 Septemnber, 2025 at 9:00 AM {IST] and ends on Monday, 87 September, 2025 at 5:00 PM
(15T}, During this period, sharehalders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized farm, as on the
cut-off date {record date) of Tuesday, 2 September 2025 may cast their vote slectronicslly. Thee-voting module shall be disabled by
CDSLforvoting thereafter,

v} Ir wiew of the SEBI Circular dated December 8, 2020, individuzl members helding sharas in demat mode are allowed to vate
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and DFs, Members are advised to update their mobile number and e-
mail 1D in their demat accounts in order toeaccess e-voting facility.
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THEINTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDEL/NSDL e-Voting system in case ot individual  shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through COSL e-Voting system in caseof shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in

dematmode,

il Shareholders who have already voted prier to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue

ity Pursuant ta SEBI Clrewlar No. SEBL/HO/CFD/CMO/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securitles and Exchange
Board of India [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiatons, 2015, listed entities are reqguired to provide remote e-voting
facility to its sharehalders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public

non-institutional shareholdersretall shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (E5Ps) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates

registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 105 and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficdiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the
demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register sgain with the ESPs, thereby, nat only

facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing the ease and convenience of participating in e-vating process.

Step 1 :Access through Depositories COSL/NS0L e-Voting system in case of individual  shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

[if] In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securitizs in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositeries and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mabile number and amall Id in their demat accountsin

arder to access e-Voting facillty.

Pursuant toabovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities
In Demat mode CDSLYNSDLis gliven befow:
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Type of |Login Method

shareholders

Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can lagin
Shareholders through their existing user id and password., Option will be made
holding available to reach e-Voting page without any further

securities in
Demat mode

with cpsL
Depository

authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested
to visit COSL website wwow.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
Mew System Myeasi Tab.

2) After successful login the Easi f Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your wote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit
the e-Voting service providers” website directly.

3} If the user is not registerad for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login &
Mew System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4) Alternatively, the wser can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Mumber and PAN Mo, from a e-\Voting
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the wuser by sending OTP on registered Mohile &
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Sharehaolders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1} If you are already registerad for N5SDL 1DeAS facility, please wvisit
the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https:/feservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile, Once the home page of e-Services |s
launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ sectian. A new screen will apen.
You will have to enter your User 1D and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able
to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voling service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider wehsite for casting your vate during the remote e-Voting
periad.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register QOnline
for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure
Web/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or an a mobile. CGnce the home page of o-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login® which is
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available under Shareholder/Member section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User 1D {i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NS5DL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or a-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider weabsite for casting vour vote during the
remote e-Voling period.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDEL for e-
(holding Voting facility. After Successful login, vou will be able to see e-Voting
securities in option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
demat mode} MSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
login through you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-\Voting
their Depository service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
Participants (DP) provider website for casting your vate during the remote e-Voting
period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User |Df Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. CDSLand N5SDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual  Shareholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with CDSL | contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a reguest at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll
free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with NSDL | contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990 and 1800 22 44 30

Step2 ¢ Aeeess through COSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical moda and non-individual

shareholdersin demat mode.

il  Login method for Remote e-Yoting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in Deémat

form,

I.  Theshareholders should log onto the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com,

Click on "Shareholders” module

b

Now enter your UseriD
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&) ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b ForNSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,
t)  Sharehalders halding shares in Physical Form should enter Falio Number registered with the Company,

4, Mextenterthe image Vertication as displayed and Click on Login

5. Iyouare holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia,com and voted on an earlier e~voting of

any company, then yauraxisting password s to be used,

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding
shares in Demat

PAMN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
= Shareholders who have not updated their PAN  with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

Bank Details recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

OR Date of #= If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company,

Birth (DOB) please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank
details field.

W) After antering thase detalls appropriately, cick on "SUBMIT" tak.

vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, sharsholders
hotding sharesin demat formwill now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatarily enter thair fogin
password in the new password field, Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
platform: It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care o keep your
password confidential.

vil} Far sharehalders holding shares in physical form, the detalis can be used enly for e-voting an the resolutions contalned In this

Motice.
viii} Click on the EVEM for the relevant <Company Names on which you choose tovote,

ix) On the voting pags, vou will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the aption "YES/NG” for voting. Select the
option YES ar NO as desired. The aphion YES Implies that you assent to the Reselution and option NO Implies that you dissent to

the Resolution.
¥)Click-onthe "RESCLUTIONS FILE LINK" it you wish toview the entire Resolution details.

#l) After selecting the resolution, vou have decided tovate on, clickon “SUBMIT™. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish
taconfirm your vote, click on "0OK", efse to change your vote, chck an "CANCEL™ and acoordingly modify vour vote,

A
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&li) Once you “CONFIRM” yaur vote on the resolution; youwill not be allowed to modify your vote.
#lii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on *Click here to print” option an the Voting page.

xiv) If a deamat account halder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User |0 and the image verfication code and click on

Forgot Password & anter the detalls as prompted by the system,
ww] There s also an optional provision to upload BR/POA I any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer farverification.
i) Additional Facility for Non = Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.

e Non-individual sharehalders {i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc,) and Custodians are required 1o log an to
wiwrw. evobingindia.com and register themsalves in the “Corporates” module.

sf scanned capy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emalled to

el faleds] il e

# After receiving the login details s Compliance User should be created wsing the admin lagin and password. The Compliance User

wiould be able tolink the accountis) for which they wish tovote on,

o The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be dalink in case of any wrong mapping.

w Itis Mandatory that, s scanned copy of the Board Reselution and Power of Attarney (FOA] which they have izsued in favaur of tha
Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in POF format in the system for the scrutinizer toverify the same,

‘s Altermatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resalution/ Authority letter etc.
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address viz: cskpdionk gdenmmin, if they have votad from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CD5L e-
worirg system far the scrutinizer toverify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

I, For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share
certificate (front and back], PAN [self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
amail to Company,/RTA email id,

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depositary Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)

which is mandatory while e-\Voting & |eining virtual meetings through Depository.

a2
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If you have any gueries or |ssues regarding e-Voting fram the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an emall to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 180027 5533

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Managear, {COSL}
Central Depository Services {India) Limited, & Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futures, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai - 200013 orsend an email te helpdesk, evoting @cdslindia. comorcall at toll free no, 180022 5533

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

i} The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the company a5 on the
cut-off date [record date) of Tuesday, 2™ September 2025,

i} Once the vote on a resolution |5 cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change It subsequently, Further, the

Members who have cast their vote by remate e-voting shall not vote by e-voting conducted during the Meeting,

iii] The Company has appointed Shri. M D Selvaraj, Managing Fartner of MDS & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries, Coimbatore as the
Serutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and e-voting process at the meebing in a fair and transparent manner and for the purpose

of asceriaining the majority.

Iw) The Chairman shall, at the 33" Annual General Meeting, at the end of discussion on the resalutions on which voting is to be held,
allow vating by way of electronic voting system or polling paper for all those members whe are present at the 33" Annual Genearal

Meetng but who have not cast their votes by avalling remote e-voting facility,

v] The Scrubinizer shall after the conclusion of the e-vating at the Annual General Meeting, will first count the votes cast durlng the AGM
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the
Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolldated serutinizer’s report of the total votes cast
in favour or against, it any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, whao shall countersign the same and declare the

result ofthe voting forthwith.

vl] The results shall be declared within the time stipulated under the applicable faws. The results deciared along with the consolidatad
scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the company's website www. kgdenim.com and on the website of COSLand communicated to the
Stock Exchange where the company's shares are listed.
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DIRECTORS' REFPORT

Dear Shameholders,

Your Directors hereby present the 33rd Annual Report and Audited Acoounts of the Company for the year ended 315t March,

2025,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The highlights of tha standalone and consolidated performance of your Company during the financial year 2024-25 ane given

hereunder: (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Current Previous | Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
2024-25 2023-24 | 2024-25 2023-24
Total Revenue 57T05.85 25,960 55 733220 2677405
Total Expenditure before interest, depreciation, exceptional, BA50.90 |25.891.88 | 10,140.80 | 26,579.01
axtraordinary items and income tax
Gross Profit before interest, depreciation, exceptional, (£.945.05) T7.67 {£.808.60) 195.94
extraordinary itams and income lax
Less: Finance Cost 2,888.07 2,391.47 | 301478 2,557.82
Depreciation 886,69 145721 a7 .00 1,470.86
Profit/|Loss) before Exceptional & Extra-ordinary items (6, 720.81) |(3.771.01) | (6.721.35) | {3.832.74)
Add: Exceptional items (Income) 2039.72 256.75 2039.72 256.75
Profit /{Loss) before tax (4.681.09) |(3,514.26) | (4,8681.863) | (3.,575.99)
Less: Tax Expense (Currant Tax & Defarred tax) (1.093.12) (988.21) | (1,207.83) | (1.00325)
Profit / (Loss) for the period (3.587.97) |(2.526.05) | (3.473.80) | (2.572.74)

OPERATIONS

The Operating Revenue of the Company stands reduced by 78.03% from Rs. 25,969.55 Lakh in the previous year lo Rs,
5,705.85 Lakh in the current year. After charging depreciation, interesl and other overheads the Company recorded a loss of
Rs. 4,681.09 Lakh as compared to loss of Rs. 3,514.26 Lakh in the previous year. The detalls of division-wise performance
and other gperational detalls are dizcussed at langth in the Management Discussion and Analysis section,

During the year under review, the Govermment of Tamil Madu directed through logal District administration stoppage of water
supply to the Company due to prevailing drought conditions, hence the operations had coma to a grinding halt for most part of
the year. The problems were further compounded due to the delay In sanctioning of the restructuring rellef announced by the
State Level Bankers' Committee {SLBC ) for natural calamities under Hydrological drought, as per the RBI Master Dirsctions.

After due negotiations with the Bankers, restructuring was sanctioned on 5th March 2025 and implementation is in progress.

Thera has bean nochange in the nature of business of the Company during the year undar review,
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FUTUREPROSPECTS

Apart from Denim and Apparel Fabrics, your Company is planning to manufacture and market performance fabrics using
specialized materials, technologies and value additions including moisture-wicking athietic wear, antibacterial medical
garments, and UNV-protective clothing.

The Indian context is significant due to diverse climate (demand for UV prolection, moisture management) and socielal needs
{hygleng}. Relevant categores Include functionality-based (moisture management, waterproof, thermal regulating,
antimicrobial, UV protection, flama retardant, etc.), responsiveness-based (responsive, smart, bio-responsive), and
application-based (Meditech, Sportech, Protech, Agrotech, Oekotech, Buildtech, Mobiltech, Hometech, Indutech, Packtech,
Clothtech, Geotach). Traditional Indian textiles possess some inherent functional attributes (e.g.. khadl's breathability,
cefain silks' thermal regulation).

Oppeortunities: Growing demand across diverse industries, increasing consumer awareness, strong govermnment supporl.
untapped rural markets, focus on sustainability, niche markets, integration with traditional handloems, rising populanty of
performance apparel.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Company was holding due cedification under Oceupational Health and Safety Managemenl System-1S0-45001 which is
also focused on environmental management system, The renewal of the certification is In process. It ensures that the
manufactuning of preducts is carried on without affecting the environment in the working area and surroundings.

The Company has been maintaining a hospital for serving the community, including supply of medicines at subsidized cost,
As a part of social environmental protection, agro forestry has been developed with a demao plant with the technical support of
Forest College, Coimbatore. Besides necessary essential services like providing potable drinking water to nearby villages,
financial aids to schools et are also rendered.

HEALTHAND SAFETY

The Company priortizes the health and safety of its emplovees, contractors, and visitors, holding 150 45001 certification for
its Cecupational Health and Safety Management System. This certificallon guides the Company In [dentifying and controlling
workplace hazards and continuously implermenting health and safety practices in line with the standard and legal
requirgments,

Beyond the workplace, the Company actively contributes to the well-being of employeas and the local community through
initiatives like free medical camps and regular health check-ups at its in-house hospitals. They also provide a safer workl
environment by supplying basic fire safety equipment and conducting perlodic awareness classes and drills on lopics like
firefighting, mass evacuation and first aid.

DIVIDEND

Since the Company has incurred loss during the year under review, the Board of Directors has not recommended dividend for
{heyear 2024-25.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount {o the Ganeral Reserve during the vear under review. However, the loss of
Ris.3,587 97 Lakh for the carrent year has been accumulated to deficit balance of surplus under the head othier eguity in
financial statements of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under raview the Company has not alteredimodified its authorised share capital and the Company has not
made any fresh issus ol shares.

Ason 31" March 2025, the authorized capital of the Company is Rs. 41,00,00,000/- dividad into 3,10,00,000 eguity shares of
Fs. 10/~ gach, and 10,000,000 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Bs.100 each/- and the Issusd, Subscribed
and Paid-up equity capital of the Company is Rs. 25,63, 78,250/- divided into 2,56, 37 B25 equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully
paid up.

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 11" August 2025 had approved the issuance of warranis,
gach convertible info or exchangeable for paid up equity shares of the Company, by way of a preferantial issue through
private placement offer, and also approved offer and issue of non-convertible Cumulative Redesmable Preference Shares
(NCRPS) on a private placement basis, subject to the approval of the members by means of a special resolution (s) and such
other authorities as may be required in this connection respectively.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND/SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

In tarms of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) unclaimed or unpaid dividend relating to the financial
year 2017-18 is due for remittance o the Invesior Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Cenlral
Government.

During the year under review, as per the requirements of Section 124(6) of the Act and Investor Education and Frotection
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit. Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (IEPF Rules) 1,468,188 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each
on which dividend had remained unclaimed for a period of 7 years have been transferred to the credit of the damat account
Identified by the IEPF Authority. Accordingty, 8,71,328 Equity Shares of the Company stand transferred to the credit of the
Cemat Account of the |IEPF Authority as on 31st March 2025,

WEE LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 as required under Section 92(3) of the Act can be accessed
on the Company's website at the link hitps:/iwww. kgdenim.comfannual-return/

BOARDANDITS COMMITTEE MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW

The details of the compaosition of the Board and its Committeas namaly Audit Commitles, Nomination and Remuneralion
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR )} Committee and the Meeatings held
and attendance of the Directors at such Board / Committes Meefings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report undar
relevantheads which forms a partof this Report.
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STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems lo ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. The Company has duly complied with Sacretarial Standards
Issiied by the Institute of Company Sacretarias of India on meeting of the Board of Directors {S5-1) and General Meetings
(S8-2),

DIRECTORS ' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to requirement of Section 134{3) o jJof the Act, with respedt lo Direclors Responsibility Statement, it is hersby
confirmed that:

= In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and thers are no
material departure from those standards;

«The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the loss of the Company for that pariod;

« The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records Inaccordance with the
pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Tfor safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detlecting fraud
and otharirregularities:

= The Directors have prepared the annusl accounts on a going concern basts;

= The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

« The Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all the applicable laws and such
systems were adequate and operating effectively,

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THEACT OTHER THAN
THOSEWHICHARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

There was no instance of fraud as identified or reporied by the Statulory Auditers during the course of theiraudil.
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the requirements as stipulated in
Section 149(8) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclasure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 [SEBI Listing Regulations] so as to qualify themselves as Independent Directors, Further, they have also daclared that
they are nol aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reasocnably anticipated, thal could impair or
impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence,

Based on the confirmation / disclosures received from the Directors and on verification of the relationships disclosed, the
following Mon-Executive Directors are [dentified as Indepandent:
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Mr. Jaganmohan Ramachandran, Mr. N Govindarajan, Mr. Duraipandian Kumaravel, Mr, M B Anand and Mrs. Geetha,

Pursuant to Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the names of all the
Indepandent Directors have been included in the data bank of the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE
(INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY ) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THEYEAR

The Board of Directors have evaluated the Independent Dirsctors appolnted! re-appolnied during the year 2024-25 and
opined that the integrity, expertise and experience (including proficiency) of the Independent Direclors are satisfactory.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the malerial changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company are as follows:

The Bankers consartium, led by Indian Bank and member banks viz., Union Bank of India, State Bank of India and Bank of
Maharashtra has provided restructuring of the loan faciliies under the consortium as per the natural calamity restructuring
under RBI Master Directions. All banks have implemented the restructuring scheme except for The South Indian Bank,
holding 7% share and considerad as a dissenting membaer,

The restructuring Is over a span of 5 years starting from 5" March 2025 with one year moratorium for payment of principal and
interesl repayables over the remaining 4 years, Finance cost of Rs. 2883.07 Lakh consist of Rs 1785 20 Lakh interes! whichis
converted to a funded interestterm loan repayable over a period of & years.

The Company, as part of the restructuring plan, has some non- core assets which would be sold to infuse funds to the extentof
Fs. 100 crore over a period of 2 years for the revival of the Unit. Out of this. Rs 5 crore has bean realized from sale of non-
factory land inthe month of May 2025,

Cne NBFC, with loan culstanding of Rs.625 Lakh, has not implemeanted the restructuring scheme. The Company had filed a
writ petition before the Hon'ble High Court, Madras, and aninjunclion order has been obtained, The malteris sub-judice,

Apart from the above there have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occumed between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TCO DIRECTORS® APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND OTHER
MATTERS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Acl and in terms of Regulation 19(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Company has framed a policy on nomination,
appointment and remunaration of Directors, Key Managerial Parsonnal, Senior Managameant Personnal and employeas of
the Company including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independaence of a director and othar
matters pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and in terms of Regulation 18(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
The Remunearation Policy can be accessed on the Company's website al the |ink https:/iwww. kgdenim.comiwp-contem
{uploads/Z2022/06/mominationandremunarationcommitteepolicy. pdf

S
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3 Directors viz., Shri KG Baslakrishnan, Execulive Chairman, Shri B Sriramulu, Managing Director, Shri B Srihar, Director,
have voluntarnky waived their entire remuneration for the financial year 2024-25.

COMMENTS ON AUDITORS' REPORT

There s no qualification, reservalion or adverse remark or disclaimer made by M/s. Gopalaiyer and Subramanian, Statulory
Auditors in their report. Observations madein Key Audit matters have been sufficiently explained in Noles to accounts.

Regarding the qualifications made by M/s, MOS & Associates LLF, Secretarial Audilors of the Company in their report
(Annexure-5) your Directors’ ensure timely and due compliance going forward.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THEACT

The Company has nol given any loans, provided guarantee or made investment under Section 186 of the Act during the year
under review. Further, the details of investments made dunng the earlier years are provided under the notes to Balance Sheet
appearing elsewhera in this Annusl Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions entered inlo with related parties as defined under the Act and SEBI Lisling Regulalions during the financial
year 2024-25 were in the ordinary courss of business and on an arm's lenglh basis and not materal in nature and thus a
disclosura in FormAOC-2 is exemptad.

The Policy on Refated Party Transactions can be accessed through the link at https:/fwww kgdenim. comiwp-

content/uploads/2022/06/rpt.pdf.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO

Though the Company was witnessing under utilization of capacity, efforts wera tlaken to monitor, on regular basis, the efficient
level of enargy consumption. The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
gamings and outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule &(3) of the Companies [Accounts) Rules,
2014 is fumished in Annexure-1 attached to this report,

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE
COMPANY

Tha Board had formulated a Risk Management Policy for dealing with different kinds of risks which it faces on day-to-day
oparations of the Company. The Risk Management Policy of the Company outlines different kinds of risks and risk mitigating
measures to be adopted by the Board. The Company has adeguate internal control systems and procedures to combat the
risk. The Risk management procedure is reviewed by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors on a Quarterly basis.

Further, the resulls of the risk mitigating measures implemanted by the Company are detailed below:

Toaddress and mitigate potential future water supply issues, the company has identified a strategic and sustainable solution
leveraging a newly commissioned government facilily, This proposal outlines a plan lo secure a conslslent water source,
particulady during dry seasons.
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The Company proposes utilizing freated sewage water from the new Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) recently commissioned
by tha Metiupalayam Sewage Departmentof the Tamil Madu Governmeant.

The 5TF, which bagan operations in July 2024, has a total capacity of 85 KLD (Kilo Litres per Day). The plant's water
requirameant is approximatsly 25 KLD, maaning the STR's capacily is more than sufficient o meel the Company's nesds, The
Company's unitis conveniently located just4 kms from the treatment plant, making transportation and logistics efficient. This
proximity also makes it a rational and cost-effective option compared to other available sources. This process of selling
treated sewage water to industries has already been successfully implemented by other sewage water boards in the district,
demaonstrating its viability, The treated water from the STP will serve as the raw water source, The Company can then use its
already established EfMuant Treatment Plant (ETF) to furthier process il and reduce the TDS (Total Dissolved Solids) levels to
meet the required standards, ensuring a continuous and high-guality water supply for operations.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY OM ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Board had formed a Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of Board of Directors comprising of Mr. KG
Baalakrishnan, Mr. A Velusamy and Mr. D Kumaravel. The CSR policy of the Company deals with allocation of funds,
activities, ientification of programs, approval, implementation, manitoring and reporting mechanisms under the policy.

Mr.A P Seturaaman, ceased tobea member and Mr. Mr.D:Kumaravel, Director of the Company, was appointed as Member
of the Commities with effect from 315t March 2025.

The Company incurred a lass in the immediately preceding financial year, As a result no amount was allocated towards the
CER expenditure. Consequanily, no amouni has been spent an the CER activities af the Company during the financial year
2024-25_ Therefore, the disclosure of Annual Report en Company’s CSR activities is not applicable. The pelicy relating to
CSR has been displayed on the Company's website and can be accessed at the link hitps:/fwww.kgdenim.com/wp-

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THEBOARD ONITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND OF THE INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board of Directors evaluated the annual parformance of the members of the Board
and Its Commiltees vis-a-vis the nalure of business of the Company, its performance during the year and the contribution of
aach of the Directors based on the criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committes.

The Independent Directors have alse convenad a separate meeting for this purpese and inter-alia, reviewed the
parformances of the Non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whoele and assessed the guality, quantity and timeliness
of flow of iInformation betwesn the Company and the Board.

DIRECTORS & KEY MAMAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri Batakrishnan Sriramulu (DIN: 00002560), Managing Director and Shri Ramaswamy Selvakumar {DIN: 00051608),
Whols-Time Director of the Company are llable 1o relire by rotation al this Annual General Mesting and being eligible, offer
themseives for re-appointment. Accordingly, your directors recommend their reappointment.

During the year under review, Mr. N Govindarajan (DIN: 003668402) was re-appointed as Non-Executive Independemt
Director of the Company for the 2 term of 5 consscutive years with effect from 28" July 2024 and approved the continuation
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of his directorship on attaining the age of 75 years on 28" December 2024 by the members al the Annual General Meeting
held on 30" September 2024,

The Board of Directors al their meeting held on 24" August 2024 had appointed Mr. N B Anand (DIN: 00T85555) and Mrs,
Geetha (DIN: 10753728} as Additional Director{s} in the capacily as Non-Executive Independent Director(s) of the Company
for a period of first term of 5 consecutive years with effect from 24" August 2024 and 29" August 2024 respectively and
subsequently, oblained approval from members al the Annual General Meeting held on 30" Seplember 2024 for the said
dppointment(s).

Mr. Balakrishnan Srihari {DIN: 00002556} resigned as Managing Director but continued as Non-Executive Director of the
Company with efizct rom 317 March 2025,

Mr. & P Saturaaman (DIN; 07331898) ratired consequent to the complation of his 2™ term of 5 consecutive years, with effect
fraom 31" March 2024 as an Independent Dirsctor of the Company. The Board wishes to place on record thelr sincers
appreciation for the valuable services renderad by Mr. AP Seturaaman during his tenure of office as Director of the Company.

Mr. Sivagamlinathan Manickam resigned and in his place Mrs, Ramaprabha was appolnted as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with effect from 14™ August 2024 respectively.

Mr. P Rajesh, resigned as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 17 October 2024 and
in hiz place, Mr. M. Balaji was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 25"
Decembar 2024,

key Managerial Personnel of the Company as required pursuant to Section 2{51)and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 are -

8. GovindaswamyMaidu Balakrishnan - Executive Chairman,
Sri. B. Sriramulu - Managing Director,

Sri. R Selvakumar- Whole-time Diractor

CARamaprabha S- Chiel Financial Officer and

Sri. M Balaji - Company Secrelary.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTVENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Campany has 2 (Two) subsidiaries namely, Trigger Apparels Limited and KG Denim (LSA} Inc,
Trigger Apparels Limited

Trigger Apparels Limited is angagead in the marketing of readymade garments. The turnover of the Company during the year
under review was Bs. 1,702.68 Lakh as against Rs. 1,698.93 Lakh dunng the previous year, Duning the year the Company
has earmned a net profit of Rs. 12.58 Lakh as against a net loss of Rs. 48.54 Lakh during the previous year.

KG Denim {USA) Inc.

The turnover of the Company during the year under review was Rs. 4,85 Lakh (INR} as against Rs. 57.49 Lakh {INR} during
the pravious year. Dunng the year the Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 1.81 Lakh as against a netloss of Rs. 0,15 Lakh
in the pravious year. The operations of the Company are expected toimprove in tha forthcoming reporting period.
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The Consalidated Financial Statements incarpoarating the Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies are altached 1o
the Annual Report as required under the applicable Accounting Standard(s) and the SEB| Listing Regulations. The
Standalone Annual Financial Statements of Trigger Apparels Limited and KG Denim (USA) Inc., subsidiary companies are
posted on the Company's wabsite al the link hitpswww.kodenim.com/investors-page/annual-reporis/

The Company does not have any Joint Yentura or Associate Companies. The Statement containing salient features of the
Financial Statemeant of the subsidiaries pursuant to the provision of Section 129 of the Act |s attached harswith in Form AQC-1
andis attached as Annexura-2 to this report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Since the Company has not accepted any fixed deposit covered under Chapter W of the Act, there are no depaosils remaining
unclaimed or unpaid as on 31st March, 2025 and accordingly, the question of default in repayment of deposits or payment of
interest thereon during the year does not arise,

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATION IN FUTURE

There was no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concem
status and Company's operation in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has an adequate Intarnal Control System, commeansurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations.
The Audit Committee of the Board pericdically reviews the Intemal Financia! Control Systems and their adequacy and
recommends comective action as and whan nacessary to ensure that an effective internal control machanism is in place.

The Directors confirm that the Internal Financial Control systems are adequate with respect to the operations of the
Company. The report of Auditors pursuant to Section 143{3)(1) of the Act cartifying the adequacy of Internal Financial Control
is annexad with the Auditors Report,

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to Saction 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M's. Gopalaiyer and
Subramanian {(Firm Reglstration Mo, 0002605), Chartered Accountants, Colmbalore, have been appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 30th Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2022 for a perod of 5 (five)
conseculive years from the conclusion of the 30th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 35th Annual General
Meeting to be held in the year 2027,

The Company has obtained the necessary certificate from the said auditors confirming that they are eligible to continue and
hold office as the Statutory Auditors of the Company,
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SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to Regulation 244 of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 and the provisions
af Sections 179 & 204 ol the Companias Acl, 2013, réad with the Companies (Maetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
and subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting, the Board of Directors of the Company
have recommended the appointment of MDS & Asseciates LLP, Company Secretaries, Coimbalore as Secralarial Auditors of
the Company for a first term of § (five ) consecutive financial years commencing from the financial year 2025-26.

MDS & Associates LLP have consented and confirmed their eligibility for appointment as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company. The necessary Resolution for their appointment hias been included in the Agenda of the Annual General Meeting
Motice far the approval of the Members.

The reperi of the Secretarial Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 is annexed as Annexure-3 io this Report
DISCLOSURE ON MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THEACT

The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act is applicable to the
Company and accordingly the cost accounts and records are made and maintained.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
CODE. 2016 DURING THE YEAR

The Company has total Trade Creditors of Ris.10598 Lakh as on 31.03.2025. Out of these, some trade creditors have issued
notices for recovery of their cutstanding dues ason 31.03.2025, amounting to Rs.2252 1akh. The Company is negaotiating with
such creditors for amicable setilements and some setllements have already happened and MOU has been negotiated with
the parties remaining amounts.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

The disclosure under this clause s not applicable as the Company has not undertaken any one-time setilement with the
banks orfinancial institutions.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The managemant had paid full wages even during non-oparational and under utilized menths and fried to retain the
workforce, The Company conlinues lo enjoy & cordial relationship with its employees at all levels. The olal strength of
employeesason March 31, 2025, was 152,

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

The Company has complied with the provisions relaling to the consbitubion of Internal Complaints Commities under the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace in ling with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
{Prevention, Prahibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, An Internal Complaints Commiltee has been sel up lo define the policy
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and redress complaints received. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.
The following is 8 summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the year 2024-25:

I. Number of complaints received - Nil
Il, Number of complaints disposed of - NA
. Number of complaints pending - NA

FARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement pursuant o Section 134 of the Act read with Ihe Companias (Accounts) Rules, 1975 and Section 197(12) of the
Actread with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnal) Rules, 2014, is attached to
this reporl as Annexure-4,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Regulation 343} of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a report on Carporate Governance along with a Certificata from
the Company Secretary in Practice confirming the compliance of the pravisions of Corporate Governance, is attached to this
report as Annexure-5 which forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committes of the Board of Directors has been duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of
the Act. The details relating to the composition, meetings and funclions of the Committee are st out in the Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this Annual Reporl. The Board has accepted the Audit Committee recommendations
during the year whenever required and hence no disclosure is required under Section 177(8) of the Act with respect to
rejection of any recommendations of Audit Committes by the Board.

CEOQ/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required under Regulation 33(2)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Managing Director and (he Chief Financial Officer
of the Company have furmished necessary cerfificate to the Board on the Financial Statements presented, which is annexed
te this regport.

VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has provided for adequate safeguards to dea! with Instances of fraud and mismanagement and to repor
concerns aboul unathical behavior or any viclation of the Company's Code of Canduct, During the year under review, thera

was no complaint received under this mechanism. The policy can be accessed on the Company's website at the link
https:{/www kadenim comiwp-content/uploads/2023/09/KGDL_Whistle-Blower-Policy pdf

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statement in this Directors’ Report & Management Discussion and Analysis contain forward lpoking statemants
regarding Company’s projections & expaciations and the actual results could differ materially from those expressed on
account of various faclors like raw material prices, change in demand, government regulation efc., and the readers are
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cautioned against placing undue reliance on the same,
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors take this opportunity to place on record their sincere thanks to the Banks and Financial Institutions. Insurance
Companies, Central and State Governmant Departmants and the shargholders for their support and co-operation extended
to the Company from time to time. The Directors further wish to place on record their appreciation for the co-operation
axtended by all sections of the employees.

Our humble prayers to S Venkateswaraswamy Var of Then Thirumalai for the prosperity of the Company.

By Order of the Board
For K G DENIM LIMITED
Coimbatore
11.08.2025
KG Baalakrishnan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00002174
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PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO SECTION 134{3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANMIES
(ACCOUNTS)RULES, 2014

A Conservation of Energy:
Asthe Company had operated at vary low level no specific measures wera laken for energy conservation, However, proper
manitoring was done o prevent wastages

(i) Siteps Taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of anergy:
Mo specific measuras

(i) Capital Investment on energy conservation equipment; Mil
B. Technology absorption & Research & Developmentl

1) Efferts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovatien: Nil

2} The Bensfits derived like product improvement, cost reduction. product development or import substitution: NIl

3} Information of Imported Technology (imported during the last 5 yvears from the beginning of the Financial Yaar)

a) Technology Imported MNone
bl Year of Import MoA.
¢} Technology absorption MN.A

4) Expenditure incurred on Research & Development:

Foreign Exchange earnings & outgo:
The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo are furnished below:

EXPENDITUREON R & F 2024-25 2023-24
Capital - -
Revenue = 39.23
Total - 3823
R & D Expendilure as a percontae of Turnover - 0.15%
Particulas 20024-25 2023.24
Foregin Exchange Eamings 958.78 6B23.85
Foregin Echange Outgo 36,78 BE.TO

By Order of the Board
For K G DENIM LIMITED

, KG Baalakrishnan
Place; Coimbatore Executive Chairman
Date : 11" August 2025 DIN: 00002174
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Form AOC-1

Annexura-2

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint

ventures

Part "A": Subsidiary

Sl No | Particulars Details Details
1. MName of the subsidiary Trigger Apparels Limited KG Denim (USA) Inc.
2. Reporting pencd for the subsidiary 01.04 2024 10 31.03.2025 07.04.2023 to 31.03.2024
concerned, If different  from the
holding company's reporting period .
3. Reporting currency and Exchange Rupees (in Lakhs) usD 5
rate as on the last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
4. Share capital 600,00 T
5. Reserves & sumplus {2185.28) (203423)
% | Toikascls 3688.10 152462
T Total Liabilities 527136 355185
8. Investments Nil Nil
B Tumover 1702 68 5585
10. Prafit { (loss) before taxation 1.28 {2087.00)
11. | Provision for taxation {2.35} Mil
12. | Profit | (Ioss) after taxation 10.83 {2087}
13. Propesed Dividend Mil il
14. | % of shareholding 75% 100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidianas which are yel lo commeancs operalions; Mil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liguidaied or sold during the year: Nil

Part “B": Assoclates and Joint Ventures - MIL

Place: Caimbatare
Date : 11" August 2025

By Crder of the Board

For K G DENIM LIMITED

KG Baalakrishnan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00002174
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Annexure-3
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
[Fursuant to Section 204({1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Cempanies (Appointmenl and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and pursuant o Regulation 244 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
To
The Members.
K G DENIM LIMITED
(CIM: L17115TZ1992PLCO03TI8)
Then Thirumalai
Coimbatare - 5471302,

Wae have conducted the secratarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Mis. K G Denim Limited (hersinafter called "the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us & reasonable basls for evaluating the corporate conducts ( statutory
compliances and exprasaing our opinion thergon.

Based on our verification of Mis. K G Denim Limited's books, papers, minute books. forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized reprasentatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we heraby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit penod covering the financial year ended on 317 March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place o the
gxtent inthe manner and subject o the reporting made heresinafter.

We have examined the books, papears, minute books, fTorms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial yearended on 31" March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thersunder;
i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation ) Act, 1956 {'SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;
[if) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1299 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
DirectInvestment and Overseas Direct Investment

v) The following Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Beard of India Act, 1982 (SEBIAct'): -
a} The Securities Exchangs Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis ) Regulations, 2015;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

c] The Securitles and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; and

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Deposilories and Paricipants) Regulations, 2018
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secratarial Standards with respect to Board Meetings (55-1) and General Maatings {55-2) issued by the Institute of
Campany Secretares of india (MCS51);

b) Listing Agreement entered info by the Company with the BSE Limited,

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations and Standards
etc., mantioned above excapt to the extent of the following!

1.The listed entily has submitted the disclosure of Related Party Transactions for the half year(s) ended 31st March 2024 and
30th September 2024 in XBRL moda on 30th May 2024 and 141h November 2024 respactively, which wera beyvond the
prescribed time under Regulation 23(2). Conseguantly, in respect of the daelay for the half year ended 31st March 2024, the
BSE Limited has imposed a fine of Rs. 5900/- and the Company has paid the said fine to BSE Limited on 2ndJuly 2024,

2. The listed entity {a) has not submitted the additional details/ information which are required to ba given while disclosing
certain events or information coverad under Regulation 30 read with Schedule |1l of SEBI {Listing Obligaticn and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the relevant circulars 1o Stock Exchange; (b)) has submilted certain events or
information covered under Regulation 30 read with Scheduls (Il of SEB| (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 to Stock Exchange beyond the prascribed time,

3. The listed eniity has submitted the Integrated filing (financial) in respect of the Unaudited Standalone and Consolidated
financlal results for the guarter ended 31st December 2024 to the Stock Exchange on B" March 2025, which was beyond the
prascribed time,

4, Thelisted entity has submitled the Audited Standalons and Consclidated financial resulls for the quartsr and year ended
31" March 2024 on 29" May 2024 whereas the Statement of Impact of Audit Qualifization in respect of the Statutory Auditors
Report on the said resuls were submitted in XBRL mode on 6th June 2024, which was beyond the prescribed time.

5. The Annual Performance Reports (APR) with respect to the foreign subsldiary of the Company Le., KG Denim (USA) Inc.
wieare notl submitted by the Company o he designated AD bank, which is not in compliance with the Foralgn Exchange
Managemeant Act, 1999,

Wea further raport that, during the year under review, there were no actions’ events in pursuant of the following Rules/
Fegulations requiring compliance thereof by the Company:

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018,

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity} Regulations 2021;
¢, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021,
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and

&. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021
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We further report that based on the information provided by the Company, Its officers and authorized representatives, there
are no laws specifically applicabls 1o the Company.

We further report thal having regard lo the compliance system pravalling in the Company and on the review of quarlerly
complianca repors taken on record by the Board of Directors and on examination of the relevant documents and records in
pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the labour and environmental laws as applicable,
except to the extent of the following:

1. During the year under review, there was a delay in payment of wages to the workers and staffs of the Company which
is not in compliance with the Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and the Payment of Wages Act, 1936,

Z. The Company is irregular in depositing undisputed statutory dues of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance and
Tamil Nadu Labour Welfare Fund to the appropriate authonty which is notin compliance with The Employees Provident Fund
Act, 1952 & Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 and The Tamil Madu Labour Welfare Fund Rules. 1973,

3. The amount of graluity is not pald within 30 days by the Company to its employees and Is still pending for settlement with
simple interest, which is not in compliance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872 and The Payment of Graluity (Cantral)
Rules, 1872.

4. The Company has not made the payment of bonus to its workers and staffs for the financial year 2023-24 under the
Payment of Bonus Act, 1965,

We further report, that the compliance of applicable financial laws, like dirsct and indirect tax laws by the Company have not
been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and other designated
professionals.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company Is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, Indepandent Directors and & Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were camed oul in compliancs with provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and ebtaining further infarmation and clarifications on the
agendd items before the mesting and for meaningful participation at the mesting.

All decisions at Board meetings and Committee Meetings are camied out unanimously as recorded In the minutes of the
meatings of the Board of Directors or Committess of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adeguale syslems and processes in the Company commensurate wilh the size and
oparations of the Company to menitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the pericd, there were no instances of:

s Public / Rights / Preferential issue of Shares ( Debentures / Sweat Equity.

» Redemption / buy-back of securities

» Major decision taken by the members pursuant to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013,
« Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.

« Foreign lechnical collaborations.

i d




K G DENIM LIMITED

For MDS & Associates LLP

Company Secrelaries
Flace: Coimbatore
Date: 11.08.2025

M.D.Selvaraj

Managing Partner

Membership No.. FCS 960 C P No.; 411

Peer Review No. GAGE2025

UDIN: FOO0960G000237307

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure Aand forms an integral part of this report.
‘Annexure A’
ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT ISSUED BY COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

To

The Members,

K G DENIM LIMITED

(CIN: L17115T21992PLC003T98)
Then Thirumalai,

Coimbatore - 641302,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letier,

1. Maintenance of Secratarial records is the responsibility of the managemeant of the Company. Our responsibility isto
express an opinion on these secretanal records based onour gudit.

2. We have followed the audil practices and processes as ware appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basks to ensure that comect
facts are reflected in secretanal records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have nol verified the correctness and approprialeness of financlal records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, we have oblained the Management represenlation aboul the compliance of laws, rules, and
requlations and happening of events ele.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the
responsibility of managemaent, Cur examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

B. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MDS & Associates LLP

Company Secretaries
Place: Coimbators
Diate - 11.08.2025

M.D.Selvara]

Managing Partner

Membarship No.: FCS 260 C P Na.; 411

Peer Review Mo. 6468/2025

UDHN: FOOO0S60GH00937307
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Annexure - 4

Statement pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Average percentile increase already
made in the salarles of employees
other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year and its
comparison  with  the  percentile
increase in the managerial
remuneration and justificationthereao
fendanyexcaptional
circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration

remuneration of employees. Thare was no
increasa in the remuneration of the Executive

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Name of KMP Designation Ratio to
director to the median remuneration of median
the employees of the Company for the Shrl KG Exacutive -
financial year and percentage i
increase of each Director, MD, ED, Eaalakrrslhnan Chairman
CFO and Company Secratary in the Shri B Sriramulu Managing -
financial year: Directar

Sh I'l E Srlhal‘l D.ireﬁtar -
Smt Ramaprabha 5 | GFO -
Shri M Balaji Cs -

Mot paid any remuneration to other Momn -
Executive Directors

2. Percentage increase in remuneration Mame of Director Designation Percentage
of each Director, Chief Financial _increase
Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Shri KG Exacutive z
Company Secretary or Manhagsr, If y i
any, in the financial year Baalakrishnan Chairman

Shri B Srirarmulu Managing -

Director

Shri B Srihari Director -
Shri S Manickam CFO -
Smt P Krishnaveni Cs -
Shri P Rajesh CS -
Mot paid any remuneration to other Non-
Executive Directors

3. The median remunaration for the Rs.1,10,062/-
year2023-24 is

4. The percentage decrease in the 8.22 %
medianremuneration of employees in
the financial year

& The number of permanent employees 667
cnthe rolls of Company

6. There has been an decrease of 8.22 % in the

Chairman and Managing Directors.

19




K G DENIM LIMITED

T Affirmation that the remuneration is
asper lhe remunaration policy of the
Company

Your Directors affirm that the remuneration
is as per the remuneration policy of the
Company.

Disclosure under Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 Particulars of Top Ten Employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn:

Name, Gross Date of | Qualification | Percentage | Previous
Designation Remuneration Commencement & of equity Employment
ZAge of the paid (in Lakhs.) of Employment | Previous shares
Employee (Experience in year| Employment held
K.G Balakrishnan &60.00 03.11.2003 E.Com, BL 10,06 A
Exscutive 20 Years
Chairman & 83
B Sriramulu 45.00 03.11.2003 B Tech, 861 MA
Managing MS 20Years
Director & 56
B Srihari 48.00 03.11.2003 B Tech, 87 MA
Managing ME 20Years
Director & 54
Ramaprabha 5 11.80 09.11.2023 CA Nl ICICI Bank - § Years
Ghief . Intermediate Level
Financial of G5 Mis. PN, Ragavendra
Officer & 40 Rao & Co.,
Pramura Software
P Ltd
S Gﬂpiﬂath, 14.81 01.04,1994 B.Sc Mil -Eharalh Information
Head of Sales Computer Technology,
&53 Soence, 30 Coimbatore -1
Years Year 8 Months
Srinivasan R, 12.34 01.07.2021 MA, MBA Mil Angio French Texiles,
General Manager (Marketing) ucherry — 8 Years
& 61 ,38 Years PudUCheny )
Sebvakumar R, 14.27 01.01,1993 B.E Demt, Mil MA
Whole - time 30 Years
Director & 54




K G DENIM LIMITED

Pranaw

Sriraman,
VicePresident —
Home Texliles & 30

Kalyanasundaram 5
Vice President -
Sates

21.70

10.01

17.11.2047

24.07.1986

B.E, 5¥ears 0.26 A,

MBA, 26 Yedrs MIL 1. Arvind Mills
Limitad,
Ahamadbad
5 Years

During the firancial year 2024-25, there were no employees in the Company who was in receipt of remuneration exceading
in aggregate Rs.1.02 Crores, if employed for the whole year and Rs.8.50 Lakh per month, if emplovad for any part of tha

year,

Mote:

1. Allemployees are on the permanent rolis of the Company,

2. Except Shri B Sriramulu, Shri B Srihari and Shri Pranav Sriraman who are a relalives of Shri KG Baalakrishnan, no other
employes is relative (in terms of the Companies Act, 2013} of any Director of the Company, Further, no employes of the
Company is coverad by Rule 5200 of the Companies {Appointmant and Remuneration of Managerial Persannel) Rules,
2014, that |s employes, holding by himsell or with his family, shares of 2% or maore in the Company and drawing
remunearation inexcess of a Managing Director.

3. The remuneration detalls are for the year 2024-25 and all olher particulars are az on 31"March, 2025

Flate, Coimbatore

Date - 11" August 2025

By Order of the Board
For K G DENIM LIMITED

K G Baalakrishnan
Executive Chairman
DIMN: 00002174
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2025, In terms of
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Regulrements) Regulations, 2015
(*Listing Regulation”).

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to building long term sharehelders’ value with full emphasis on Corporate Governance. Tha
Company communicates corporate, financial and product information online on its website — www. kgdenim.com. The
Company believes that all operations and actions must serve the goal of enhancing overall sharehalder value, over a sustained
pariod of time. The Company's philosophy envisages transparency, accountability and equitable bensfits of highest level inits
maximum possible operaling fislds and interaction with all its related stakeholders including esteemed Shareholders,
Workmen, Officers, Government, Banks, Vendors and Customers.

2. BOARDOFDIRECTORS

a.Composition, Category and Attendance of Directors:

The Company's Board of Direclors as on 315t March 2025 comprised of Ten (10) Directors. ILhas an appropriate combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs"), to ensure independent functioning. The Board presently comprises of Ten
Directars, of which Four (4) are Execulive Directors and Six (6) are Mon-Executive Directors Including Five(s) Indspeandent
Directors (including ona Woman Director) and one (1) is Nen-Executive Non-Independant Director. Shri. GovindaswamyNaidu
Balakrishnan is the Executive Chairman, Shri. Balakrishnan Sriramulu is the Managing Director and Shr R Selvakumar is a
Whole-lime Direclor and all others are Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The Direclors are professionals who have
expertise in their respective functional areas and bring a wide range of skills and experience to the Board,

Ag on March 31, 2025, the composilion of the Beard is in conformily with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("CA 20137}, read with the relevant rules made thereundear.

To ensure effeclive participation of all Directors, as a matter of practice. an annual calendar for Board, Commitiees of the Board
and General Meeting(s) of the Company are determined and intimated to the Directors well in advance. The Company ensures
that timely and relevant information is made available to all Directors in advance, to facilitate their effective participation and
contribution during meetings and delibarations.

The Board has met Seven times during the financial year on 29.05.2024, 14.08.2024, 24.08.2024, 14.11.2024, 25.12.2024,
11.02.2025 and 31.03.2025. The necessary quorum was present for all the mestings. The details of allendance of each
Directar at Board Meetings, last Annual General Meeting ("AGM") and thelr Directorship in other Indian Companies and
membership in the Commitiees thereof are given balow;
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given below:

Name of the Category Attendance Number of Number of
Director Particulars Directorships Board &
Board sk held in other Cﬂmmiﬂaie
Meeting | AGM Companies # Memberships
held in other
Companies
£ (Chairman /
Member)
Shri.kK.G. Balakrishnan Executive 7 Yes 3 -
DIN: 00002174 Chairman
Promoter
Shri.B. Sriramulu Managing 7 Mo 2 -
DIM: 00002560 Direclor/Fromoter
* Shri.B: Srihan Mon-Executive T Mo 3 -
DIN: 00002556 Non-Indepandent
Y Promoler
Shri.ANelusamy Mon-Executive! 5] Mo 3 -
DI 00002204 Mon-Independant
Shri. M. Govindarajan | Non-Executive/ 7 No - -
DIN: 00366402 Independent
Shri. Jaganmohan Mon-Executive/ 7 Mo - =
Ramachandran Independent
DI 09125603
Shri. Duraipandian MNon-Executive/ 7 Yes - -
Kumaravel Independant
DM 00004827
Shri. R.Selvakumar Whaole-time T Yes - -
DIN: 00051608 Director
Shrl. N B Anand Mon-Executive/ 2 Yes - -
DIN: 00785555 Independent
w.e.f 24.08,2024)
=Smt Geetha MNon-Executive/ 4 Yes - -
DIN: 10753728 Indepandant
(w.e.f 20.08.2024)
Smt. Lakshmi Pattabi | Non-Executive/ 1 MA - -
Raman Indepandent
DI 09488828
(Resigned on
15.07.2024)
Shri. AP Seturaaman| Non-Executive B Yes - -
DIN: 07331898 Independant
(Retired on
31.03.2025)
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*Bhri.B. Srihari resigned as Managing Director and continuing as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company
with effect from 31st March 2025,

# Excludes directorships in Private Companles, Forelgn Companies, Section 8 Companies & Govl. Companies,

§ Only Audit Committes and Stakeholders Relationship Committes are consldered as par Regulation 26 of SEBI Listing
Regulations:

Shri Balakrishnan Sriramulu, Managing Direclor and Shn Balakrishnan Srihard, Non-Executive Director, are sons of Shr
GovindasamyNaidu Balakrishnan, Executive Chairman of the Company. None of the other directors on the Board of the
Company are related lo each other.

Mone of the Dirsctors holds dirsctarship in more than 20 Companies (including limit of maximom directaorships in 10 public
companies) pursiant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. Necessary disclosures
regarding Board (in terms of Regulation 17Aof SEBI Listing Regulations ) and Committes positions (in terms of Regulation 26
of SEBI Listing Regulations) as on March 31, 2025, have been mada by all the Directors of the Company. Further, none of the
Directors including Independent Directars hold directerships in mors than the maximum number of Directorships prescribed
under Regulation 17Aof the Listing Regulation.

As per the disclosures received from the directors, none of the directors serve as member of mare than 10 Committees nor
thay serve as the Chairman / Chairperson of mere than 5 Commitiees, as specified undear the Listing Regulations,

b. Other Directorships in listed entities:
Mone of the Director holds directorship inother listed entity.

c.NMumber of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors;

Statement showing number of Equity Sharss held by the Non-Execuiive Direclors as on 31st March, 2025

SI. No Name of Directar No. of equity Shares held
1.| Shri. Ayyalusamy Velusamy 500
2. Shr. N. Govindarajan =
3.| Shri. Jaganmohan .

Ramachandran
4.| Shri. D. Kumaravel -
5. Shri. N B Anand -
(wef 24 082024)
6. | Smt Gestha -
fwel 20.082024)
7.| Shri. AP Seturaaman .
(upto  31.03.2025)

The Company has notissued any type of convertible instrumeants to non-executive directors,
Thera has heen no matenally relevant pecuniary fransaction or relationship betwean the Company and its Non-Executive
Directors during the year

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1){b) of the Listing Regulations read with
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) along with rules framed thereunder. In tarms of Regulation 25(8) of
Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are nol aware of any circumstance
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or situation that exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Every
Independant Director has made requisite declaration under regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations and section 149(7)
of CA 2013 that hedshe mesls the “orteria of independencs” as reguired under regulation 16{1) (b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations and section 149(6) of the CA 2013, respectively. Based on the declarations received from the Independent
Directors, the Board of Direciors is of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the SEBI
Listing Regulations and the CA 2013 and are indepandent of the managament.

Independent Director Databank Registration:

As per the requirements of the Companias Act, 2013, all the Independant Directors of the Company have applied online to the
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs for inclusion of their name in the Independent Director Databank and obtained registration
thereof as per Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Cualification of Directors) Rules, 2014

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that their name is
included in the data bank as per Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

Familiarization Program for Independent Directors:

The Board Members are regularly updated on changes in Corporate and allied laws, Taxation Laws and malters thereto. In
lhe quarterly Board Meetings, Managing Director and Senior Managamen! conduct a session for the Board Members 1o
share updates about the Company's business strategy,. operations and the key trends in the industry relevant o the
Company. These updates help the Board Membsrs {o keep themselves abreast with the key changes and their impact on the
Company,

At the time of the appointment of an Independent Director, 8 meeting 15 set up with the Key Managerial Personne| to discuss
the functioning of the Board and the nature of operations of the Company.

The Familiarization Program for Independent Direclors have been posted on the Company's website at the link
https://www. kgdenim.comfwp-content’uploads/2023/8/familarisation-programme-independent-directors-06032023-1-1.pdf

Key Board Qualifications, skills, expertise and attributes:

The Board of Directors comprises of qualified members who bring in the required skills, competence and expertise that allow
them to make effective decisions or contributions to the Board, its Committeas and the managament.

The list of core skills [ experlise /) competencies identified by the Board of Direclors as required in the conlext of Company's
BusinessVertical{s) and those already available with the Board are as follows

Category Expertise Skifl / Compefencies
Mon-Executive In= depth Industry Knowkedge
Non-Independent Directory Taxtile Entrepreneunal Governance
Business Policies Leadership
Legal and Regulatory Framework Technical
Strategic Management Analytical
Organizational Technological
Planning
Resource Managament and
Utilisation
Peopla Management
Communication
Behavioural
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In-depth Industry Knowladge

Technical ! Professional

Independant :
Directors Textile Anatytical
Businass Policies Technological
Audit, Taxation and Finangial Behavioural
Management
Lagal and Regulatory Framework
In- depth Industry Knowled /amarce
ri= tepth Indus nowledge .
i g g Leadership
) ) Textile Tochnical
Executive Directors B echnica
i Anatytical

Audit, Taxatlonand Financial

Management

Lagat and Regulatory Framework Strategic
Management

Crrganizetional

Technological

Flannlng

Resource Management and Litisation
Peopie Management

Communication

Behavioural

In the table balow, the specific areas of focus or expertise of individual Board Members have been highlighted. However,
the absence of a mark against a Director’'s name may not mean that the Director does not possess the said qualification or

skill,
Board Qualifications — Specific Area of Expertise
Board
Service, [Peenmpiog Sales | | man
Name of Ihe|  edambin Lagaland |DUtinessyy Firianchl | *™ | Resourcd
Directors/Skills | oo P EENANT | oirategy| & Marketin
Governanc i 5
5 Innovation E
Shri KG Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Baalakrishnan
{DIN: DO002174)
Shri B Sriramulu Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
(DIN: 00002560)
Shri. B Srihari Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
(DIN: DODO2556)
Shri. A Velusamy Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
(DIN: 00002204)
shri. N Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - =
Govindarajan
(DIN: D0366402)
Shri. Jaganmohan Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - -
Ramachandran
{DIN: 09125603)
Shri. D Kumaravel Yes Yes Yes Yes - -
(DIN: 00004827) -
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Shri. R.Selvakumar Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - Yes
DIN: 00051608
Shri. N B Anand Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - -
DIN: 00785555
(w.e.f 24.08.2024)
Smt Geetha Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - -
DIN: 10753728
(w.e.f 29.08.2024)
Smt. Lakshmi Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - -
Pattabi Raman
(upto 15.07.2024)
Shri AP Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - -
Seturaaman
(upto 31,03.2025)

Resignation of Independent Director before the expiry of tenure:

During the year under review, Smt. Lakshmi Pattabi Raman resigned from the position of Independent Directorship before
the expiry of her tenure with effect from 15th July 2024 due fo personal reason and other professional commitmeants and
confirmed that there was no other malerial reason other than the above as stated for her resignation.

Separate meeting ofthe Independent Directors:

During the year, the meeting of Independent Directors was held on 11th Fabruary, 2025 without the attendance of Non-
Independeant Diractors and members of Management pursuant to Schedule |V of the Companiaes Act, 2013. The following
matters, infer alia, were discussed in detail;

i. Review of the performance of Non-indepandent directors and the Board as a whole;

ii. Review of the perfermance of the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, taking into account the views of Non-
Executive Directors.

iil, Assessment of the guality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board Committees play a crucial rele in the governance structure of the Company and help in delegating particular
matters that reguire greater and more focusad attention. The Board has constituted the following committees of Directors to
deal with matters referred to il for timely decisions.

1) Audit Committes 2) Nomination and Remuneration Committes, 3} Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 4) Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committes, 5) Related Party Transaction (RPT) Commitiee.
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3.  AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Brief dascnption of terms of reference:

The Board has constituted a welt-qualified Audit Committee In compllance with Section 177 of the Aot read with Regulation 18
of the Listing Regutations. &ll the members of the Audit Commitize have knowledge of finance, accounts and enginearing
industry.

The role, powers and functions of the Audit Committee are as per Section 177 of the Act and under Regulation 18 of the
Listing Reqgulaticns.

The Committes acts as a link between the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company. It Is
authorized to select and establish accounting policles, review reports of the Statutory and the Intermal Auditors and meet with
them to discuss thelr findings, suggestions and other related matters. The Commitles s empowered o recommend the
appointmeant and remunaration payable to the Statutory Auditors,

During the year under review, the Commitlee met Six (6) times on 29.05.2024, 14.08.2024, 14.11.2024, 25.12.2024,
11.02.2025 and 31.03 2025, The Composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance of sach member of the Committes
aregiven below.

The Composition, name of members, mestings and attendance during the year:

Name of the Members Ca No. of Meetings No, of Meetings
a0y held during the year attended
Shri.Jaganmahan .
Ramachandran - Non-Executive / & 6
{Chairman) Independent Director

Shri.N. Govindarajan, Non-Executive /

(Member) Independent Diractor 6 B
Shri.Duraipandian Kumarave| Mon-Exscutive /
iMember) Indapendent Director NA NA
(w.e f31.03.2025)

Nen-Executive /|
Shri AP Seturaaman —{Member) Indspendent Director i 5

{upto 31.03.2025)

The Chairman of the Audit Committes did not attend the Annual General Mesting ("AGM") held on 30.09.2024, due to
personal pre-occupations. A member of the Committee nominated by him attended the AGM on his behalf.

The Company Secratary of the Company acts as the Secretary of the Committea.
4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Brief description of terms of reference:

The constitution and terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committes are as per the provision under
Regqulation 19 of tha Listing Regulations and Section 178 ol the Companies Act, 2013,

The terms of reference of this committes has been mandated with the samie as specified in Reguiation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule |l of the Listing Reguiation and alsowith the requirament of Section 178 of lhe Companies Act, 2013,

During the year under review, the Committee met three times on 14,08.2024, 24,08 2024 and 25.12.2024.
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The Composition, name of members, meetings and attendance during the year:
Riirise of the: Membais Cltiiiony Mo. of Meetings heald Mo. of Meetings
during the year attended

Shri_Jaganmohan MNon-Executive 3 3
Ramachandran Indepaendant
{Chairman) Director
Shri.ANelusamy Mon-Executive / 3 2
(Member) Mon -Independent

Director
MM . Govindarajan Mon-Executive 3 3
(Member) independent

Director
Shri-Duraipandian Mon-Exacutive A, MNA
Kumarawvel Independent
iMember) Directar
(w.e.l 31.03.2025) - _
Shri. AP Seturaaman Mon-Executive 3 3
(Member) Independent
(upto 31.03.2025) Director

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee did not attend the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") held on
30.09.2024, due 1o personal pre-occupations, A member of the Committee nominated by him attended the AGM on his
behalf.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secratary of the Committes.

The Committee looks into and determines the Company's policy on remuneration packages of the Executive directors,
Senior Management and other employeses.

This Committee shall identify the persons, who are qualified to become Directors of the Companyiwho may be appointad in
Sanior Managemant in accordance with tha criteria laid down, recommeand to the Board their appointment and removal and
also shall carry out evaluation of every Director's performance. Committee shall also formulate the criteria for determining
gualifications, positive attributes, independence of the Directors and recommend to the Board a Policy, relating to the
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees,

Performance Evaluation of Non-Executive and Indepandent Directors:

Pursuant to tha provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 37{10) of the Listing Regulation and based on the
guidance note issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBl) vide Circular No. SEBVHO/CFD/CMD!
CIR/P2017/004 dated January 5, 2017, the Board has carrled out the annual performance evaluation of its own
performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee, Momination and
Remunerafion Committes, CSR Committes and Stakeholder Relationship Committee. They also evaluated various aspects
of the Board such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board Diversity, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. Feedback on the appraisal has been provided lo the board
membiers.

The remuneration policy of the Company can be accessed on the Company's website: at_hitps://www.kgdenim.comiwp-
content /uploads/2022/06/nominationand remunerationcommitteepolicy, pdf

29




K G DENIM LIMITED

Details of Remuneration to Directors:
Remuneration and sitting fees paid lo Execulive and Non-Executive Direclors during the year ended 31st March, 2025

are as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Name of the Directors Salary Perqulsltesl Commission  Sitting Fees Total

MrK.G. Balakrishhan
Whole-time Director/
Chairparson

Mr.B. Srihari
Mon-Executive Direclor
(w.ef31.03.2025)
Shri.B. Sriramulu
Managing Director
Shri. & Velusamy 0.10 0.10
Mon-Executive Director
Shri.N. Govindarajan ) s = 0.35 0.95
Indepandant Director
Shri.R. Jaganmohan
Independent Director
Shri.D. Kumarave!
Independent Director
Shri.R. Selvakumar
Whote-time Director 19.32 ) ) ) 19.32
Shri. N B Anand
Mon-Execulive - - - - -
Indpendent Director
(w.e1 24.08.2024)
Smit Geetha
Mon-Execulive
Indpendent Director - = = = B
{w.ei20.08.2024)
Smi. Lakshmi Pallabi
Raman

Independent Director
{upto 15.07.2024)
Shri AP Seturaaman
Indepandant Director - - - 0.35 0.35
{w.ef 31.03.2025)

- - = 0.35 0.35

- - - 0,10 0.10
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Further, the Thres (3) Executive Directors viz., Shri KG Baalakrishnan, Executive Chaimman, Shri B Sriramulu, Managing
Director, Shri B Snhari. Director, (until the period he held 8 Directorship as Managing Director) had forgone their entire
remunaration for the financial year 2024-25,

The Company dogs not pay remuneration to any of its Non-Executive Directors except sitiing  fees for attending the Board/!
Committes Meeting(s).

Mo benefits, other than the above are given to the Directors. Mo performance linked incentive, severance fee, bonus, pension
andior stock option is given to the Directors. No service confracts were enterad into with the Directors, their appointiment is
governed by the respective resolutions passed at the General Meeting of the Company in line with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Except as stated
above, none of the Direclors have any pecuniary relationship with the Company.

The criteria making paymenis to Non — Executive Directors is appearing on the websile of the Company al the link
hitps:/www kgdenim.comiwp-content/uploads/2022/07 critenaformaking-payment, pdf

The Company currently doas not have any Stock Option Scheme
Senior Management

The particulars of senior management including the changes lherein since the close of the previous financial year are as
follows:

Mame of Senior Designation Date of Date of
Management Persannel Appointment g::iﬂilﬂﬁr if
Shri.5. Gopinath Vice President Markeling 01.04.1994 &
Shri. P Saravanan Factory Manager 04.01.2000 30.04.2025
Smt Ramaprabha S Chiaf Financial Officer 14.08.2024 MA
Shri M Batali Company Ssoretary 2512.2024 M
Shr. 5. Manickam Chief Financial Officer 01.03.2018 14.08.2024
Shri. P Rajesh Company Secretary 15122023 01.10.2024

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The Boartd has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committes (SRC) pursuant tothe applicable provisions of Section
178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations to comply with the terms of reference as specified therein.

During the year under review, the Committes met 3 times on 25.04.2024, 09052024, 03.07.2024,10.07.2024, 05.08.2024,
14, 10,2024, 27.11.2024, 09,12.2024 and 20.01.2025. The Compuosition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committes and the
altendance of each member of the Committee are given below:
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The Composition, name of members, meetings and attendance during the year:

No. of Msstings No. of Meetings

Mame of the Member Category held during the attended
year
Shn.Duraipandian Kumnaravel
Chairman Non-Execulive
(weef 31.03.2025) Independent Director A M

Shri. Ayyalusamy Velusamy -Mambear Mon-Executive and Non

-Independent Director g 7
Shri. N Gavindarajan - Member Mon-Executive

Independent Director g &
Shri. A P Seturaaman -Chairman Mon-Executive
(upto 31.03.2025) Independent Director 9 2]

The Chalrman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee had attended the Annual General Meeating held on 30.09.2024.
Shri. M Balaji, Company Sacretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer! Secretary of the Committes.

Curing the year, the Company has recelved one complaint and promptly replied o the satisfaction of the shareholder.
Therefore, no pending / outstanding complaints as on 31.03.2025.

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE;

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of tha Act and the Companies (Corporate  Social Responsibility Poficy)
Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee to comply with the terms of
refarance as provided tharain.

The CSR Policy has also been framed and its details are uploaded in the Company’s website.

During the year under review, the Committese has met two times on 24 .05 2024 and 09.08.2024.

The Composition, name of members, meetings and attendance during the year:

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Mame of the Member Category held during the attended ro
year
Mr. K. G . Baalaknshnan
{Chalrman) Mon Executive and
Independant Diractor 2 2
Mr.Ayyalusamy Velusamy - Non-Executive
(Member) Mon-independesnt Direclor 2 1
Shril, Duralpandian Kumaravel
{Member) Non-Execulive
(w.a.f31.03.2025) Independant Diractor A A
Shri, AP Seturaaman (Member)
(upto 31.03.2025) Mon-Executive
Independent Director 2 2
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7. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, placed separately, forms part of this Annual Report.

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

a. Annual General Meeting:
Location and fime for last threa AGMs held and the Special Resolutions. if any, passed thereat, are as given below:

Year

Date of
Meeting

Time of
Meeting

Venue of the Meeting

Special Resolutions Passed, if any

2023-
2024

2022-
2023

30/09/2024

29/09/2023

3,30 pm

3,00 pm

Registered office of
the Company — Then
Thirumalai,
Colmbatore - 641302

Registered office of the
Company —

Then Thirumalal,
Coimbatore — 641302

1. Re-appointment of Shri N Govindarajan
(DM 00366402) as an Indapendent
Dirgctor of the Company for a further
penod of & years with effect from Z8th July
2025 and who will also attain the age of 75
[Seventy-Five) years on 29th December
2024,

2. Appointment of Shri Nallusamy
Balasubramaniam Anand (DIN: 007BS5555)
as an Indepandent Director of the
company for a pariod of 5 years with effect
from 24th August 2024,

3. Appointment of Smt Geatha

(DIM: 10753728} &s an

Independent Director of the Company
for a period of 5 years with effect from
29th August 2024,

1. Re-appointment of Shri KG
Baalakrishnan (DIN: 00002174 as
Exgcutive Chairman of the Company for
a penod of three (3) yvears

with effect from 3rd November 2023,

2. Re-appointment of Shri B Sriramulu
(DIN: 00002560) as Managing Director

af the Company for a perlod of three (3)
years with effect from 3rd November 2023

4. Re-appointment of Shri B Srhan
{DIN: 00002556) as Managing Director
of the Company for a period of thres
(3) years with effect from 3rd
MNovember 2023,

4, Appointment of Shn, R, Selvakumar
(DIM: 00051608 as a Whole-time
Director of the Comparny

2021-2022

28/09/2022

330 pm

Video Conferencing
(VC}/ Other Audio
Visual Means (CAVM),

Adoption of a new sel of Articles of
Association in place of the existing
Articles of Association,
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Mo exiraordinary general meeting of the members was held during the financial year 2024 - 2025,

¢. Postal Ballot and E-Voting
Mo Postal Ballot was conducted during the financial year 2024 - 2025,

d. Postal Ballol proposed to be conducted

Ason data of this repart, the Company do nol foreses the need for conducting postal ballo! 1o pass any resoluticn in the currant financial year,
However, If required, the same shall be conducted in compliance with the procedure stipulated under Section 110 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Acl, 2013 and its relevant Rules made thereunder, the Listing Regutations and any othar applicable laws
iry this regard.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company is conscious of the importance of imely dissemination of adeguate information to the Stakeholders, All periodical complianca
filings under the Listing Regulations, including sharehokding pattems, corporate govemance report, media release, statement of Investor
complalnts, announcements, amaong others, ane filed alectronlcally thraugh BSE Listing Centre, 8 wab based applicaticn designed by BSE
for corporates.

The Company is regularly publishing notces, adveriisements, guarerly unaudited and audited financial results containing 8 Quick
Responss code (R Code) and the defails of the

webpage whera complete financial resulls are avallable s normally published in newspapers vlz., The Financial Exprass and Dinamani/
Malai Murasu (vemacular language). Tha Company is posting the quarterly results and other statutory information on the Company’s wablink
hitps: fwww. kgdenim.cominewspaper-sdverlisement,

The Company does not digplay any official news releases on the website of the Company and also it has not made any presentations to the
instituticnal investors or 1o the analysts during the year.

Subsidiary Companias. The Audit Committes reviews the consolidated financial statements of the Company. The minutes of the Board
Meetings, along with & repor on significant developments of the unlisted subsidiary companies, are penodically placed bafare the Board of
Directors of tha Company.

10. GENERAL SHAREHODLER INFORMATION

| 33rd Annual Genaral Meeting date, Tuesday, 9th September 2025 at 4:30 PM
Time and venue Venue: Then Thinimalai, Caimbatore — 641302,
(Registared Office of the Company)
il. Finaneckal Year Tat April 2024 1o 315t March 2025
iii. Dividand paymant date Mot Applicable
iv. Date of Book Closura drd September 2025 to Sth September 2025

/{Bath days inclusiva]

¥, Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited, Phiroze Jesjesbhoy Towers, Dalal Strast,
Fart, Mumbai — 400 001

The Company has paid the Listing Fees for the financial
year 2024-25 1o the above Stock Exchange

vi. Depositary Fes Annita! custady fee for the linancial year 2024-25 have been
paid lo the Depositores.

vii, Corporate |dentity Number L17116TZ1992PLCON3TSE

viin. 3crip Codel/Symbaol GO0239

Demat ISIN in MSDL & COSL INE104A01012

ixt, Reglstrars and Share Transter Agents for batk Camen Corporate Services Limited, “Subtamanian
Demateralised and physical shares Buillding®, No.1 Clsb House Read, Chennai — 600 002

#.Datails of Compliance Officar Shri. M Bataji

Company Secretary

Then Thirumalai, Colmbatore — 641 302

Ph: D4254 — 235568, Fax: +91 4254 235400
Email: cskgdlfikgdenim.in
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i, Shara Transfar Sysiem

Share lransfer services ara carried oul by dematerised
form throwgh NSDL and CDSL platforms ‘and monitorad
by the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfar Agents
(STA), viz., Cameo Corporate Services Limited.

Reguest for share Transmission and  Transposition, as
duly coordinated by the STA, are considarad and
approved by the Share Transfer Committee of the
Company.

All requests for dematenalization of shares are processed
and confirmed o the dapositores, NSOL and COSL,
within 15 days The Stakeholders Relationzship
Committes generally meets quanedy and reviews the
Share Transfar Commitlea’s activitias

x| Dematerdalization of sharaholding and
figuidity

Members have the option to hold thear shares in demat
form either through the National Securities Depository
Limited o the Cantral Doposilory Servicas Limited.
The ISIN Number of the Company is INETD4AD1012,

Number af shares dematedallzed: 2 49 87 571

Parcantage: 97 .46% (Promolers have tomplataly
dematarialized their sharehaldings)

r any convertible

e £

Mot Applicable

il Dutstanding GODRVADR MWamrants o

wrw Commodity price risk or foreign
exghanga rigk and hadging aotivities

il

xv Plant lacalion

Then Thirumalai, Jadayampalayam Village,
Coimbatore - 641 302

xvi Address for Corespondence and Registerad offics

Then Thirumalar, Jadaysmpalayam Village, Coimbatore - 541 302
Website, www kgdenin.com Email id of the Investor Grievance

wvii Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

SECNON, CakadNmRanimn

A gualified Company Secretary in Practice has
carried oul the reconciliation of share capital audit 1o
recancile the total admitied capital with Nabional
Securities: Depository Limited {(NSDL) and Central
Depositary Services (India) Limited (CDSL} and the total
igsued and listed capital The racanciliation of share
capital auvdil report confirms that the tolal Issued/ paid up
capital is in agreament with the (otal number of shares In
physical form and the total number of dematerialised
shiaras heid with NSDL & CDSL

xviid Listof all credit ratings obtained by the entity along
with any revisions therats dufing the relevant linancal
year, for all debt mstruments of such entity or any fixed
deposi programmig or any scheme or propesal of the
listed anlity Invalving mobilzation of funds, whether

in India or abroad

Tha Campany has approached India rating o abtain
credil rating for Company
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The shares of the company are regulady traded and In no point of ime the sharas ware suspended for trading in the
slock axchange.

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2025

Category Number of Shares Held % of Shareholding

Promoter & Promaoter Group 1,50,58,956 58,74
Mutual Fund 3,200 0.1
Directors and their Relatives 500 0.00
Investor Education and 9,71.328 379
Protection fund (IEPF)

Indian Public B86,93,805 33.91
Hindu Undivided Family 4,13,550 1.51
NRE| 209,456 0.82
Claaring Membar 1,000 0.00
Bodies Corporate 285,950 1.12
LLP a0 0.00
Total 2,56.37,825 100.00

Distribution of Shareholding:

- Shareholding (Range) | MNo. of Holders | % of Holders No. of shares | % of shares
1= 500 a0gv 82.89 1278197 4.99
501 — 1000 TB0 7.99 648934 2.53
1001 —2000 390 3.29 601996 235
2001 - 3000 156 1.60 399308 1.56
3001 - 4000 73 0.75 262241 1.02
4001 - 5000 51 0.52 242821 0.95
5001 - 10000 21 0.93 698368 2.72
18001 and above 130 1.33 21505960 83.88
Tota | e 10000 | 25637825 100.00

11. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a. Disclosuras on malerlally significant related party transactions that may have polential conflict with the interests of listed
anfity atlarge.

All the related party transactions are entered into on arm's length basis, in‘the ordinary course of business and are in
compliance with the applicable provisions of The Companias Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulation. There are no materially
significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Direclors or Key Managerial Personnel or
otherwise which may have potential conflict with tha interest of the Company atlarga.

The details of the transactions with Related Parties are provided in the Company’s financial statements in accordance with
Ihe Accounting Standards. All Relaled Party Tranzactions are presented o the Audit Commiltee and the Board. Ommibus
approval is obtained for the: transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement of all related party
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Iransactions is presented before the Audil Commitlee on a quarterly basis. specifying the nalure, value and terms and
conditions of the transactions.

Kindly refer to the notes forming part of accounts for the details of Related Part Transactions.

b. Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock
exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three
years;

The financial results (standalene and consolidaled) for the quarter and year ended 31st March 2024 was submitted to the
stock exchange on 20th May 2024 whearegas the disclosure of Related Party Tranzactions for the half year ended 31st March
2024 was filed in XBRL mode on 30th May 2024, which was beyond the preserbed time under Regulation 23(9) of Listing
Regulation. In respect of the said delay, the BSE Limited has imposed a fine of Rs. 5900/ and the Company has paid tha said
fine to BSE Limited on 2nd July 2024,

Apart from the abowve, there are no penalties and/or strictures imposed on the Company by SEB| or any Statutary Authoritias,
on any matter relating lo capital markets, during the las! three years.

. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/ whistle blawer policy, and affirmation that no personnel has been
denied access to the audit committes

The Company has provided for adequate safeguards to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement and to report
concems about unethical behaviour or any violation of the Company's code of conduct. The Audit Committee has been
authorized to review the cases recelved under the Whistie Blower Policy of the Company and address the grievances of all
the personnel in the Company. The Whistle Blower policy can be accessed on the Company's \Website at the link
hitps:/fwww. kgdenim.comiwp-contentfuploads/ 20151 OiwhistleBlower-Policy. pdf

d. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory reguirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance norms as enurnerated in Listing
Regulations.

The Company has adopted the non-mandatory requirement relating to Reporting of Internal Auditors to the Audit Committes
as recommended in terms of Regulation 27{1) read with Part E of Schedule || of the Listing Regulations.

e. Web link where policy for determining ‘material’' subsidiaries is disclosed

The Company has formulated a policy for determining the Material Subsidiary and the details of such policies are
disseminated in the website at hitpsYwww.kgdenim.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Palicy-on-material-subsidiary-2_pdf
f. Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions

The policy on dealing with related party transactions can be accessed on the Company’s website at
https:/www. kgdenim. comiwp-uploads 2022/06/rpt. pdf

d. Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities.
During the financial yearendad 31.03 2025, the Company did nol engage in commodity hedging activities.
h. Detalls of utilization of funds ralsed through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025, the company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or
gualified instilutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (YA} ol Listing Regulations.

i. Certificate from a Company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the Cempany have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Beard/Ministry of
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Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority:

A cerdificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as  Directors of Companies by the Securifies and Exchange
Board of India  Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authaority has been obtained and is annexed to this report.

J- Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is mandatorily
required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along with reasons thereof:

During the year under review, the recommendations made by the diferent Committees have been accepted and there were
noinstances where the Board of Directors had not accepted any recommendation of the Commitlees.

k. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a2 consaolidated basis, to the statutory
auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part:

The Company has paid a sum of Rs. 7.60 Lakh as fees on consolidated basis to the Statutory Auditors and all entities in the
network firm / entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a part forthe services rendered by them

i. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women al Workplace (Prevention, Prohibillon and Redressal)Act, 2013:
i. Mumber of complaints filed during the financial year=NIL

i, Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year—NIL

iil. Mumber of complainis pending as on end of the financial year— NIL

m. Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies
inwhich directors are interested by name and amount = MIL.

n. The Company does not have any material subsidiaries, accordingly, the disclosure requirements in relation to the
date and place of incorporation and the name and date of appointment of statutory auditors of such subsidiaries
does not arise,

0. All the requirernents of corporate governance report of sub paragraphs (2) to (10) Para C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulations, 2015 have: been duly complied with.

p. The Company is fully compliant with the Corporate Governance requirements as specified by Regulation 17 to 27 and
Clauses (b) o (i) of sub-regulation {2) of Regulation 46 of SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Reaqulations, 2015

q. Disclosure on Accounting Treatment:

Im the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) referred
to i Section 133 of the Act. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied are set oulin the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

r. Disclosure on risk management:

Busingss risk avaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. The assessmant is periodically
examined by the Board.

s. Apart from the above, the Company has not adopted any of the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of
Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulations.
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t. Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities = NotApplicable

u. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account

Pursuant to Regulation 39(4 ) read with Schedule VI of Listing Regulation, the Company does not have any unclaimed shares.
Hence, opening of unclaimed suspense account is not  applicable. The Company has opened Suspense Escrow Demal
Account in compliance with SEBI Clrcular No. SEBVHO/MIRSD/FPoD-1/0W/P/2022/64923 dated December 30, 2022, No
share has beencredited to that account during the financial year under review,

v, Certificate from CEQ and CFO:

The CEOQ and CFO cerification of the Financial Statemeants for the year has been submitted to  the Board of Directors, as
required undar Listing Regqulations.

w. Code of Conduct:

As provided under the Listing Regulations. the Board of Directors of the Company laid down the Code of Conduct for the
Directors and the Senior Management Personnel. & declaration has been recelved from the Manaaing Director to the effect
thatthe Directors and Senior Management Personnel have confirmad compliance with the said Code of Conduct,

x. Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has framed a code of conduct ta regulate, monitor and report trading by Insiders based on SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This code is applicable o all Directors / Officers (Designated Employees,

The Company has alse formulated "The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure  of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information (UPSI)" in compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the same has been
displayed on the Company's official weblink hittps:/feww kgdenim . comiwp-content/uploads 20151 ifair-disclosurecode. pdf

The Company has also formulated “The Code of Practices and Procedures for Falr Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Infermation (UPS1)" in compliance with the SEBI {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

DECLARATION
I, K.G Baalakrishnan, Chairman and Executive Director of K G Denim Limited, hereby declare that all the members of the
Board of Direclors and Senior Management have, for the year ended March 31, 2025 affirm compliance with the said code of
conduct laid down by the Board of Directors and Senior Managament in terms of Requiation 26(3) read with Schedule
Woof SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

By order of the Board
For K G Denim Limited
Coimbatore
11.08.2025
K.G.Baalakrishnan

Chairman and Executive Director
(DIN: D0002174)
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2025
To

The Members of Ms. K G Denim Limited

Dear Sir,

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Mis. K G Denim Limited (“the Company”)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 as stipulated under the Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemnanca is the responsibility ofthe Management. Our examination was limited
o a review of the proceduras and implemeniations thereofl adopted by the Cempany for ensuring compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stpulated under SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclesure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. It is neither an audit nor an expression of oplnion on the financial staterments of the Company.

In eur opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and based on the
representations made by the Directors and Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

We furtherstate that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or
effactivenass with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company
For MDS & Associates LLP
Company Secrataries
Flace : Coimbators
Date : 11.08 2025

M.D.SELVARA.

Managing Partnar

Membership Mo.: FCS 960 C P Mo 411
Peer Review No. 84682025

UDIN: FOOO980GE000937395
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CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015
To

The Board of Directors
K. G Denim Limited
Coimbatore -841302

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacity as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of K G Denim Limited ("tha
Company") to the bestof our knowledge and belief, certify that:

I. We have reviewed the Audited Financial Statements for the Quarter and Year Ended 31" March 2025, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that

a} these staternents do not contain any matenally untrue stalement or omit any matenal fact or contain any statemenls
that might be misieading.

k) these statements tegether present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing
accounting standards, applicable laws, and reguiations.

I, Wefurther state thatto the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company during
the Quarter and Year ended which are fraudulent, ilegal, or viclative of the Company's code of conduct.

. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of the same
over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committes, deficlencies in the
design or aperation of intemial contrals, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have laken or propose 1o take to rectify
hese deficlences,

V. We have indicated, based on ourmost recent evaluation, wherever applicable, tothe Auditors and Audit Committes:

a, thera nave been no significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the Guarter and Year
anded;

b. thers have been no significant changes in the accounting policies made during the Quarter and Year ended; and

c. thera have been noinstances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvemant therein, if any, of
the managemant or an employee having significant role in the Company's internal control systam over financial reporting,

Place: Coimbalore B Sriramulu Ramaprabhas
Date: 28.05.2025 Managing Director Chief Financial Officar
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3} and Schedule V' Para C© clause (10)(0) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations end Disciosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members of

Mis. K.G DENIM LIMITED

{CIN: L17115TZ 1902PLCO03T98)
Then Thirumalal,

Colmbatore - 641302

Wa have examined the relevant registers, records. farms, retums and discinsuras receivad from the Directors of Mis. K G DENIM LIMITED
having GIN: LITISTZ1992PLCO03TI8 &nd having registered office at Then Thirumatai Coimbatore - 641302 (hereinafter referred to as
‘the Company'), produced betore us by the Company for the purpase of issuing this Cerlificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) resd
with Schedule V' Para-C Sub cause 10(/) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

In aur opinkon and to tha bastol our information and accarding (o the venfications (ncluding Directors dentification Mumber (DIN) status &t
tha portal www mos.gowin ag considared necassary and explanations furnished 1o us by the Company & its afficers, wa hareby certify that
nane af the Directorson Lhe Board of the Company as slated balow for the financial year ending on 31st March 2025 have been dabarred ar
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies:-by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any suchother Statutory Authority,

- Sr Name of Director 1 DIN Date of
Na. appointmeant in
Company
1 Mr. Govindaswamynaidu Balaknshnan
{Whale-time Director! Exgcutive Chairman) aaae2ive 03/14/2003
2 br. Balakrishman Srramulu 0oa025aE0 D3H1/2003
. |(Managing Director) |
_3___|MrBalaknshnenSehen 0| 00002558 _D3/11/2003
4 B Ayyalusamy Velusamy 00002204 01/04/2010
5 ‘M. N Govindarajan 00366402 2000712020
5] Mr. Jaganmohan Ramachandran e 25603 1400272022
T Mr. Durgipandian Kumaravel 00004827 D104/ 2023
& kr. Ramaswamy Selvakumar 00051608 a0z
(Whele-time director)
g "nir. Nallusamy Balasubramaniam Anand OOTESSSS 2408/2024
10 |'Mrs: Geeths 10753728 ZHB2024

{1 "Mar. Nallusamy Balasubramaniam Anand and Mrs. Goatha, wers appainled as Independeant Director(s) for 1he lirsl term of conseculive 5
vears with effect from 24th August 2024 and 28th August 2024 respectively.

{Il)"Mr. M Govindarajan was re-appointed as a Mon-Executlve Independent Director for a further period of the Second term of 5 conseculive
vears with-effect from 20th July 2025 and to continue the directarzhip on attaining the age of 75 years on 29th Decembar 2024,

{iii}*Mr. Balakrishnan Srihari was resigned as Managing Director and continues as Nan Executive Director with effect from 315t March 2025,

Ensuring the efigibility for the appointmeant { continuity of every Director on the Board s the responsibility of the management of the
Company, Our responsibility is 10 express an opinlan on thass based on our verification. This cerificals:is neither an assurance as to the
future viahility of the Company nor of the sfficiency or effectivansess with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Campany,

For MDS & Assoclates LLP
Company Secrelanes

M.D.SELVARAJ

Managing Partner

Membership Mo.- FGS 960 C P No.- 411
Pasar Review No, 6468/2025

Place: Caimbatare LDIN:FON0960GO0N937962

Crate: 11.08.2026
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Regulation 34 read with Schedule ¥V of SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Industry
structure and developments:

K G Danim Limited is a leading manufacturar of Danim Fabric. i has manufacturing faciites for Danim Fabric, Apparai Fabric, Readymada
Garments and Home Textile products also generating steam for captive consumption and power for both captive consumpfion and outside
salas, Indlan textile Exports experiencad a decline for the conseculive year in 2024-25, mainly attibuted 1o the geopolitical tensions casting
a shadow an the global lrade

India is one of the fastest growing economy in the world, Textils iz ane of the cora segment= in the manufacturing sector in Indis. Howewver,
diue to geopaliticl disturbancas and Tanfl wars thers has been decling in the exports of textils across the Country. The Govemmeant of India
iz hokding discussions with countriesinAsia, Africa and Europe to explora new Markets. It is.expected there would be some mprovemeants in
the expon segment if the falks matenalize.

Opportunities and threats

Strangth Werkness
Amiple labaur avallabilily — 45 milllon have been emokoyed Use of puidated Eﬂchnulqu Fragmentaiion within the industry
in the sectar Presence of the enfire lextile value chain in the Uncompetitive value chain components Existence of small and
country madium-sized enlermprises thal are highly risk-averse Lopsidecd

Oiversified taxtile oparations from spinning fo processing Total focus on cotton W late, resuiting in dalayed policies for other
spinning mills stand at 3,452, plus 1.8 milllon power laams and mare in-demand commodities like man-mada fibres and yarms
3.9 milion handiooms operata in the country Processing units
stand around 3,400 units

Oppodunity Threat
Export enhancement dus to FTAs Ullisation of the same localion | Increasing shipping cost io affect frade Geo polilical issuss
value chain to increase competitivensss Strong policy support fo | and de-globalisation Increasing and potential compatition from
increase productivity Can utilise the de-risking stage to increase | Bangladesh, Vietnam, Cambaodea, Myanmar, and Indanesia
exparts PLIs can make the country a leader in expors of and Gaps i the pace of adoption of sustainable technology Rising
technical textiles Taking the benefit of the China plus one policy. | €08t of produstion

Overall performance

There had been drought in the plant location due owhich there was no water supply. The operaliens of the Company weres affected severely
for about 5 months. The restarting of the operations got affected due to non-availability of funds. The implementation of the restructuring for
loan facilities with the Bankers was also delayed and was implamented anly In March 2025,

The Company has recantly concluded arrangemants with the Banksrs for release of warking capital funds: To augment funds for working
capital and reduction of debts the Company is inthe process of selling non-cora assets: Itis hoped that the operations woukd be ramped up
gradually from September 2025

Outlook

The recent Tarfi war started by USA zppears to affect the export market of textiles since LISA was the majorimporter of Indian textiles. The
Govermnment af India is hoiding disoussions with other countrias to explors new markets,

Risks and concerns

The Company recognizes that risk 2 an integral and unavoidable companant of the business. The Company is committed to managing
the risk in a proactive and effective manner. Idenlify the key fisks having & severs impact on our business and take sullable measures 1o
mitigate them.

The comman risks ane oporalional fisks, raw matedal risk, disaster riek, linancial rsk, forelgn exchangs risk and market fsks ats.,. In
today's challanging and competitive snvirenment, siategies for mitigating inharent risks in accomplishing the growth plans Company
are imperative, Senior Execufives is confinuously manitoring the risk areas that could have an impact on the performance of the
Company and take appropriate aclions o maximize opporunites inall activities and to minimize advarsily.
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Internal control systems and their adeguacy:

The Company has a proper and adeguate internal control system that is commensurate with its size and nature of business, o
ansure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions
are authorized, recorded. and reported correctly.

The Internal control system Is responsible for addressing the evolving risks in the business, reliability of financlal information,
timaly reporting of operational and financial transactions, safequarding of assets and stringent adharence to the applicable laws
and regulations, The internal auditors of the Company are responsible for regular monitoring and review of these controls. The
Audit Commities periodically reviews the audil reparts and ensures carraction of any varance, as may be required. Key
observations are communicated to the management who undertakes prompt corrective actions

Financial parformance with respect to operational performance

The financial performance of the Company durlng the financlal year 2024-25 has been discussed in the Directors Report and
the audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the reguirement of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, discloses a true and fair view of the performance of the
company during the said pariod.

Material development in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed :
Number of people employed - present strength is around 152 which will increase with improvement in aperations.

As the operations of the Company has been severely affected as aforesald there had been significant reduction in the
manpower, The Company is holding discussions with affected employees for amicable setlement and reemploymeant as the

operations progress further,

Financial Ratios: -
The key Financial Ratios of the Company are given below with an explanation in case of significant change

2024- 2023 |% o

Reason for variance ( for change

S.Ng | Fetios 25 24 Change | more than 25%)
1 Current Ratio 1.16 078 -40%
2 Debt Equity Ratio 53.84 5.89 -4B0E%
3 Inventory Turnover Ratlo 0.81 2.73 193%

Trade Receivables 263 185% Increased losses incurred due to
4 turnover ratio Q.78 & lower operations
5 Met capital turnover ratio 0.82 -4.06 -4 88%
3] Met profit margin ratio -73% -9.85% | 63%

Return on Capital -
7 | employed I | gy 9|
8 Return on Invastment 1% 17% 16% Mol applicable

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
The Management Discussion and Analysis contain forward looking statements regarding Company's projections and
expectations and the actual results could differ materially from those expressad on account of varous factors like raw material
prices, change in demand, Government regulation et and the readers are cautioned against placing undue refiance on the
saAM, For K G DENIM LIMITED

KG Baalakrishnan
Flaca; Coimbatore Executive Chalrman,
Date ;1108 2025 DIM : 00002174
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of K G Denim Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of K G Denim Limited (‘The Company'), which
comprise the standalons balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including Other
Comprehansive Income), the standalone Staternent of Cash Flow and the Standalone Statement of changes in Eguity
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and aceording to the explanations given o us, the aferesaid standalons
financial statements (“the financial statements”) give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act') in the
manner so required and give a true and Tair view in confarmity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS'), specified
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the  state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, and iis loss (including
ather comprehensive Income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described Inthe "Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statemeants” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Instituta of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAIY) togather with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
aur audil of the financial statements under the provisions of the Acland the rules thereunder, and we have Tulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Key Audit Matters

4, Key audit matters are those matlers that, In cur professional judgement, were of mast significancs In our audit of the
standalons financial statements of the cument perod. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial stalemsnts as a whole, and in forming our opinion therson, and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these
matters. VWe have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matiers to be communicated in our report

 Key Audit Matter
Litigations - Contingencies
The Company has ongolng litgations with various
authorities and third partias which could have a
significant impact on the resulis, if the potential
gxposures were to materialise.

The amounts involved are significant, and the
application of accounting standards to determine
the amount, if any, to be provided as a kability or
disclosed as 8 contingant lablity, is nherently
subjactive,

Claims against the Company not acknowledged
asdebts are disclosed inthe Financlal Statements
by the Company after a careful evalualtion of the
facts and legal aspecis of the matters invoived,
The outcome of such litigation is uncertain and the
position taken by management
significant judgement and esbimation to determine

involves

_Audtor's Response

Principal Audit Procedures

Cur audit approach was a combination of test of
intarnal controls and substantive procedures
including:

Assessing the appropriateness of the design
and implementation of the Company's . controls over
the assessment of |itigations  and completeness of
disclosures. Supporting documentation are tested for
the positions taken by the managament, meslings
are conducted with in-house legal counsel andfor
legal team and minutes of Beard to confirm the

operaling effectiveness of these controls.

Invalving our direct and indirect tax specialists to
assess relevant historical and recentl judgemeants
passed by the appropriate authorities in order to
challenge the basis used for the accounting
reatmentand resulting disclosures.
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5. No

Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

3

the likelihood  and/or timing of cash outflows and
the Interpretation of preliminary and pending court
rulings

Rafer Mote 42 lo the Standalone Financlal
Statements

Loan Restructuring Arrangement with
Consortium Lenders

Az disclosed In Mote 81 lo the standalone
financial statements, the Company has entered
Inte a loan restructuring arrangement with its
consortium lenders under the Reserve Bank of
India's framework for relief measures in areas
affected by natural calamities. Whila the resolution
plan has been approved by the majority of the
consortium lenders, one bank holding 7% of the
debt exposure has dissented from the plan, and
one  Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFG)
with an outstanding loan of Rs. 625 lakh has not
participated in the restructuring scheme. With
respect to the dissenting lenders' non-participation
In the restructuring scheme, the Company has filad
a writ pefition before the Hon'ble High Court of
Madras and obtained an injunction order, with the
undear the
restructured plan is scheduled o commensce from
the gquarter ending March 2026.

matter being sub judice. Repayment

Principal Audit Procedures
+ Obtained and reviewed the loan restructuring

agreements, lendar communications, and board
resolutions approving the restructuring plan.

« Evaluated management’s assesament of loan
classification, medification accounting, and
impairmant under Ind AS 109, including
consideration of whether the terms of restructuring
constitute a substantial modification.

« Assessed the legal status of dissent by South
Indian Bank and non implementation by the NBFC,
including examining relevant court  filings,
injunction arders, and legal opinicn obtained by the
Cormpany, if any.

« Evaluated the disclosures made in the financial

slatementsin accordance with Schedute I of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 107 — Financial

Instruments; Disclosures.
« Discussed with management and those charged

with governance the potential financial and legal
implications arising from the dissenting lender and

the pending litigation.

« Assessed lhe adequacy and appropriatenass of
disclosures made in the financial statemeants in
raspect of the restructuring and legal proceedings
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Infarmation other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

5. The Company's Board of Dirsctors |s responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board's Report, Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, but does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, The Board's Report, Corporate
Governance Report, The Management Discussion and Analysis are expected 1o be made avallable to us after the date of
this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance condlusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information-and. in
doing so, consider whether the other informaticn is matenally  inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge oblained during the course ofour auditor otherwise appears to be matenally misstated.

Whenwe read the Board's report, Corporate Governance Reporl, Management Discussionand Analysis, ifwe conclude that
thara is a material misstatemeant thergin, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governanca,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

f. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these slandalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive incoma, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibilily slso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Actfor safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and otharirregularities; selection
and application of appropriale accounting policies; making judgements and eslimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate inlemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a tree and Tair view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud oremor,

7. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's abiiity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concern and using the going concern basis of
accountling unless Board of Directors elther Intends to liguidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative butto do so.

B, Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
matenal misstaternent, whether due to fraud cr error, and 10 issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonabla
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an sudit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influgnce the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143010} of the Act, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a7




K G DENIM LIMITED

= |dentify and assess the risks of matenal misststement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audil procedures responsive (o those risks, and obtain audil evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of nof detecting a material missiatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemde of internal
coniral,

» Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order to design avdit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adeqguale internal financial controls system with reference lo financial slatements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such contrals

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the managemsnt

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, basad on the
audit evidence obtained, whather a matarial uncartainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a matenial uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report (o the related disclosures in the inancial statements o, If such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur canclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of aur auditor's
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease io continue as a going concem.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including the disclosures. and whather
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Intemal control that we identify during our
audit,

12. We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matlers that may
reasonably be thought lo bear on ourindependence. and where applicable, relaled safeguards.

13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
Ihese matlers in our auditor’s reporl unless law or regulabon preciudes publc disclosure aboul the matler or when, In
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequeances of daing so would reasonably be expeactad to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14, As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order”), issuad by the Central Governmant of India in
terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act. we give in the *Annaxure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the arder, to the extent applicable.

15, Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which Lo the best of our knowledge and belief were
necassary for the purposes of our audil of the accempanying standalong financial statemenis,

(B} in our opinien proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company =o far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

(¢} tha standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreemeant with the books of account;

(d) in our gpinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thergunder;
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(e }on tha basis of the written representations received from the directors a5 on 313t March 2025 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 313t March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2} ofthe Act:

(N With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controis with reference to inancial statements of the Company as on 315t
March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, referto ourreport in “Annexure B",

(g} With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report in accordancs with the requirements of Section
197(16) of the'Act, as amended, inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the company has nol pald any remunerabion toils directors during the year.

(h}With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Repart in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companias {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in eur opinicn and to the best of our information and according fo the explanations
given tous:

i. The Company has disclosad the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31st March 2025 in the
standalone financial statements in Nole no. 42;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term confracts including derivatives contracts for which thare were any material
foresesables losses:

fii. There has been no delay in transfeming amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended 31stMarch 2025,

iv, &) The management has representsd that, to the best of its knowiedge and balief, no funds have beenadvanced or loaned
ar invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin
any other parson(s) or entity(les), Including foreign entities ("the Intermediaries”), with the understanding. whether recorded
I writing or atherwisa, that the Intermediary shall, whether, diractly or indirectly  lend or invest in other parsons or antifies
idertified in any mannar whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“the Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantaa,
sacurity or the like on behalf of the Utimate Beneficiaries.

b} The management has represented that. to the besl of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("the Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities ldentifled in any manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any
guarantes, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedurss performed as considered reasorable and approprate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us W bellieve that the management representation under sub-clauses (a)and

(bjabove contains any material misstatement.
v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and hence reporting under this clausa does not arise

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operaled throughout the
year for all ralevant transactions recordad in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention,

For Gopalaiyer and Subramanian
Charerad Accountants
FRN. 0009605

R. Mahadevan

Partrier
Place: Coimbatore M.No.027487
Date: 30th May 2025 LDIN; 25027497BMNBAPST44
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of K G Denim Limited on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.

I.{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing fill particulars including quantitative details and situation of
Froperty, Flant and Equipmaeant.

(b} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars ol intangible Assets.

(o) The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Managemen! according to a phased programme designed
lo cover all the ilems over a penad of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard (o the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant o the proegramme, a portion of tha property, plant and eguipment has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(d} In aur opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination of property
tax raceipts, registered sale deed [ transfer deed / conveyance deed and the records of the Company provided to us, wereport
that, title in respect of self-constructed  buildings and the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties
where the Company |s the lessee and (he lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are hald in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheetdate.

(e} The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the year.

(M) In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any banami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder.

ii. {a) The Inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management al reasonable intervals, In our opinion and
based on information and explanations given to us, the fraquency of such verfication is reasonable and no material
discrapancies were noticed at the lime of verification.

{b} According to the Information and explanations given o us, the Company has been sanclioned working capital limiis in
excess of Rs.5 Crore, in aggregate, during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In-our opinion and
aocording to the information and explanations given to us, the guarterly returns or statemeants (comprising stock statements,
staternents on ageing analysis of the debiors / other receivables, and other stipulated financial information) filed by the
Company with such banks are not in agreement with the unaudited book of account of the Company of the respective quarters
asqgiven heraundesr,

Statement of discrepancy between Quarterly Statement submitted to the Bank and Book of Accounts

S S Rs. in Lakhs
Quarter endad Inventory
as on As per Stock Statement As per Books of Accounts Difference
(A) (B) (A-B)
30-06-2024 721018 722016 -10.04
30-08-2024 £.275.03 6,278.30 -0.27
31-12-2024 5.653.83 0,653.83 0.00
31-03-2025 6,109.46 &, 109.63 017
Rs.in Lakhs
Quarter ended Trade Receivables
as on As per Stock Statemant As per Books of Accounts Difference (A-B)
(A) (B)
30-06-2024 0,143.14 9.134.45 8.69
30-09-2024 8,335.07 8,335.02 0.05
31-12-2024 8.,434.60 6,237.87 2,136.73
31-03-2025 6.274.44 5.297.91 =23.47
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Rs. in Lakhs
Quarter ended Trade Payables
as on As per Stock Statement As per Books of Accounts Difference (A-B)
(A) (B)
30-06-2024 10,136.00 13,204.77 -3,068.77
30-09-2024 1.217.14 [ 12,072.80 -855.66
31-12-2024 11,913.00 12,713.67 -800.67
31-03-2025 12,322.00 10,360.70 1.961.30

Mote: Tha difference was on acaount of different methods of stock valuation adoptad in respect of Inventorias and
pending reconclliation of Trade Receivable and Trade Payable for the purpose of reporting in Quarterly Bank
Statements vis-a-vis books of accounts.

iii. {a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanafions given to us, during the year the Company has not made
invesiments in, provided any guarantee or securily or granted any  loans or advances in tha nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties

{b) In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, the guarantees provided, terms and
conditions of the guarantees provided (including in earlier years) are not prejudicial to the Company's interast,

{c) The company has not granted any loans and advance in the nature of loans and hence paragraph 3 lii (), {d). (e} and () of

the orderis not applicable.

Iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
givan, investiments mads and lhe guaranisess and secunlies providad, as applicable,

v. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
orihere is no amount which has been considered as deemed deposit with the meaning of Sections 73 ta 76 of the Act and the
Rules framed there under Accordingly, reparting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

vi. The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed tha books of account  maintained by the Company pursuant o the miles
made by the Central Government for the maintenanca of cost records under Section 148 of the Act, and are of the apinion that
prima facie, the preseribed and such accounts and records have bean made and maintained.

vil. In respect of statutory dues

(&} In our Dpinion, the Company has not been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Sarvices
fax, Provident Fund, Employess’ Stale Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duly of Excise, Value
Addad Tax, Cess and other malerial statutory dues applicable o I with the appropriale authorities. However. lhere were
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which are in arrears  as at March 31, 2025 fora
period ofmore than six months from the date they became payable,
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Statement of Arrears of Undisputed Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months
Mame of Statue Nature of | Amount Period to Due Date of
Dues (Rs. in which the Date Paymeant
laes) amount
relates

Incoma Tax Act, 1961 TDS 5.62 Oct-23 | p7-11-2023 | Mot paid
Income Tax Act ' 1961 TDS B.63 Mow-23 | O7-12-2023 | Nol _pa'rd
Income Tax Act, 1961 TOS 579 Dec-23 | O7-01-2024 | Mot paid
Income Tax Act, 1961 DS 6.30 Jan-24 | 07-02-2024 | Not paid
Income Tax Act, 1961 TDS 7.65 Feb-24 | 07-03-2024 | Mot paid
Income Tax Act, 1961 TDS 9.45 Mar-24 | 30-04-2024 | Not paid
Incomea Tax Act, 1961 TEDS 4.75 Apr-24 | O7-05-2024 | Mot paid
Income Tax Act, 1961 TDS 2.29 May-24 | 07-06-2024 | Mot paid
Income Tax Acl, 1961 TDS 2.56 Aunea) | OF07-2004 | Not paid
Income Tax Act, 1961 TDS 1.83 Jul-24 | 07-08-2024 | Mot paid
Employess’ Provident Employer and Mot paid
Funds and Miscallaneous Employes
Provisions Act, 1852 Contribution 2536 Apr-24 | 15-05-2024
Employees’ Pravidant Employer and Mot paid
Funds and Miscellanecus Employea
Provisions Act, 1952 Contribution 2445 May-24 | 15-06-2024
Employeas’ Provident Emplayver and Mat paid
Funds and Miscellaneous Employes
Provisions Act, 1952 Caontribution 22,62 Jun-24 | 15-07-2024
Employees’ Provident Employer and Mot paid
Funds and Miscellaneous Employee
Provisions Acl, 1952 Contribution 21.57 Jul-24 | 15-08-2024
Employees’ Provident Employer and 20,72 Aug-24 | 15-09-2024 | Not paid
Funds and Miscellansous Employee
Provisions Act, 1952 Contribution
Employeeas’ State Insurance Employer and Mot paid
Act, 1948 Employeea

Contribution 0.28 Apr-24 | 15-05-2024
Employees’ State Insurance Employer and Mot paid
Act, 1948 Employee

_ Contribution 0.23 May-24 | 15-06-2024 i )

Employees' State Insurance Employer and Mot paid
Act, 1948 Employes

Contribution 021 Jun-24 | 15-07-2024
Employess’ State Insurance Employer and Mot paid
Act, 1948 Employee

Contribution 0.24 Jul-24 | 15-08-2024
Eﬁipiﬂyeas‘ State Insurance Emplnj.rar and Nat paid.
Act, 1948 Employee

Contribution 0.24 Aug-24 | 15-08-2024
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(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no dug which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for
the following;

Statement of Disputed Dues

Name Mature of Amount Period to Forum where the Remarks
of Dues (Rs. in which the dispute is
Statue lacs) amount pending
relates
Cusloms Exclse Rs. 112.61 Lakhs
Custom Duty 112.61 FY 2013-14 and Service Tax of demand was
Customs appellate tribunal, stayed by
Act Chennai. CESTAT,
Chennai,
Custom - Duty 1st April 2005 High Courf of Nil
draw back and 222.74 | 1o 30th Madras (Madural
Advance September Bench)
License Scheme 2006
Income Income Tax 02.53 AY 2020-21 CIT{Appeals); Out of demand of
Tax Act MAFC, Dalhi F=. 3.16 Lakh,
20% has been
paid, and the
balance demand
of Ris. 2.53 Lakhs
s slaved as per
stay order dated
19/02/2024
Income Income Tax 00.01 AY 2021-22 CIT{Appaals), il
Tax Al MAFC, Delhi

viil. According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactkions were surrendered  or disclosed as income
during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1261) which have not been recorded in the
books of accounts.

l# (a) Consldering the restructuning scheme as approved by majority of the consortium bankers, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of its interest and principal amount of loans taken from banks and financial institutions - The
Company has nottaken loans from the Government.

(b} According o the information and explanations given lo us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we repord that the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulier by any bank or financial institution or government or any govermment
authority or any other lender.

(c)inour opinton-and according o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any Term Loan
during the year other than Term Loans approved in accordance with the restructuring scheme-and hence reporting undar
clausa 3{x)ic)does notansa.
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(d} Accoerding lo the information and explanations given lo us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report thal no funds raised on short term basis have been used
for lang-term purposes by the Company.

(&} According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the  financial statements of the
Company, we repori that the Company has not taken any funds from  any entity or person on account of or to meet the
cbligations of its subsidianes.

if) According 1o the information and explanations given to us, we report thal the Company has not raised loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held inits subsid|aries.

%. (8) The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order s nol applicable to the Company,

() The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or {fully, partly or optionally)
converlible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3

(%) (b} ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi {a) To the best of our knowladge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
or no matarial fraud on the Company has been noliced or reporied during the penod covered by our audit,

(B} Mo report under sub-section (12) of Saction 143 of the Companies Act has bean filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of
this rapart.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year,

xii. (&) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanafions given to us, the Company s not a Nidhi company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

xiil In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us all transactions antered into by the Company
with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable. Further, the details of
such ralated party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required under ndian
Apeounting Standards.

%iv. {a) In our opinion and hased on our examination, the Company bas an Intemal audit system commensurate with the size
and natura of its business,

() We have considared the reports issued by the internal Auditors of the Company issued till date, for the penod under audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connectad with its them and accordingly, provisions of Section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

xvi, (a)According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is notrequired to be registered under Section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

b} The Company has not conducted any Mon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year.
£)The Company is nota Core Investment Company (CIC), asdefined in Ihe Regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.

i) The Group does not have any CICs,
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xvil, The Company has incurred cash losses to the extent of Rs.3,912.75 lacs in the current financial year covered by our
auditand Rs. 2,040.68 lacs in the immediately preceding financial year,

wvili. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

xix. Actording to the information and explanations given lo us and on the basis of the financial ralios. agsing and expected
dates of realization of financial assels and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supperting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any  material
unceriainty exisis as on the date of the audi report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, stata
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, We further state that our reporting s based on the facts
up tothe date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that ali iabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will gel discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

#x. In the absence of average net profits in the Immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the company to
spend any amount undar Saction 135 of the Act and hence  accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the order s not
applicable for the vear,

For Gopalaiyer and Subramanian
Chartered Accountants
FRM. 0008605

R. Mahadevan

Partnar

M. Mo 027497

UDIN: 25027497BMNBAPST44

Place: Coimbatore
Date: 30th May 2025
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditor's Repart on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (f) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of K G Denim Limited ('the Company”) as at and for
the year anded 31st March 2025, we have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential componeants ofintermal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls
ovear Financial Reporting (the *Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('1CAI'), These
responsibilities include the design, Implementation and maintenance of adeguate intemal financial controls that were
operating  effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company's business, including adherence to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevantion and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and  the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with referance o standalone
financial statemeants based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by
the ICAl prescribed under Saclion 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
referenca 1o standalone financial statements, and the Guidance Mole issued by the |CAlL Those standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements  and plan and perform the audit to abtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements wera
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matenal respects.

4 Our audit Invalves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the Internal financlal controls
wilth reference lo slandalone inancial statements and their cperating effectiveness: Our audit of internal financial conftrals
with raferenca to standalone financial statements includes oblaining an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
onthe Company's intarnal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statemants.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

6. A Company's Intemnal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is  a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reparting and the preparation of financial statemeants for

external purpeses in accordance with aenerally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with
referance to standalone financial statements includes those policles and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
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records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that  receipts and
axpanditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets thal could have amaterial effecton the standalone financial stalemenis.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference o standalone  financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, matenal misstatements due to error or
fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference lo
standalone finandial siatements to future periods are subject to the risk that internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

E. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respecis, adeguate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements crileria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guldance Nole issued by the (CA|

For Gopalalyer and Subramanian
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 0009605

R. Mahadevan

Partner

M.Mo, 027497

LDIN: 25027437TBMNBAPST44

Place: Coimbatore
Data: 30th May 2025
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Particulars ::te 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
[ Audited Audited
I, |ASSETS
1 Hon-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 1 12,834,51 13,704.36
b Capital waork-in-progress 1 = -
{c) Right of Use Asset 2 - .84
(d}) Mon current financial asset
Mon-current investments 3 330,98 330.86
[=3] Deferred tax Assets L 2,462.07 1,269,313
(F} Other non current assets 5 238 .56 237.35
15, 866.12 15,551.64
2 |Current assels
{a) Inverntories ] 6,109,663 9,48%.05
[{=} Current financial asset
{1jTrade receivables, current F 6,297.91 9,533.41
{11} Cash and cash equivalents -] 328,78 44,25
{iit) Bank balance other than (i) above 9 25.67 323,28
{c) Current tax assets (net) 10 199,78 270,68
i Other current asset 11 4 87829 5.366.44
[1=1] Asset Held for Sale 6,97 -
17,847.03 25,036.11
33,713.15 40,587.75
Il.  |EQUITY ANMD LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY
{ap Equity share capital 12 2,564.90 2,564,590
fla} Other equity i3 +2,164.15 o7.01
Total Equity 400,75 3,536,90
2 |LIABILITIES
Hon-current Habilities
{al Mon current financial labilities
{i) Borrowings 14 17.663.09 3,244,90
{ii) Lease Liabilities 15 - 9.68
by Long-term provisions 16 268,67 9.8y
{c} Long-term - Trade Payable - -
(d) Government grants 17 - 13087
17.931.76 3,984.32
Current liabilities
{a) Current financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings id 6,085.0% 17,574.21
(1) Lease Liabilities 19 . 0.43
{H)Trade payable - Micro and Small Enterprises 928,53 309,50
{11} Trade payable - Others 0 7.332107 13,704.99
b MEME Interest Payable 21 315.68 B9.32
=] Other current financial liabilities 2 559.92 552.30
fd) Short-term pravisions 21 28,43 65.15
=1 Government granks FL 130,87 17063
Difference
1538063 33,066.53
33,713,115 40,587.75
[significant Accounting Policies 35
|The notes form an integral part of these financial statements
Az par our repart of even date Far and on bekalf of ihe Board of Diraciors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHMAN B SRIRAMULU B SRIHARI
Charlersd Accountanls  Execulive Chairman Managing Dhractor Director
DIM - 00002174 DM ; 00002 56D DiN - 00002556
) RMAHADEVAN M. BALAJI RAMAPRABHA .5
UDIN fﬂﬂﬂ?ar‘ﬂ”ahpﬁ?“ Fartner  Company Secratary Chief Financial Officer
Piaca | Coimbatore Mambarship Mo 027487

Dale : 30,05.2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH 2025
[Rs. in Lakhs] Except EPS

Particulars ':;:m 31.03,2025 | 31.03.2024
Audited Audited
I |INCOME
|Revenue from operations 25 4,920,646 15,647.88
[Other Income 16 78519 ii6.67
|Total Income 5,705.85 25,96%9.55
Il [EXPEMSES
{Cost of materials consumed 7 1.102.04 12,761.08
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 28 6.26 487.04
\Changes in inventories of finished goods,
f wark-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 29 2,827.06 -572.58
Iﬂther Manufacturing Expense 30 1,866, 32 6,847.33
[Employee banefits expense k1| 2,088 62 4,372.93
{Finance cost 32 2,889.07 2,391.47
ID‘epreciatmn and amartization expense 1 886,69 1.457.21
|Other expenses 13 T60.40 1.%%6.08
Total expenses 12,426.66 |  29,740.56
Il |Profit before exceptional -6, 720.81 -3.771.m
| items and tax
I iE‘.u:EpHunaE items - DEPBE Receipts 34 z 256,75
[Extraordinary Items - Excise Duty Refund 14 2,039,772
V  Profit before tax (1= 1v) -4 681.09 -3,514.26
¥l | Tax expense:
:q‘l } Current Lax - -
112} Deferred tax -1,192.74 -328.21
[(3) Income Tax for earlier years 99,61 -
-1,093.12 -988.21
Vil :Pn:rﬂtﬁlusﬁ} {after tax) {V-VI) -3,587.97 -2,516.05
Will |Other Comprehensive income (Net of Tax)
tems that will not reclassified to Profit or Loss
{Fair value of Equity Instruments 012 1.40
!Gratult‘y valuations through OCI 451.69 201.30
| 451.81 202.70
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the perlod (VII + VIl -3,136.16 -2,323.35
X |Earnings per equity share;
111} Basic -13.99 -9.B5
[(2) Diluted -13.99 9,85
Weighted Humber of Equity Shares 25,637,825 25,637,825
{Significant Accounting Policies 35
{The notes form an Integral part of these fnancial statements
Az par our repart of even date Far and on bekalf of ihe Board of Diraciors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHNAN B SRIRAMULLU B SRIHARI
Charlersd Accountanls  Execulive Chairman Managing Dhractor Director
OIN : O002174 DN ; 0002560 DiN - 00002556
RMAHADEVAN M. BALAJI RAMAPRABHA .8
UDIN : 2502T497BMNBAPST44 Partner  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Placa | Coimbatore Mambarship Mo 027457

Dale : 30,05.2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31.03.2025

(A=, im Lakhs)
FERIOD ENDED | FERIODRD ENDED
PARTICULARS 3108, 2025 31.08.2024
|R=. In Lakhs) [Rs. Im Lakhs)
Audited Audited
A, |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIMNG ACTIVITIES: Adelited Aiidibeel
Met profit before tax and extracrdinary ltams {6,720.81) 3. 7r.01)
Adjustments for
Drepreciation and Amoartestion expensos oG .65 1,457 21
Finance Cost 2,889.07 2;391.47
Irterest lmoormo {A418.0%) [ Nat- e nll
Dividend Income {0.0%) [Guos)
Profit’Loss on sale of Fixed Asseis {20.52) 11,11
Apporionad on Govornmant Grants {170.63) (170636
Remeasursment of Employes Benefils Obligations A51 .69 01,30
Galn on Termination of Lease Liability (0.27) {2, 65)
Operating Profit before working capital changes (3,102 89) 1.75%
Adjustmants for
(InoraaseyDacressa in Trade and other roseivables 3,235.50 A1E.8R
(Inocresse ¥ Decredse in Inveniores 3,a79.42 [22E.20)
(Increase¥Decreasa in Othar Mon cumment assets (1.30) {3.53)
(InereaseyDecrense in Other Curment asssts 5ER.0% (73826}
IncreasaeiDecreasa) In Trade and other payables (6,119.77) 1,283,009
Increasa/{Decraasa) in Provislons and Cthars {366.94] [23.68)
Ca=zh gonerated from operations {2,407.93) Ga0. 06
Cash Now belore sxiracrdinary/Exceptional iterms [2.80% 893)) GA G
Extracrdinary/Excaptional ltem 2,039.72 256,75
Caszh flow after extracrdinary/Exceptional items (368 72) 06 80
Income Tax for earler yaars {99.62) -
Het cash (usod in)jgenerated from operating activities {aB7.83) R9E.AD
B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Irtesrset Ineorms A418.01 108 O
Lriwiclend Iincome .07 005
Sale of proparty, plant and sguipmznt 509.34 21.68
Capital Subsidy Recebwed - .
Purchase of property, plant and equiprmeant {62.64) [131.50)
Margin monay doposit with bonk 297.60 15.92)
Met cash (uzed in)/generated froam inveasting activitiez ri2.an [l
. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceads ! Repayrmant from Long tarm borrowings 14,418.19 (1.299.47)
Procesds / Repayment from short term borrowings [11,4895.17) 2,7R1.RS
Fawyiment tor Equity Dividend
Distribution Tax on Eguity Dividend
Interast poid [2.889.07) £2,391.47)
Mt cash (used in)/generated Mrom linancing sctivities ELUR:T [ER ] |
Mat Increase in cash and cash aquivalants IR4.53 30,02
Cash and cash eqguivalenls as al 1St Apcil, 2025 F 2024
[(Dpaning Balancea) 44,25 1423
Cash and gash sguivalents &8s at 315t March, 2026 ¢ 2024
(Closing Balanoce) 328.78 44,25
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprises of the following
Cagh and cash aguivalants 228,78 A4 25
Balance as por Statement of Cash Flows 3ZE.7E 44,25

Motes: The abowve Cash Flow Statement has baan prepared undar the "Indirect Mathod™ as set out in Indian
Accaunting Standard-7, * Statement of Cash Flows'.

Az par our repart of even date

Far and on bekalf of ihe Board of Diraciors

For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHNAN B SRIRAMULL
Charlersd Accountanls  Execulive Chairman Managing Dhractor
DIN ; D021 74 DIM ; 00002560
RMAHADEVAN M. BALAJ RAMAPRABHA .5
UDIN : 2502T497BMNBAPST44 Partner  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Placa | Coimbatore Mambarship Mo 027457

Dale : 30,05.2025

B SRIHARI
Director
DN ; 00002556
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{1} Current Reporting Period
Changes in equity Changes in aguity
Balance as at 01.04.2024 share capital dua to] s aied balance as] ) o copital during|  Miance s
t i at 01.04.2024 31.03.2025
prior period errors the current year
2,564.90 2,564.90 2,564.90
(2] Previous Reporting Period
Changes in equity Changes in equity
Balance as at 01.04.2023 share capital due to] Restated balanca ast | o @ opital during Balance as at
i : at 01.04.2023 3.03.2024
prior period errors the current year
2,564.90 2,564.90 2,564.90
B. OTHER EQUITY
| Capital Securifies General Surplus Total
Redemption Premium Reserves
Reserve Reserve
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 161 444,44 1,5489.28 1,300.02 | 3,295.35
Profit {loss) for the year 252604 | -2526.04
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 20270 20270
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -232334 | 232334
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 161 444.44 1,549.28 -1,023.32 §72.01
Prafit (loss) for the year -358797 | -3587497
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 451,81 451.81
Total Comprehensive Income for {he year -3,136.16 | -3,1368.16
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 161 444.44 1549.28 -4,159.48 | -2,164.15
As par our reporl of even date For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHNAN B SRIRAMULL B SRIHARI]
Charlersd Accountanls Execullva Chairmarn Managing Diraclor Diractor
DIN - 00002174 DIN ; 00002560 DiN ; 0002556
) i RMAHADEVAN M. BALAJ RAMAPRABHA .5
UDIN ; 25027497 BMNBAPST44 Partner  Company Secretary Chief Financial Oficer
Piaca | Coimbatore Mambarship Mo 027487

Dale : 30,05.2025
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¥ G DENIN LIMITED - FINED ASSETS SCHEDULE - 2024-25
Note 1: Praperty, Plant & Equipment

[Rs, It Lache]
Fixed hzsats Land Euildings Plant & Electrical Fureiture Vizkiclies Diffice Other Totad Capial
Equigmant | Machimary | & Fixtures Equigmant | [Speciy | intarghls Werkin
naburef Progress
rores Carying Valoe
Cost as 2t AprlL203 1,047 58 EERL 164514 s el T 2 e 210 Fic 1
itions BEES el o 5L
V| it Adjustment b a7
| Disposak: 11 | f.1 B8 X161
at March 31, 2005 L0A1H £273.40 1654.1 TER | .1 4ER mn i L 5EM
Degredation
at Apil, 2024 LI0BES 085,73 47418 135% 53LA1 1574 1% 0% 12310
Deprecation for the e 19936 Ml 08 .75 in 150 . 040 BB
{-10n Disposals s - k4l - [ 338 = ; ped:
ak March 31, 2005 : 150825 s S 146,65 36078 M| 1% 16 R
et Carrying Value
at March 31, 2005 109101 £305.24 6.537.02 1575 39.61 135.04 15,51 0.3 055 12,3451
at March 31, 200 108758 45640 1807 81 158 | 1145 15841 ] L) L3 137045
Az par our repart of even date Far and on bekalf of ihe Board of Diraciors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHMAN B SRIRAMULU B SRIHARI
Charlersd Accountanls  Execulive Chairman Managing Dhractor Director
OIN : O002174 DN ; 0002560 DiN - 00002556
) RMAHADEVAN M. BALAJI RAMAPRABHA .5
UDIN -§5!-"”4"="?BMNBAP5”4 FPartner  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Placa | Coimbatore Mambarship Mo 027457

Dale : 30,05.2025
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HWOTE 2 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS {Rs, In Lakhsy
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Gross Carrying Value
Deemed Cost as at 1st April, 202472023 i g 5
Additions -
Dispasals -41.90
Balance as al 31sL March, 202572024 35.32
Depreciation
As at 15t April, 202472023 25.48
Additions -
Dispazal -
Balance asat 31st March, 202572024 15.48
Het Block as al 3150 March, 2025 /2004 - 9.84
HOTE 3 INVESTMENTS-NON CURRENT {As. In Lakhs)
] S Particulars 311.03.2025 31.03.2024
A NON-TRADE IMVESTMENTS
Equiity (Quoted)
i Inclian Bank, - 605 Equity Shares of Bs, 10/- each .27
TOTAL - A 3.27
B EQUITY INVESTMENTS
I Trade Investments (Subsidiary Companies)
i Trigger Apparels Limited - Subsidiary
45,00,000 Eguity Shares of Rs, 10/ each-Un quated
450.00 450.00
Less @ Provision for impainrment (*) -450.00 -450.00
ii KG Dermim (USA) Inc - Wholly owned Subsidiary-Un guoted
0.46 046
Less @ Provision for impainment -0.456 (.46
5UB TOTAL - -
1l TRADE INVESTMENTS
i KG Fabriks Limited (MIL)
(P.Y.  32,70,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each-Un
quoted)
i Sri Kanpapiran sMills Limited 137 .46 127,46
3.31,588 Equity Shares of Rs,10/-each- Un Cuoted (P.Y.
3,321,588 Equity Shares) C e
ii Cotton Sourcing Company Ltd 1.00 1.00
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each-Un guoted
Less : Provision for impairment -0.75 -0.75
0.25 0.25
SUB TOTAL a7 327.71
TOTAL (B = 1+11} 3zr.n 32771
GRAND TOTAL (A + B) 330,98 330.86
Particutars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 4_32 432
Market value of gquoted investments 3.27 315
Agpregate amount of unquoted investments at Cost Tra. 72 778.92
Aggrepate Value of impaired Investments -451,71 451,21

Mote: (") A provision of impalrment losses for Rs. 450,46 Lakhs was reconglzed during 2019-20 on account of erosion
in networth of its subsidiary Trigger Apparels Limited and wholly owned subsidiary KG Denim (USA) Inc.
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MOTE 5 OTHER MOM-CURRENT ASSETS {Rs, In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a. Capital Advances
Advance for Capital Goods - Un secured considered good 211.26 209,95
Others TOTAL 211.26 209.95
b. Security Deposits
Security Deposits - Un secured considered good 27.30 27.30
TOTAL 27.30 17,30
GRAMD TOTAL 238.56 237.25
NOTE 4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Opening Balance 1,260,313 281.12
0n account of Business loss & Depreciation as per books of accounts & IT purposeiDTA) 1,192.74 988. 21
Met Deferred Tax Asset 2,462.07 1,269.33
NOTE 6 INVENTORIES {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a. Raw Materials and components 1,117.14 1,193.50
1,117.14 1,193.50
b, Work-in-progress 513.37 2.m7.03
513.37 2,017.03
. Finished goods 3.266.09 4,444, %6
Gonds-in transit - 144.53
3,266.09 4,589.49
d. Stores and Spares 1,,1"?9'.9"3 1,6?5_9?
1,199.99 1,675.97
e, Others (Specily nature)
Stock of Waste 13.04 13.06
13.04 13.06
TOTAL 6,109.63 9.489.05
Mode of valuation @ Refer note 34 fife) In significant Accounting Policles,
NOTE 7 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Current Receivables
Trade recejvables Unsecured Considered Good 6, 297.91 9,533.41
Trade receivables Unsecured Considered as Doubtful Debts 414,57 414,57
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts -414 .57 414,57
TOTAL 6,297.91 | 9,533.41
HOTE B8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03,2025 31.03.2024
a. Balances with banks 36,71 41.61
b, Cash on hand 2.07 2.64
Total 328.78 44.15
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MOTE 9 OTHER BANK BALANCES (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03,2025 31.03.2024
a. Others Bank Balances
Unclaimed Dividend Account F0.67 31,18
|b. Others
Margin Money Deposits on LC 5.00 292.10
Total 25.67 323.28
MHOTE 10 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (MET) {R5. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Tax Paid in advance {net)
For Duties & Taxes - 199.78 279.68
Total 199.78 279.68
MOTE 11 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {Fs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
&, Export incentives Receivable 254.03 208.30
b. IG5T Refund Receivable 178.16 154.83
c. DEPE Receivable- 50,40 184.84
d, Buty Brawback Recelvable 71.91 71.91
e, REC Certificate Income Recelvable - 63.99
f. Interest Receivable 427 .46 6. 70
g. Input Credit G5T Receivable 2,381.58 2,434,32
h. Insurance Claim Receivable 27.19 27.19
i. Advance for Material Purchase T40.10 1,400.75
j. Advance for Expenses [ Others 741.60 286,50
k. Prepaid Expenses 10.86 227.11
Total 4,878.29 5,366.44
HOTE 12 SHARE CAPITAL {R=. In Lakhs)
Share Capital 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Authorised
3,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 3,100.00 3,100.00
10,00,000 Preference shares of Rs.100each 1.000.00 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up share capital
2,546,317 825 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 2 563.78 2,563.78
(Frevious year 2,56,37 825 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
ADD:
37,400 forfeited equity shares 1.12 1.12
Tatal 2,564.90 2,564.90
NOTE 43 OTHER EQUITY -RESERVES AND SURFLUS (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a. Securities Premium Reserves
Opening Balance A4, 44 444 44
Add : Additian / Deletion |
Closing Balance | A4, 44 444,44
b. Other Reserves
Capital Redemption Reserve
Cpening Balance 1.61 1.61
(+) Current Year Transfer
{-} Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance 1.61 1.61
General Reserve
Opening Balance 1,549.28 1.549 .28
{+) Current Year Transfer
Closing Balance 1,549.28 1,549.28
c. Surplus
Opening balance -1,023,32 1,300,02
{+) Comprehensive Income For the current year l -3,136.16 «2.323.35
Closing Balance | {4,159.48) (1,023.32)
Total | (2,164.15) 972.01

a5




HOTE 14 FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES LOMG TERM BORROWIMGS (Rs. In Lakhs}
Partieulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Secured
(a} Term loans
Indian Rupee Loan
from banks [(Secured) 131,982.15 2,455, 94
from others - 592,56 401,44
b) Long term maturities of finance lease obligations 14.89 J2.52
({5ecured by Vehicles on Hire Purchase Loan)
NEECLUT
i) Long term Loan - Directors 15129 225.00
i1} Intercorporate deposit 162,95 150, 00
iii) Others - HNBFC 559,25 .
c} Long-term - Trade Payable Z.100.00
Total 1766309 3,244.90
HNOTE 15 LEASE LIABILITIES [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Lease Liabilities - GoG8
Total . 9,68
HOTE 16 LOMG TERM PROVISIGNS {Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{a) Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (unfunded) 268.67 598.87
- - Total 268.67 598.87
HOTE 17 GOVERHMENT GRANTS {Bs, In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Government Grants - 130.87
Total - 130.87
HOTE 1B SHORT TERM BORROWINGS {Rs. In Lakhs)
— Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Secured
{a) Loans repayable on demand
(i) Warking Capital Loan from Banks {Secured) 5,6959.56 13,070.33
{11} Working Capital Loan from Other than Banks {Secured) B4 41 A4, B4
Unsecured
(a) Loans repayable on demand
Working Capital Loan from other than Banks {Unsecured) = 1,499 4
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
{a} Current Maturities of Long-term debts - Secured . 2,515.06
{b) Current maturities of financial institutions Lona:term Debt 1.08 a4, 9
Total 65.085.05 17.574.21

Security Clause

Working Capital facilities from Indlan Bank Consadium (Indian Bank, State Bank of India, Bank of Maharashira and Union Bank of Indla are
secured by a first parni passy charge on the whole of the current assels through Deed of Hypothecation and second par  passi charge on [a)
all the immovatde properies situated in (1) 1021887 acres of land al Jadayampalayam, Alangomobu and  Karamadal Village in
Meltupalayam Taluk, Colmbatore Districl, Peelamedu, Combators, Tamil Madu and (i) 2915562 sg. meters of land at Amdha Village,
Charampur Taluk, Valsad District, Gujarat through equitable madgage created with Indian Bank and {b) all plant and machineres (exchuding
vohicles charged Lo financiers, Bangalore proparly) throwgh Dead of Hypothecation. Tha entire working capital facilithes are also guarantoeed
by Shri KG Baalakrizhnan, Executive Chairmanand Shn B Sriramulu, Maraging Director

HOTE 19 LEASE LIABILITIES (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03,.20215 31.03.2024
Lease Liabilities - 0.43
Total - 0.43
HMOTE 20 TRADE PAYABLES {Rs. Iin Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
'I'r'a'.de'll"a?ah'l'es
For Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 928.53 909,50
For Other Dues 7.332.17 13,704 .99
Total B,260.70 14,614, 49
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Security Clause - Standalone
Bank Borrowings of Term Loans

Term Loans {from Indian Bank (1B ) are securad by first pan passu charge an {a) allimmovable properbies situated in (1) 1021897 acres ol land
al jadayampalayam, Alangombu and Karamadal Villages in Metiupalayam Taluk, Coimbatore Dhstrict, Pestamadu land, Coimbatore Tamil
Madu and {i) 2155.62 50, melres of land at Amdha Village, Dharampur Taluk, Valsad Districl, Gujarat through equitable morigage created
with Indian Bank and (b) all plant and machineries including machineries and other movable fixed assets (excuding vehickes charged to
financiers, Mumbal Propaty and Bangalore Proparty ) acquired lor the New Capex Plan through Desed of Hypolhecation and second pan
passu charge on curren! assats of the Company

It has been proposed in the restructuring sanctlon o create subservient charge on the Tata Capital and 1CIC| Properly as disbursemant
condition

Indian Bank is holding the original title deedz on its own behalf and on behall of other Banks. Tarm Loans are also guaranteed by Shrl KG
Baalakrishnan, Executlve Chalrman and Shri, B Sriramulu, Maraging Deractor.

Term Loan Outstanding |Previous |Repaymen]Commencemant |Last Rate of [Previous Rata
Bank Yoar guarterly |from Instalment |Interest |of interest
Rslin  lakhs

Indian Bank TL -Vl 13408 181.04 16 31.03.2026 3122029 | 9.05% 9.60%
Indian Bank TL -Vl BOg2| 10174 16 31.03.2026 31122028 | 9.05% 0 B0,
Indian Bank Corp. Loan 64500 7ToOv.32 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 9.05% 10.10%
Indian Bank GECL 87294 1120.19 16 31.03.2026 31.12:2029 | 2.05% 8.30%
Union Bank of India GECL 13417 266.43 16 31.03.2026 3122029 9.00% 7.60%
State Bank of India GECL 16645 197.23 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 9.50% T.95%
South Indian Bank GECL 13869 151.43 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 920% 89.200%
Indian Bank GECL-2.0 BOB 44| 105943 16 31.03.2026 31.12:2029 | 2.05% 8.30%
Union Bank of India GECL-2.0 171.99( 243.00 16 31.03.2026 3122029 | 9.00% 7.85%
State Bank of India GECL-2.0 15817 185.99 16 31.03.2026 31122028 | 9.50% T7.05%
South Indian Bank GECL-2.0 13594 137.00 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 9.25% 89.25%
Indian Bank WCTL 4397.00 0.00 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 9.05%
Union Bank of India WCTL 107419 000 16 31.03.2026 3122029 9.00%
State Bank of India WCTL 1147.00 000 16 31.03.2026 31122028 | 9.50%
Bank of Maharashtra WCTL BB4.06 000 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 9.00%
Indian Bank FITL-| 1165.24 0.00 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 9.05%
Union Bank of India FITL-I 163.12 000 16 31.03.2026 3122029 9.00%
State Bank of India FITL-I 216.19 000 16 31.03.2026 3122029 | 9.50%
Bank of Maharashtra FITL=I 101.23 000 16 31.03.2026 31122028 | 9.00%

Poriod & Repayment

Door to Door tenor of 20 quarterly nstalimants with moratonum of 4 quarters and piaciple repayabde in 16 equal quartely installments
commencing from quarter ending March 2028 and ending on December 2029, Inlarest o be serviced as and when deblled post
moratorium penod.

Tha Company has-availed a Term Loan from ICICE Bank Lid and Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. ICIC Bank Lig & having  an exclusiva
charge on the Bangalore office properly, and Tata Capltal Financlal Services Lid Is having an exclusive charge on 24 25 acras of land siiuated
at Jadayampalayam

[Term Loan Cutstanding | Previous |Repayment |Commeancamaent |Last Rate of |Previous Rale

Bank “Year months from Instalment |lnterest |of Inlerest
Rein |lakhs

ICICI Bank Lid 46.00| 113.08 120 05.05.2017 05.05.2027 | B.60% B.60%

Tata Capilal Financial Services Lid 333.13| 38080 B4 16.10.2019 15.09.2026 | 11.00% 11.00%

Tala Capdal Financial Senvices Lid-2.0 218,43 26400 48 1.01.2024 1.01.2027 | 11.00% 11.00%

Samunatti - WCTL 468.75 0.00 16 31.03.2026 31122028 | 16.00%

Samunatti- FITL-I 55.55 0.00 16 31.03.2026 31.12.2029 | 16.00%
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Hote 21
Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(a} MSME Interest Payable 315.68 B9.32
Total 315.68 89.32
WOTE 22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a) Customer Credit Balance 244 90 370.25
ib) Duties and Taxes 243.19 101.30
(o} Creditors for Capital goods 51,16 49 57
id) Unpaid Dividend acerued 2067 31.18
Taotal 55992 592.30

There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2025 of Rs. 10,35,218/- {Previous yvear Rs. 8,60,098/-)

MOTE 23 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS (Rs, In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{a) Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (unfunded) - 18.42 65.15
Total 28.42 65.15
HOTE 24 GOVERMMENT GRANTS
- B Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Government Grants 130.87 170.63
Total 130,87 170,63
HOTE 25 REVEMUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Sale of products 4, 541,69 23 922.79
Sale of services - Job work 245,86 505.90
Other operating revenues @ Waste Cotton/Yarn fAccessories sales 35,18 Tio1
Export Incentives 97.93 444 (8
Total 4,920.66 25,642,858
HOTE 26 OTHER INCOME
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest Income 418,03 108.00
Other Income - Creditors no longer payable 150.00 5
Apportioned income from Govt Grant 170,63 170.63
Dividend Income 0.07 0.05
Lease Rent Receipts .60 2.10
Miscellaneous Income 5.53 13.94
Insurance Claim Received 2 28.92
Profit on sale of fixed assets 20.52 3.03
Exchange Difference Gain _ 14,90 -
Total 785.19 326.67

68




K G DENIM LIMITED

MOTE 27 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED (Rs. Inm Lakhs})
Particulars 31.03,2025 31.03.2024
Opening Stock 1,193.50 1,416.97
Purchases 1,025 68 12,537.61
Sub-taotal 2,219,118 13,954,358
Less @ Closing stack 1,117.14 1,193.50
| Raw materials consumed 1.102.04 12,761.08
MOTE 28 PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Garments purchase 6.26 487.04
Total 6,26 | 4B7.04

HOTE 29 CHAMGES IN INVENTORIES OF FIMISHED GOODS WORK-IM-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Opening Stock ;
Wark-in-process 2,017.03 1,384.54
|Finished Goods 4,589 .49 4, 649,40
Traded |Leimns
6,606.52 6,033,94
Closing Stock
Work-in-process 513.37 2,017.03
[Finished Goods 326609 4,589.49
Traded |tems R i
3,7792.46 6,606.52
Total 2,827.06 -572.58
MOTE 30 OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03,2025 31.03.2024
{a} Power & Fuel 1,342.74 5,206.33
(b) Consumptions of Stores & Spare Parts 245.30 685,23
(c) Processing Charges 188.26 567.96
{d) Repalrs & Malntenance
For Flant & Machinery 5217 127,20
For Buildings 14.04 34,97
For Others 23.81 125.64
Total 1,866.32 6.847.33
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MOTE 31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPEMSES (Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{a) Wages 1,844.53 3.712. 31
(b) Salaries - Managing Directors ¢ Whole Time Directors - 156.00
(e) Contributions to Provident fund and other funds 105.19 214,31
(d) Gratuity as per actuarial valuations 85.64 111.34
(g) Staff welfare expenses 53.26 178.97
Total 2,088.62 4,172.93
NOTE 32 FINANCE COST {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest expense 2.813.79 2211077
Other borrowing costs 72.98 178,72
Applicable net (gain} floss on foreign currency transactions, translation and 2.30 0,98
Impaort reinstatermnent
Total 2,889.07 2,391.47
MOTE 33 OTHER EXPENSES (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Rent 15.58 55.50
Insurance 212.23 259,96
[Rates and taxes, excluding, taxes on income. 73.36 54.49
Payments to the auditor as
a. as statutory auvditor .00 .00
Legal, Professional B Consultancy Charges 71.18 114.23
Printing and Stationery 399 19.16
Postage, Telegrams and Telephones 2417 99,60
Traveling Expenses and Maintenance of Vehicles 181.75 444,36
Director Sitting Fees 1.35 5.60
Software Maintenance Expenses 5.88 F3
Commission on Sales .71 92.05
Discount on Sales 21.05 113.48
Selling Expenses 16.45 359.22
Freight Qutwards 77.20 220.78
Prayer Hall Repairs and maintenance . £.90
Sundry Balance / Bad debts written off .03 9,92
Miscellaneous expenses 26.29 107.98
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets - 14,15
Loss on sale of Export Licenses 14.38 4.27
| Total 760.60 1,996.08
NOTE 34 EXCEPTIOMAL ITEMS - DEPB RECEIPTS {R=. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
DEPE Recelpts - 184,84
Duty Draw Back Receipts - 71.9
Extracrdinary Items - Excise Duty Refund 2,039.72 .
2,039.72 256,75
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 5T MARCH, 2025
Mote:- 35: STATEMENT OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

K & Denim Limited incorporated In India and listed on the BSE Is a leading manufaciurer of denim fabrics, apparet fabrics,
home textiles and apparel {garmanls].

1. Material Accounting Paolicies followed by the Company
Basis of preparation
1. Compliance with Ind AS

These financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to
as the Ind AS) as notified by Minlstry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 {'Act’) read with
of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financia! statements.

2. Historical cost conventions
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value in larms of Ind AS,

3. Going Concarn
The accounts are prepared on the bas:is of going concern concept

4. Current non-current classification
All assets and liabilities bave been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's nommal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Act.

5. Presentation and Functional Currency
The standalone financial statements and Notes are presented in the Company’s functional and presentation currency, Indian
rupee (Rs.}, rounded off to the nearest rupees inlakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company
and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events)
that the Company believes 1o be reasonable under the exigting circumstances. Differences between aclual results and
eslimates are recognised in the pericd In which the results are known / matenialised. The said estimales are based on the
facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that ocourred after that date but provide additional evidence about
conditions existing as at the reporting date

Property, Plant and equipment

The Company has applied for the one-lime transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date Le.
April 1, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS. Hence regarded thereafier as historical cost. Freehold land is carried at cost
All ather items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cosl less depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly atirbutable to the acquisition of the items, Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amounl or recognised as a separale assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable thal future economic benefils
associated with the item will flow 1o the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any compoenent accounted for as a separate assel is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
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charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. Depreciation methods,
estimated useful lives and residual value Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment and other fixed assets is provided
an a Straight-Line Method, over the estimated useful lives of assets.

The Company depreciates its property, plant and eguipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the
Act, and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule |l to the Act. except for

power planl machinery which based on an independent technical evaluation, life has been estimaled as 20
years, which |s different from that prescribed in Schedule |l fo the AcL

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for various assets class are as follows-

Asset Class Useful Life
Factory Bullding 30 years
Mon- Factory Building 60 years
Plant and Machineny 15 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicles 8 years
Power Plant 20 years
Compulers 3 years

The residual values are not more than 5% of the orginal cost of the asset. The assetls residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the-end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Work-in-Progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yel installed and ready for their intended use at the
balance sheel date.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amertizationd depletion and
impalrment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing

the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carmying amount. These are recognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Cost of itemns of intangible assets not ready for intended use as on the balance sheet dale are disclosed as intangible assets
under development. Amortisation method and periods. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual
reparting period, with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the nel disposal
proceeds and the camying amount of the assel and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Mon-Current Assets held for Sale
Mon-current assels are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale

transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured al the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to se(l.

Mon-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assets classified
as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash 'on hand and bank,

current account balanoes,

Inventories
Inventories of Raw Maternals, Work-in-Progress, Stores and spares, Finished Goods and Stock-in-trade are siated’ atcostor

net realisable value, whichever is lower.” Cost comprise all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred In
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost formula used are "Weighted Average cost’ average cost
or' Specific identification’ as applicable. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever

NEecessary.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby profit / (loss) before ta:x s adjusted for the effects of tax expanses

, transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows

from operating, investing and finrancing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Lease
Operating Lease

The Company has adopted the accounting standard Ind AS 116 “Leases”. Ind AS 116 is a single lessee accounting model and

sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors.

As alessee: The Company's lease assets primarily consist of office premises which are of short-term lease with the term of
twelve months or less and low value leases, For these short term and low value leases, the Company has recognized the
lease payments as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of lease. Atthe date of
commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-cf-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liabllity for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a tarm of 12 months or less (short-lerm leases) and low
value leasas. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certaln that they will be exercised.
The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or pricr to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They

are subsequently measured at cost less aceumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreclated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorler of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying assel. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of Impalmment testing, the recoverable amount
{i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual assel basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unil (CGU) lo which the asset belongs. The lease liability is initislly measured
at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, esing the Incremental borrowing rates In the country of domicile of
these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company

changes ils assessment of whether it will exercise an exlension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU assels have
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been separately presented In the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

As a lessor: Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
gre classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-iine basls over the term of
the relevant lease unless the recelpls are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor's expected inflationary coslincreases. Initizl direct costs incurred in negotialing and arranging an operaling lease ara
added lo the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the 2ame basis as rental income.

Contingent renls are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Leases ara classified as finance leases whean substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company
to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as recelvables at the Company's netinvestment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant penodic rate of retum en the
netinvestmentoutstanding in respect of the lease.

{g) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are recognised at cost as per Ind AS 27. And subject to impairment losses reviewed at the end of
each year.

(h) Financial Instruments

Afinanchal instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entityand a financial hability or equity instrument
of another entity. Financial assels and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assels recorded at fair value through profitorloss) are
included in the transaction value of the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a lime frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are recognised on trade
date. While, financlal liabilites like loans and borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly attnbutable transaction

cosls:

{a) Non-derivative Financial Assets

{1} Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(1) those lo be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehenslve income, or through the
Statemeant of Prafit and Loss), and

(2} those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assels and the contractual

terms of the cash flows.
Measurement
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

All equity Instruments excepl Investments in subsidiaries are measured at fair value. Equity instruments held for trading is

classified as FVTPL. Forall other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subseqguent
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changes in the fair value in QCL The Company makes such election on-an instrumentby-instrument basis. If the Company
decides fo classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC!, then all fair value changes on lhe instrument, excluding dividend are

recognised in OClwhich is not subseguently reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Al initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial assels carried al
fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Financial assets at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categonzation as at
amortised cosl or as FYTOC, is classified as FVYTPL In addition, the Company may elect o designate the financial asset,
which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCIH critena. as FVTPL i doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency. Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

pericd, with any gsins or losses &rising on remeasurement recognised In profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates. any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset and is included in the tOther

income’ line item. Dividend on financial assels al FYTPL is recognised when the Company's right o receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not

represent a recovery of parl of cosl of the Investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably
Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, oril
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain contral of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions
whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised. On dergcognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the camying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the
sum of (i) the consideration recelved (Including any new asset obtalned less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in OClis recognised in Statement of Profitand Loss,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assels based on historical trend, industry practices
and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment of non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are lested annually for
impairment. or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assels are
tested for impairmenl whensver evenls or changes in circumstances indicate thal the carrying amount may not be
recaoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount axceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amountis the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose

of assessing Impalrment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
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are largely independent of the cash Inflows from other assets or group of assets (cashgenerating units). Non- financial assets

that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
(b) Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivalive financial instruments, e.g. foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its
foreign cumency risks. Derlvative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract
is enterad into-and are subsequently remeasured al their fair value at the end of each period. Any gains or losses arising

from changes In the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured al amortised cosl using the effective interesl method or at FVTPL.
Financial liahilities measured at amortised cost

Afterinitial recognition, interest-beaning loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilitles are derecognized as well as

through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integral
partofthe EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs inthe Statement of Profit and Loss.

The effective interest method Is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest

exwpense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that sxactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amournt

oninitial recognition.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initlal recognition as at fair
walue through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and |osses, Including any interest expense, are
recognised In profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when |ts contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.
Segment Reparting:

Operating segments are reporied in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker,

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction cosls) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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Borrowing costs

Interast and other borrowing costs attributable to gualifying assets are capitalized. Other Interest and borrowing costs are

charged to Stalement of Profit and Loss.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resull of past events, it
iz probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a prelax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specificto the liability, The increase in the provision due

tothe passage of ime is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities are disciosed in respect of possible obligations that anse from past events but their existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of fulure outflow of resources or where & reliable

estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Revenue recognition

Revenue iz measured at the value of Ihe consideration received or recelvable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are

exclusive of GST and net of retums, frade allowances, rebates, discounts, and value added taxes.

The Campany recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it |s probable that future economic

benefits will low to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities as described below.
Sale of goods

The Company earns revenue primarily from sale of manufactured goods (fabnc, home textiles and garments). It has applied
the principles laid down in Ind AS 115. In case of sale to domestic customers, sale Is made on ex-factory basis and revenue Is
recognized when the goods are dispatched from the factory gate. In case of export sales, revenue is recognized on shipment

date, when performance obligation is met.

Revenue from services

Revenue from services Is recognized in the accounting pericd in which the services are rendered
Export Incentive

Export incentives under various schemes notified by govermnment are accounted for In the year of exports based on

eligibility and when there i= no uncertainty in receiving the same.
Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from Investments is recognised when the shareholder's right lo receive payment has been established

{provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured
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reliably).interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured refiably. Interestincome is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. which is the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assel lo that assel's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for to the extent the company is reasonably certain of thelr ultimate collection.
Employee benefits

(i} Short-term obligations

Short term employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable within 12 months after the end of the pericd

in which the employees render service are accounted on accrual basis. Company's contributions paid / payable during the
year lo Providenl Fund and ESIC are recognized in the statement of profit and loss account. All leave encashment dues for

the year are settied within the same year.
{ii) Defined contribution plans

For certaingroup of employees, employee benefitin the form of Provident fund, Employees State Insurance Contribution and
Labour Welfare fund are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payabie to
the respective fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to these funds/ schemes as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the schame for service received before the balance sheel
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liabllity after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a

reduction in future payment ora cash refund.
{iiijDefined benefit plans

A defined benefil plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company provides for
gratuity, 8 defined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees al retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an

amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard lo the Gratuity Plan are delermined by actuarial valuation, performed by an Independent acluary, al
each balance shest date:

The Company recognises the nel obligation of a defined benefil plan in s balance sheel as an assel or liabilily.
Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and iosses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (exciuding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immedialely in the balance sheet with a3 comesponding debit or credit to retained
earnings throughOther Comprehensive Income (OC|) in the period inwhich they ococur. Remeasurement is not reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods.

T8




K G DENIM LIMITED

Foreign currency translation and translations

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the réspective functional currencies using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the respeclive transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settfement of such
transactions and from the transiation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and liabiliies
denominated inforeign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported within foreign

exchange gains/! (losses).

MNon-monetary assets and liabilites measured In terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated. Foreign

currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the penod is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income {ax rate adjusted by changes in deferred lax assets and liabilities atiributable lo temporary differences

and to unused lax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of
assets and ligbilities and their camying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax s determined using tax
ratesiand laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting penod and are excepted to apply

when the related deferred income tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax ability is settled.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible lemporary differences and unused tax losses, only if, itis probable that

future taxable amounts will be avallable to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabiliies
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and lax liabilities are offset where
the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settie the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to tems
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the lax is also recognised in other
comprebensive income or directly in equity, respectively Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset
only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified
period. Such assetis reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit assetis written down to
the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence lo the effect that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the
specified period.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are caleulated by dividing:
the profit attnbutable to owners of the Company

-by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in

equily shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.
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Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share o take into account 'the
after-income lax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted
average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognlzed at thelr fair value where there is reascnable assurance that the grant will be
received, and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of properly, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilltlies as
deferred income and are credited to Profit and Loss on & straight - line basis over the expacted lives of related assets and
presented within other income.

Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements reguires the use of accounting estimates which by definition will seldom equal the

actual results.
Management also need to exercise judgment In applying the company's accounting policies.

This note pravides an overview of the areas that invelved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and items which are
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those onginally
assessed. Detailed Information about each of these estimates and judgments Is included in relevant notes together with

information aboul the bas:s of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.
The areas involving critical estimates or judgment are:

Estimation of current tax expenses and Payable.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation.

MNote - 36 : FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT.

Financlal Instrument by category and hierarchy
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in

a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. Fair value of cash and shon-term deposits, rade and other short-lerm receivables, trade payables, other current labilities,
ghort term teans from banks and ather financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largety due 1o short term

maturities of these instruments.

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as
interest rales and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are laken 1o account
for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingtly, fair value of such instruments is nol materially different from their
carnying amoLunts.
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The fair values for lnans and security depasits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate.

They are classified as level 3 falr values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including
counter parly credit risk.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the used of unobservable inpuls, including own credit risk.

For financial assets and liabilities thal are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technigue:

Lave! 1: quoted (unadjusted} prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other technigues for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recordsd fair value are ohservable, sither
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: technigues which use inputs that have significant effect on the recorded fair valuethat are not based on observable
market dala.

{Rs. Im Lakha|
[Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 31at Non Current Total Level 1 | Level 2 Level 3 Total
March 2025 current
[Financial Aszets
Investmenis
| Equily instruments 330,98 33008 33088 330.98 |
Other Asgets
Trade Recelvables 6,297 91 6,207 91 6,207 .91 6,287 .91
Cash and cash eguivalents 328.78 32878 328.78 328.78
Other Bank Balances 2587 2567 25.67 25.67
Sub — Total - 6,652.36 6,652.36 - - 6.652.36 6,652.36
Total 330.98 6,652.36 6,983 34 - - 6,083.34 6,083.34
|Financial Liabilities "“ T m
Borowings 15.518.41 6,097 Gy 21.617.35 2164735 | 21,617.35
Lease Liablity - - - - -
Trade payables 8,576.38 8,576.38 g8,.576.38 8,576.38
Tatal 1551941 14,674.32 30.183.73 30,193.73 | 30,193.73
(B |m Lakhs)
Financlal Assets and Liabilities as at 31st MHon Current Total Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
March 2024 current
[Financial Asseis
[Investments
Equity mstruments 330.86 330,86 3.15 3211 33086
Other Assets
Trade Recelvabies 853541 053341 053341 |  ©.533.41 |
Cash and cash equivalents 4425 Ad 25 4425 44 .25
Other Bank Balances 32328 323.28 323.28 323.28
Sut-Tatal - 9. 900_94 4, 600,94 - - o 900.94 0. 800.94
Tetal 330.86 9,900.84 10.231.80 3.15 - 10,228.65 |  10,231.80
Financial Liabllities
Borrowings 324490 17,5742 20,812.10 2081910 | 2081910
Lﬁlﬂﬂﬂlflﬁ' 968 0.4_'?.1 1011 1011 1@_..‘_1_1_
Trade payables - 14, 70381 14,703.81 14.703.81 14.703.81
Total 3,254.58 32,278.44 | 35.533.02 35,533.02 | 35,533.02
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Mote - 37 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

Credit nsk is the risk that counterparty will not meetits obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to
a financial loss. The Company s exposed to oredit risk from its operation activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its

financing activities, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Company considers the probatility of default upon Initial recognition of assel and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting penod. To assess whether there is a significantincreasein

credit risk the Company compares the risk of default ocourring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of defaull as
at the date of initial recognition. ltconslders reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

I. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
il. Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

fii. Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to mest its

obligations,
iv. Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,

v. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor falling to engage ina
repayment plan with the Company.

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on 7 days to 180 days credit term. Credit
limits are established for all customers based on internal rating crileria. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored. The Company has no concentration of credit sk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically
and geographically.

An impairment analysis Is performed at each reporting date on an individual basls for major clients. In addition, a large
number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed forimpairment collectively. The calculation
is based on actual Incurred historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date |s-the carrying value of
each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral security. The Company evalualed the concentration of
rigk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in serveral junisdictions and industries and operate

in largely independent markets.

During the year adequate provision for Doubtful Debts is provided which includes export and domestic receivables.
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule:
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AS AT 31st March 25 D_ulsta.ndihg for following periods from due date of payrent {Rs.in Lakhs!
Particulars <6 6M-1¥rs | 1-2¥r= 2-3¥rs >3 yrs Total
months
(1) Undisputed Trade Recelvable- Considerad Good 455.37 378.41 B80.02 372495 | 3.786.09 5,883.34
i) Undisputed Trade Recaivable-which have significant - - 153.640 118.44 142.53 414 57
increaze in credit fsk
(i) Undizputed Trade Receivabies credil impaired = - - = . =

(W} Disputed Trade Recewables Considered good

{v) Disputed Trade Recelvables -which have significant - - - - . -
Inerease in credit risk

{wi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impakad

TOTAL 45537 | 47801 | 104362 | 20130| 302862 | 6,207.91 |
AS AT 3st March 240utstanding for following perods from due date of payment {Rs.in Lakhs)
Particulars <6 &6M-1Yrs | 1-2¥rs | 2-3 Yrs >3 yrs Total
maonths
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable- Considerad Good 5581.77 | 192278 | 197201 56 B5 - 053341
(i} Undisputed Trade Recawable-which have significant 04 94 26.74 31.92 118.44 142.53 414,57

Imcrease in credit risk
(il Undisputed Trade Receivables credit impalred - - - - = =
(v} Disputed Trade Recelvables Considered good - - - - = x

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant
Increase in credit risk

{wi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired
TOTAL 567671 | 1,949.52 | 200393 175.29 142.53 9,947.98

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how fo plan and execule its business strategies. The
Company’s financial risk management pollcy is set by the Managing Beard,

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or fulure cash flows that may resull from a change in the price of a
financial instrument. The value of a financial statement may change as a result of changes in the interest rates. foreign

currency exchange rates. equity prices and other markel changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.
Market risk is atiributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign

currency receivables, payables and loans and borrowings

The Company manages market sk through a treasury depariment, which evaluates and exercises independent control over
the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management objectives and
policies, which are approved by Sanior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this department include
management of cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures like foreign exchange
forward contracts, borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

Liguidity Risk

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit faciliies to meel obligations when due and to close cul market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining avallability under committed credit lines. Management monitors roling forecasts of the Company's  liguidity
position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash eqgulvalents on the basis of expected cash
flows.

(i) Financing arrangements

The Company had no un drawn berrowing facllities at the end of the reporting period:
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{li} Maturity patterns of borrowings

(RzIn Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
beyond & beyand 5
0-1years | 1.5 years oS Tatal 0-1 years | 1-5 years years Total
Lang term borrawings (Including 15.514.41 1551941 2560,00] 324490 5,804 90
current maturity of lang term debt)
Shart term borrowings 6,097 94 G.007.094] 150141 15.014.21
Total 6097 84) 1551041 21.61735| 17574.22] 324490 2081912
Maturity Patterns of other Financial Liabilities
AS AT 31" March 2025 Rs. In lakhs
Trade payable = 1¥ear 1-2 ¥'rs 2-3¥rs >3 ¥rs Total]
MSME 928.53 8928.53
Others 1446 20| 4580.93 2601.72 784,31 9432.18
Dizputad MSME wan)
Disputed Others U D
TOTAL 2374.73 4500 93 2601.72 784 31 10360.69)
AS AT 31 March 2024 Rs. In lakhs
Trade payable = 1¥ear 1-2 ¥Y'rg 2-3¥r3 >3 Yrs Taotal]
MSME a0 50 808 .50
Others 8134 .46 447483 1186.02 13 -
Eisputad MSME - - - - =0
Disputed Others - - - - 0.00
TOTAL 8043.96] 447483 1186.02 0.00] 14703.81

Note-38 : CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management

The Company aim to manage its capital efficlently so as to safeguard its ability lo continue as a going concern and to optimize

returns to our shareholders. The capital structure of the Company Is based on management’s judgment of the appropriate

balance of key elements in order 1o mest its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion

to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the

underying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid

lo shareholdars, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong

capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future

development and growth of its business. The Company's will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary,

adjust, ils capital struclure.
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Note-39: DIVIDEND

(Fs.in lakhs)
Dividend 31st March, 31st March,
2025 2024
Mote-39 : EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs. In Lakhs), Except EPS
31st Mar 25 31st Mar 24

Earnings per share has been computed as under:
Profit / (Loss) for the year -3587.97 -2526.04
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 25637825 25637825
Earnings per share - Basic (Face Value of Rs.10 per sharg) -13.99 -9.85
Diluted earning per share is same as basic earning per share -13.99 -9 85

Note-40: EXPORT PROMOTION CAPITAL GOODS (EPCG)

Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme allows import of certain capital goods including spares at concessional
duty subject to an export obligation for the duty saved on capital goods imported under EPCG scheme. The duty saved on
capital goods imported under EPCG. scheme being Government Grant, is accounted as stated in the Accounting
policy on Governmenl Grant.

Note-41 : DETAILS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENDITURE

The Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company during the Financial Year
2024-25.

NOTE 42: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)

(I} Contingent Liabilities

Rs.in lakhs
(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as Debt bt
2024-2025 2023-2024

Disputed Excise | Customs duties 36T AT 36717

In respect of disputed excise [ custom dulies and Income tax demands, the Company feels that there will be no financial
impact, based on legal opinions obtained.
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{b) Guarantees

{Rs.in lakhs)
2024 -2025 2023 -2024
Guarantees given to Bank for loan lo subsidiary 0000 E00.00
c) Other Money for which the company is contingently liable
) [_Rs.ln Eakhs‘,!
2024 -2025 2023 -2024
Bills discounted with banks - 1457.21

Il Commitments

Thers are no contracts remalning to be executed in Capital Account

Note 43: SEGMENT REPORTING:

In accordance with IND AS Segment information has been given In the consolidated financial statements of the company
andiherefore noseparate disclosure on segment information in these financial statements.

Note 44: TRADE PAYABLE

Trade payable referred under current liabllity to Micre and Small Industrial units is - compiled on the information made

avallable lo the company.

AS AT 31" March 2025 Rs. In lakhs
0-3 Months| 3-6 Months| 6 1o 12 Months Beyond 12 Total
Manths
Trade payable 27286 357.06 1744 80 798587 10360.69
Lease Liability {Current and Non Currant) - i . Z
Total 272 86 357.08 1744 80 7985.97 10360.69
AS AT 31% March 2024 Rs. In lakhs
0-3 Manths| 3-8 Months| & to 12 Months Beyond 12 Total
Months
Trade payable 3,754.43 2411862 2.877.91 5.650B5  14703.81
Lease Liability {Current and Non Current) 1011 : y " 0.1
Total 3,764.54 2,411.62 2,877.91 565985 1471392
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MNote - 45 : GRATUITY

|. PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS  [Expressed as weighted
averages| 31-03-2024 31-03-2025
Discount Rate 6.97% 6.43%
Rate of increase in compensaltion levels 5.00% 5.00%
Altrition Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Expected rate of retumn on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00%
All amounts are in Rupees
Il. CHANGES IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF THE OBLIGATION (PVO)
PVO as at the beginning of the period 7,57,28,224 6,64,02,562
Interest Cosl 54,353,013 46.25,135
Current service cost 57,00,802 39,38,835
Past service cost 0 0
Benefits paid and Charges deducted -3.29 515 -49.639
Actuanal loss/(gain) on obligation (balancing figure) -2,01,29,962 -4,51,68,514
[PVO as at the end of the period 6,64,02.562 2,97,08,379

Il. CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS - RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING

BALANCES:

[Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the period 0] 0
Expected return on plan assets 0 0
Coniributions 3.29.515 89,639
Benefits paid and Charges deducted -3,29,515 -89,639
Actuanal gain/{loss) on plan assels [balancing figure] | 0
Fair value of plan assefs as at the end of the period :]| 0
IV ACTUACRETURN ON PLAN ASSETS

Expected return on plan assets 0 0
Actuarial gain (loss) on plan assets of 0
Actual return on plan assets 0 0
V. ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES RECOGNIZED

Actuanal gain (loss) for year - obligation 2,01,29,962 4.51,68.514
Actuanal gain (loss) for year - plan assels 0 0
Subtotal 2.01.29.962 4.51.68.514
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized -2,01,29,962 -4,51,68,514
Unrecognized actuanal gains (losses) at the end of the period 0} 0

&7




K G DENIM LIMITED

V. AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET AND RELATED ANALYSES

Present value of the obligation 65,6402 562 2.87.08,379
Fair value of plan assets ] 1]
Amount determined under para 63 of Ind A519 6,64,02 562 2,97,08,378
Met Defined Benefit Liability recognized in the balance sheet 6,64,02,562 2,97,08,379
Present value of future reduction in contribution under para 85 of Ind AS 19 1] 1]
Met Defined Benefit Asset recognised under para 64 of Ind AS1Y ] ]
Vil. EXPENSES RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS:

Current service cost 57.00,802 39,338,835
Met Interest on Net Defined Benefit Obligations 54,33,013 46.25,135
Met actuarial {gain)floss recognised during the period ] 0
Past service cost 4] 0
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss 11133815 85,63,970/

Vill. AMODUNT RECOGNIZED FOR THE CURRENT PERIOD IN THE STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME [OCI]

Actuarial {gainyloss on Plan Obligations -2 1,29 962 -4,51.68,514
Difference between Actual Return and Interest Income on Plan Assets- (gain)floss - -
Effect of Balance Sheet asset limit - -
Amount recognized in OC| for the current period -2,01,29, 862 -4,51,68,514
. MOVEMENTS IN THE LIABILITY RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

Opening net liability adjusted for effect of balance sheet limit 7,57,28,224 6,64,02 562
Amount recognised in Profit and Loss 1,11,33,815 B5.63,8970
Amount recognised in OC| -2,01,29 952 -1.5168,514
Contribution paid -3,29.515 -859,639
Closing net liability 6,64,02 562 2,97,08,379
X. AMOUNT FOR THE CURRENT PERIOD

Present Value of obligation 6,64,02 562 297,08,379
Plan Assets 4] 0
Surplus {Deficit) -6 64,02 562 -2,97,08,379
Experience adjustments on plan Iiahllilies -{loss j/gain 2,10,59,758 4,59,48,001
Impact of Change in Assumpfions on Plan Liabilities-{loss)/gain -8.29 796 1,79,487
Experience adjustments on plan assets -(loss)gain 1] 0

&8




K G DENIM LIMITED

NOTE - 46 : RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER Ind AS 2 5

1024-2025 2023-Z024
Key Rilatives af Other Related Key Relatives af Key
Particulars ) Other Relsted | Management Key Parties Managemant | Management
iy Parties Persannel | Mansgement Sy Persanne Personnel
Pessonnel
Puschase of Goodd
Trigger Apparels Lid .65 SOZ.85
Srl Kannapiran Mills Lmited 41635 2,894.00
Other related party .59 1B97.96
Sade of Gaods
Trigger Apparels Lid TEEQ 53190
K& Deniem {LISA) Ine 155
Sri Kamaaplran Mills Limited 308 166:15
Cither related party T3T.26
Frocessing [/ other Charges Paid
Trigger Apparals Led
5ri Kannapisan Mills Limited 018[ 2 9.03|
Other related party
Processing | otlsr Charged Received
Sl Kanngpiran Maills Lmited 15.72
Dther rafated party
FEmimer d 19.32 14000 0142 1372
MOTE :- 46.1 : Balance Outstanding
as on 31,03.2025 a5 on 31,03.2024
Relatives of Relatives of Key
Ka K
Particulars Subsigiare | e REIated | 4 Key cubidiary | OErRelated | = Management
oy Parties ngemEnt Management u i Parties anagemént Personnel
Personnel e Personnel
Trade Recenvabls 3,570.38¢ 4135 3,582,005 3603 -
Trade Payzhle 2393.04 215511 -
[Investments 450,46 12869 450,46 JERE9 -
|cuarantes 500.00] 500,00
[Lzans and Advances | 150,00 150100 -

NOTE :- 46.2

Other Relaled Party

Sri Kannapiran Mills Limited

Crecodile India Pyt Ltd

S Balamurugan Texlile Processing Limited
Danalakshimi Papar Mills Private Limiled

Key Managemaenl Personnal

Shri B Srihan, Director

Shri.b.Balajl, Company Sacretary

Shri KG Baalakrizshnan, Exacutive Chairman
Shri B Sriramulu, Managing Director

Sml S Ramaprabha, Cheaf Financial Officer

Ralative of Key Management Personnal

Shri Pranav Sriraman {(Son of Shri B Sriramulu)
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NOTE:- 47: Title deeds of Properties

Titles deeds of all the immovable properties in the Financial Statements are held in the name of the company only,
NOTE:- 48: Capital-work-in progress.

There is no Capital-work-in progress as on the date of balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, There is no project which is
temporarily suspended.

NOTE:- 49: Intangible Assets under development.

There are no any intangible assets under development as on the dale of balance sheet as al 31st March 2025

MNOTE:- 50: Relationship with strike off companies.

Company does not have any transactions with the companies “Stnken off " or in the process of strike off.

NOTE:- 51: Scheme of arrangements

The company has not entered intc any “Scheme of Arrangements” durmg the year ended 31st March 2025,

NOTE - 52: Details of Benami Property Held

The company does not hold any benami properly as defined under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and the rules made there under. No  proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benaml Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made there under.
NOTE - 53: Compliance with number of layer of companies.

The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act
read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules. 2017

NOTE - 54: The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency.
NOTE:-55: Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies.

The company does not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet lo be registerad with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

NOTE:-56: The Company has not done any revaluation of Propery, Plant & Equipment or Imtangible assets.

NOTE:-57: The Company was nol declared as “willful defaulter” by any bank or financial Insbtution or other lender.

Note : 58 The company has no such transactions which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sumrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (Such as search or survey or any

other relevant provisions of Income Tax Act, 1981).

Note 59: The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity {ies). includng foreign
entities (Intermedianes) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like lo or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 80: The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Funding party)
with the understanding (whetherrecorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of
the funding party {Ultimate Beneficlaries) or
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il. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfl of the Ulimate Beneficianes.
Mote 61: Restructuring of Debit

The operations of the company came o hall since March 2024 due to TN Government Order putting a ban on drawal of
processing water from Bhavani River, subsequently the Company has enteredinto a loan restructuring arangement with its
consortium lenders under the Reserve Bank of Indla's framework for relief measures in areas affected by natural calamities.
While the resolution plan has been approved by the majority of the consortium lenders, one bank holding 7% of the debt
exposure has dissented from the plan, and one Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) with an outstanding loan of Rs.
625 [akh has not participated in the restructuring scheme. With respect to the dissenting lenders’ non-participation in the
restructuring scheme, the Company has filed a writ petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Madras and oblained an
injunction order, with the matter being sub-judice. Repayment under the restructured plan is scheduled to commence from
the guarter ending March 2026 restructuring was implemented on Sth March 2025,

Mote 62: Approved Financial Statements:

The Board of Directors of the company has reviewed the realizable value of all the current assets and has confirmed Lhat the
value of such assels in the ordinary course of business will nol be less than the value at which these are recognized in the
financial statements. In addition, the board has also confirmed the carrying value of the non-currenl assets in the financial
stalements. The Board, duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statements
inits meeting held on 30th May 2025,

MNote 63: Stock Statement
The Company has borrowed from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Quarteriy retums or statements of current

assets filed by the Company are in agreemenl with books of accounts. Summary of reconciliation as at 31st March 2025 is
given below,

Mote 64:Asset held for sale

This consist of 11.51 acres of nen-core factory land shown as per asset held for sale which is sold in Aprll 2025 as per

restructunng {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 2025 | As at March 2024
Inventories as per declaration with Bank 6,109.46 9,222.51
Trade Receivable as per declaration with Bank £,297.91 9,547.10
TOTAL (A) 12,407.37 18,769.61
Inventaries as per Books 6,109.63 9.489.05
Trade Receivables as per Books 6,297.91 953341
TOTAL (B) 12,407.54 19,022.46
Difference in Inventories -0.17 -266.54
Difference in Recelvables - 13.65
TOTAL DIFFERENCE (A)-{B) -0.17 -252.85
Az par our repart of even date Far and on bekalf of ihe Board of Diraciors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHNAN B SRIRAMULL B SRIHARI]
Charlersd Accountanls  Execulive Chairman Managing Dhractor Director
OIM : 00002174 DIN ; 00002560 DM ; 00002556
) RMAHADEVAN M. BALAJ RAMAPRABHA .5
UDIN fﬂﬂﬂ?ar‘ﬂ”ahpﬁ?“ FPartner  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Placa | Coimbatore Mambarship Mo 027457

Dale : 30,05.2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of K G Denim Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of K G Denim Limited ("the Holding Company’ ) and
its subsidiary companies — KG Denim (USA) Inc. and Trigger Apparels Limited (together referred to as 'the Group') which
comprise the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Consolidated statement of profit and loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Stalement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of changes in
Equity for the year lhan ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referrad to as ("the consolidated Ind AS inancial siataments™).

2. In ouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givan to us, the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements {'tha financial statements'jgive the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the
mannear o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS'), specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting
principles generally accepled in India of the consolidaled stale of affairs of the Group, as at 31 March 2025, and their
consolidated loss (including other comprehensive Incomea), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity
forthe yearended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing spacified under Section 143(110) of the Act, Our
responsihbiliies under those slandards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibifities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are indepandent of the Graup in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl') together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to cur audit of the consclidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical rezponsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
beligve that the audit evidence we have oblained i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement and on the other financial information of the
subsidiaries, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the. context of our audit of the consolidated financial slatements as a whole, and in forming our
apinion thereon, and we do nol provide a separale opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated inourreport.

Sr.No | Key Audit Matter | Auditor’'s Response
* Litigations - Contingencies Principal Audit Procedures
The Holding Company has ongoing litigations Our audit approach was a combination of test of
with various authorities and third parties which ‘.:L‘?rgmgm”"ms and substantive procedures
I Ui A

could have a significant impact on the results, If

theuatantial axposures were1o matedoieo: Asseszing the appropriateness of the design

and implementation of the Company's controls
application of accounting standards to determing ELTP |Lh1§ nzzza grs r:f;ltl ;;L rlég g:—;}tﬁr;i rﬁ 2;
the amount, if any, o be provided as a liability or documentation are {estad for the pﬂéltiﬂns takan by
discius?ld as a8 contingent liability, is inharently the management, meetings are conducted with in-
subjective. housea legal counsal andior legal team and minutes
of Board o confirm the operating effectivenass of
these controls.

The amounts involved are significant, and the
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Claims against the Heolding Company not
acknowledged as debts are disciosed inthe
Financial Statemeants by the Company after

a careful evaluation of the facts and legal aspects
of the matters Invelved, The cutcome of such
litigation is uncedain and the position taken by
managameant invalves sianificant judgement and
gstimation to determine the likelihood andfor
liming of cash outfiows and the Interpretation of
preliminary and pending court rulings.

Refer Mote 60 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Invalving our direct and indirect tax specialists to
assess relevant historical and recent judgemeants
passed by the appropriate authorties in order to
challenge the basis used for the accounting
treatment and resulting disclosures,

Loan Restructuring Arrangement with
Consortium Lenders

Az disclosed in Note 54 to the Consolidated
financial statements, the Holding Company has
entered into a loan restructunng arangement
with its consortium lenders under the Reserve
Bank of India's framework for relief measuras in
areas affected by natural calamities. While the
resolution plan has been approved by the
majority of the consortium lendars, one bank
halding 7% of the debl exposure has dissented
from the ptan, and one Non-Banking Financial
Company (NBFC) with an outstanding loan of
1625 lakh has not participated in the restructuring
scheme. With respect to the dissenting lenders’
non-participation in the restructuring scheme, the
Holding Company has filed a writ petition before
the Hon'ble High Court of Madras and obtained
an injunction order, with the matter being sub
judice. Repayment under the restructured plan is
scheduled to commence from the quarter ending
March 2026

Principal Audit Procedures

+ Obtzined and reviewed the loan restructuring
agreements, lender communications, and board
resolutions approving the restructuring plan.

+ Evaluated management's assessment of loan
classification, modification accounting, and
impairment under Ind AS 109, Including
consideration of whether the terms of
rastructuring constiiute a substantial
muodification,

« Assessed the legal status of dissent by South
Indian Bank and nenimplementation by the NBFC,

including examining relevant court filings,
injunction orders, and legal opinion obtained by
the Company, ifany.

+ Evaluated the disclosores made in the financial
statements in accordance with Schedule H of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 107 — Financial
Instruments: Disclosures,

+ Discussed with management of the Holding
company and those charged with govemance the
potential financial and fegal implications arising
from the dissenting lenderand the pending
Iitigation,

* Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of
disclosures made in the financial statemants in
respect ofthe restructuring and legal proceading

Infermation other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
infermation included in the Management and Discussion Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Repord,
Business Responsibility Reporl, Corporate Govermnance and Shareholder's Information bul dees not include the
Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon.
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Qwr opinicn on the Consolidated Financlal Statements does not cover the other information and we do not exprass any farm
of assurance conclusion thereon.

I connection with our audil of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our respongibility 1s o read the other information and,
In dolng so, consider whether such other Information ls materially inconsalstent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is 8 material misslatement of this other information; we are required lo report that facl. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the holding Company's Board of Directors.
The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Act with respectto
the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated financial ststements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial position, consolidated performance including other comprehensive  Income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles
genarally accepted in India. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records
including financial information considered necessary for the preparation of Consolidated Ind As  financial statements.
Further, in terms of the provisions of the Act, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group,
covered in the Act are responsible for mainlenance of adequale accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assals of the Group and for preventing and detecling frauds and other irreqularities, selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgemeants and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequale internal financial controls, thal were operating affectively for ensuring

the accuracy and completeneass of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from matenial misstatemeant, whether duae to fraud or error.

These financial statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Board of directors of the Holding Company, a5 aforesaid,

B. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respaective Board of Diractors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective companies inthe Group, to continue as a going concerm,
disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless tha
respective Board of Directors either intend Lo liguidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has na realistic alternative butl
to do so.

7. The respective Board of Direclors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the inancial
reporting process of the companies included in the Group,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Our objectives ara to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, and to issue an auditor's repori that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstalement when it exists, Misstalermenlts can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected lo influence the economic
decizlons of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

2. As part of an audit in accordance with Slandards on Auditing specified under section 143010} of the Act we exercise
professional judgament and maintain professional skeplicism throughout the audil. We also;

@ Idantify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive lo those risks, and obtain audil evidence that is sufficient and

aporoprate W provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nol detecting a material misstatemeant resulling from lrawd is highesr
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than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omisslons, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal contral;

& Obitain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to desian audit procedures thal are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)1) of the Agl, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Group has adequate internal financial controls system with reference o financial statements in place and the operating
effectivensss of such controls;

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management;

@ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Director's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audil evidence oblained, whether a malenial uncerainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significan| doubl
on the ability of the Group to continue as a aeing concem, Ifwe conclude that a materal uncerlainty exists, we are required 1o
draw attention in our auditor's report to the refated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures ara
inadaquate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a golng concern;

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures; and whether
the financlal statements represent the underlying transactions and evenls ina manner that achieves falr presentation; and

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information / financial statements of the antities within
the Group, to express an epinlon on the consclidated financlal statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision

and parformance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the financial statements, of
which we ara the independent auditors. For the other entities included in tha financial slatemeants, which have been audited

by the other auditor, such other audifor remain responsible for the direction, supervigion and performance of the audits
carried out by them: We remain solaly responsibla for our audit opinion.

10, We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding Iindependence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicabie, related safeqguards.,

12, From the malters communicated with those charged with governance, we delermine those matlers thatl were of most
stgnificance in the audit of the financial statements of the curment period and are therefore the key audit matiers, We dascribe
these matters In our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes publlc disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare clrcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated In our report because the adverse
consequences ol doing so would reasonably be expected lo oulweigh the publicintersst benefits of such communication,

Other Matters

13, We did not audit the financial statements of wholly owned Foreign subsidiary KG Denim (USA) Ine., included in the
consaolidated financial results, whose financial stalements reflect tolal assets of Bs 127,29 lakhs as al March 31, 2025 and
Iotal revenues of RS, 4,85 Lakhs for the year ended March 31,2028, lotal net loss after tax of Rs, 1,81 lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2025 and net cashinflows of Rs. 7.56 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025 as considerad in the statement.

14, In respect of the company's foreign subsidiary KG Denim (USA) Ing, the financial staterments have been cerlified by the
managament and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the subsidiary, and matters identified and disclosed under key sudit matiers section above and our
report in terms of subseclion {3) of section 143 of the Act in so far as It related 1o the subsidiary is based salely on such
approved unaudited financial statemeants, Inour opinlon and according to the information and explanaticns given to us by tha
Managemaent, this financial statement/ financial information is not material to the Group.
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Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on  the work done and the financial statements /
financial information certified by the Management,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
15.As required by section 143(3) of the Acl, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

[a) Ve have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief wena
necassany for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

{biln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consalidated Financiat
Statemants have been kept so far as itappears from our examination of those books,

{c} The consolidated financial statement, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consalidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statemeants.,

{d)In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified  under Section 133 of
the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts } Rules, 2014,

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Group as on 31st March 2025, faken on
recard by the Board of Directors of the respective companies, covarad under the Act, nona of the directors of the Group, are
disqualified as on 31st March 2025 from being appoinied as a directorin terms of Section 184({2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adeguacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of the Group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, referto our separate reportin “Annexure A",

(g)As required by Section 187 (16) of the Act, based on audit, we report that both the Holding company and its subsidiary
companias have not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year.

(h)With respect fo the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the bestof our information and according to the explanations given
tous:

I. The Consclidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March 2025 on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note No. 60 to the consolidated Financial Statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses,

lil. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred, o the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company. With regard to subsidiaries there are no requirement for such transfar.

iv. (&) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India whose
financial statements have bean audited under the Act have represented to us, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or foaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies to or in-any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entiies (‘the Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whethar, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other parsons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary companies {“the Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, securty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b} The raspeciive managements of the Holding company and the subsidiary company incorporated in India whosa
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represaented to us, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
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funds have bean received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies from any person{s) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities (“the Funding Partias"}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company, or any such subsidiary companies shall, whether direclly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identifiad in any mannar whatsoaver by or on behalfof the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guaraniee,
sacurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benaficiaries,

{c) Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as considered reasonable and appropriate  in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the manageament representations under sub-clauses {a)
and {b)above contain any matarial misstatement.

y. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, both the Holding company and its subsidiary
company have not declared or pald any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, both the Holding company and the Subsidiary Company
incorporated in India, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a fealure of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
wilth and the audit trail has been presarved by the Halding company and the Subsidiary Company incorporated in India as per
the statutory requirements for record retention.

8.No, Mame CIN Clause number of the CARO report
which is qualified or adverse

1 K G Denim Limited L17115T21992PLCO0798 | (ii)(b), (vii)ia)

Howevar, CARO reporting is not applicable to the Subsidiary Company incorporated in India.

For Gopalaiyer and Subramanian
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No:000380S8)

CA.R. Mahadevan

Partner
Pigce: Coimbalore M. no; 027497
Date: 30th May 2025 UDIMN: 25027497BMNBACIT 34T
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements under Clause (f) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

1. In comjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statemeants of K G Denim Limited (the 'Holding Company')
as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
slatements of the holding company and its Indian subsidiary covered under the Act, (the Holding Company and s Indian
subsidiary together refarred to as “the Group™),as on that data.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and subsidiary company incorporated In India, are responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements cnteria established by the Company considering the essenfial compongnts of internal contmol stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl'), These responsibifities inciude the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operaling effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Cormpany’s business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of
reliable inancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements.

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the intemal financial contrals with reference to consolidated financial
stataments of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company as aforesald, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (' ICAl') prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls withreferance to consolidated
financlal statements, and the Guidance Mote issusd by the ICAlL These Standards and the Guidance Nole require that we
comply with athical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequata
Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintalned and If such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4, Qur auditinvelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the adequacy ofthe internal financial contrals with
reference lo consolidated financial statements and their operating effeéctiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
raferance to consolidated financial statemants includes obtaining an undarstanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and lesting and svaluating the design and operaling effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement. including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror,

5, We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their
repors referrad toin the Other Matter paragraph below, 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion cn
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company as aforasaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

6. & Group's internal finandial controls with reference o consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statemants
for external purposeas in accardance with generally acceptad accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to consolidated financial stalements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detsil, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposftions of the assets of the
Compaiy; (2) provide reasonable assurance thal ransactions are recorded as necessary (o permil preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles, and that receipts and
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expanditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directors of the
Coempany; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or imely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consoclidated financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

7. Because of tha inherent limitations of infermal fnancial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatemeants dus to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with refence to
consolidasted financial statements may become inadequate becauvse of changes in conditions, or that the degres of
compliance with the policles or procedures may deteriorate.

Cpinion

8. In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company and its
Indian subsidiary company, have, in all material respects, adequate internal inancial controls with reference consolidated
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025 based on the internal control over
financial reporiing criteria established by the Group, considering the essential components of intemal contrel stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Gopalaiyer and Subramanian
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No:00DD3E0S)

CA.R. Mahadevan

Partner
Place: Coimbalore M. no: 027487
Date: 30th May 2025 UDIN: 25027497BMNBAQT 347
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UDIN ; 25027497TBMNBALTIHT

—ET AS A 25 {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Mote Mo, 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Audited Audited
l. |ASSETS
1 |Hon-current assets
ia) Property, plant and equipment 1 12,919.85 13,B01.01
{b) Intangibie Assets 14 0.01 0.0
{ch Right to Use Asset ) - 9 B4
fd)  Financial Assets
Hon-current Investments 3 330,98 330.86
(e)  Deferred Tax Assets 4 2,342.51 1,740.42
i Other non current assets 5 238.63 237,32
TOTAL 16,431.98 | 16,119,456
Z |Current assets
(a) Inventories o 771482 10,976.36
i) Financial Assets
(1) Trade receivables, current 7 3,BB5.85 6,781.55
{if}Cash and cash egquivalents 8 35599 10774
(iii jBank balance other than (il} above 9 6,65 324,08
fcd  Current tax assets {met) 10 199.78 17968
(d)  Other current assets 11 5,437.48 5,910.57
{e]  Assets Held for Sale 497
TOTAL 17,627.46 14.379.98
TOTAL ASSETS 34,0559.44 40,499, 44
Il |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |EQUITY
ia)  Equity share capital 12 2,564.%) 2,564,490
{b]  Other eqguity 13 -3,405.57 -277.03
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company =B40.67 2,287 .87
MNon-Controfling Interest Equity -396.32 -399.46
TOTAL EQUITY -1,236.99 1,888.41
4 |LIABILITIES
MOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
fa) Financial liabilities
{1} Barrowings 14 17,759.05 3.38B.B6
(i) Lease Liahilities 15 - 968
(i} Other non current financial liahilities 16 32114 31068
(k) Long-term provisions 17 2B2.26 611.65
) Governmenl grants 18 - 130.87
TOTAL 18,362.45 4,451.74
CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 4,785,863 18,429.53
(fiiLease Liability 20 E 0.43
{11 Trade payable - Micro and Small Enterprises 21 518.53 9%, 50
{iviTrade payable - Others 27 8,133.68 13,913.02
{v10ther financial liabilities 22 315.68 89.32
(B) Other current financial liabilities 23 508.49 | 574905
{c)  Shori-term provisions 24 1.0 6751
(d)  Government grants 25 130,87 | 170,63
TOTAL 16,933.98 34,159.29
TOTAL EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES 34,059.44 40,499.44
Significant Accounting Policies a5
The notes form an Integral part of these financial statements |
Az par our repart of even date Far and on bekalf of ihe Board of Diraciors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHMAN B SRIRAMULU B SRIHARI
Charlersd Accountanls  Execulive Chairman Managing Dhractor Director

Place : Coimbatore

Dale

0,05 2025

DIN : 00002174
RMAHADEVAN M. BALA
Partner Company Secretary
Mambership Na. 027487

DM ; DDO0ZE6D

RAMAPRABHA .5

Chief Financial Officer

DM ; 00002556
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025 (Hs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Mote No. | 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Audited Audited
I [INCOME
Revenue from opedations 26 6, 54679 26, 4486 41
Other income 27 785 42 32854
Total Income 733221 16, T74.95
Il |EXPENSES
Cost of materials conswmed 18 1. 11435 13, 788.20
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 29 95330 287 89
Changes in inventories of finished goods |,
wiork-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 30 2,708.95 -503.05
Other Manufacturing Expenses ER| 1. B%6. .42 6,859 14
Employes benefits expense az 2.333.11 472119
Finance costs 33 3,074, 76 2,557.82
Depreciation and amortization expense RI7. 99 1,470.8B&
Other expenies 34 1,134.65 Z,425.604
Total expenses 14,053.55 30,607.69
i |Profit before exceptional (6. 721.34) (3,832.74)
tems and tax
IV |Exceptional items Q.00 256.75
Extragrdinary ltoms - Excize Duty Refund 2029.72
WV |Profit befare tax (1= V) (4.681.62) 3,575.99)
¥l | Tax expanse:
1) Current tax 0,00 0.0
{21 MAT Credit Entitlement - -
{3) Deferred tax -1.202.049 -1,003.2%
{4} Income Tax for earlier years 9.6 0.00
=1 10247 -1,003.25
Vil |Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing -3,579.15 -2,572.74
operations (V-¥ij
Wl |Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not reclassified to Profit or Loss
Fair value of Equity Instruments a1z 140
Gratuity valuations through GGl 453, 6 207.19
Profit/floss) (after tax) (Vi) 45176 210859
i | Total Comprehensive Incame for the year (VIl « Viil} comprising
profit or {ioss) and other comprehensive income for the period {3,125.39) 12,364.15)
Profit for the year attributable to:
Share holder of the Company -3581.81 -2561.10
Hon-controllable interest 266/ 1164
{3,579.15) (2,572.74)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Share holder of the Company 453,27 20712
Hon-controllable interest 048 1.47
453.76 208.59
Tatal Comprehensive Incame Tor the year attributable to:
Share holder of the Company {3,128.55) <2351.99
Hon-controllable interest 3.15 -10.16
{3,125.39) (2,364.15)
X |Earnings per equity share:
11) Basic -13.97 -5 99
12) Diluted ~13.97 -9.59
‘Weighted Humber of Equity Shares 26,637,825 25,637,825
Significant Accounting Policies 35}
The notes form an incegral part of these financial statemeants |
Az par our repart of even date Far and on bekalf of ihe Board of Diraciors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMAMIAN KG BAALAKRISHMAN B SRIRAMULU B SRIHARI
Charlersd Accountanls  Execulive Chairman Managing Dhractor Director
DN - o021 74 DM 00002560 DiN - 00002556
RMAHADEVAN M. BALAJI RAMAPRABHA .5
UDIN | 25027497BMNBAQTI4T Partner  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place : Combatora Mambership Na. 027487

Date : 300520258
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.0:3.2025 iRs, In Lakhs)
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
PARTICULARS 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Audited Audited
A |GASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Mot profit before tax and extra ordinary liems {6,721.34) (3.832.74
FAufjugirmenls for
Depreciation and Amordization expenses BOT GG 1,470 56
Provision for Doubsiful Debis =00 =00
Loss/{Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (20052) 1112
Intarast InGomme |418.26) (T0E.00;
Davidend Incame (0.07) (0005)
Apportioned on Government Grants (170.63) (17063,
Ramaasurement of Employven Banofil Obligations 46564 20719
Galn on Termination of Lease (.27 -.0a
Finance cost 3,014,768 2,557,682
Operating Profit before working capital changes (2,964.70) 135.57
Adjustments for
{IncreaseDecrzase In Trade and other recelvables 280570 ABT AT
{Increasa fDecrease in Inventones 3,261 52 (VEG B4,
{IncreasaDecrease in Other Mon eurment assets @15 (3.52)
{Incrense YDacransa In Othoer Cumrend iuesois 552892 (T4 8,
Increasel{Decrease) in Trade and other payables (5, 504.31) BEE. 59
IncreasefDecrease) in Provisions (386.10) (97.26]
Cash generated from operations {2,115.93) 471.04
Cash fiow bofore extraordinary itoms {2,115.83) AT1.04
Exceptional (tems 2038, 72 256,75
Cash flow after extraordinary iems {TE.21) 72T, 79
Income Tax o962 -.00
Net cash (used in)/generaled fram operating activities {175.83} T27.79
B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Sale Proceads of proparty, plant and eguipment 58.38 21.68
Purchase af praperty, plant and eguipment (B2.54) (134,89,
Intarest Income 41825 108,00
Divicend Income o.av 005
Capital Subsidy recelved -0 -.00
hargln money deposlt with bank 20743 (5.683)
Met cash (used injfgenarated fram investing activities Ti2.4T (1. BE)
G. |CABH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds! (Repayment) from Long term borrowings 14 370,18 (1.240.47
Froceads ¢ (Repaymant) from short term barrowings [11,643.90) 3,130,441
Imerest paid (301477 (2,557 82
Repaymaent to leasa libildies - (= 65)
Met eash (used in)/generated from financing activities {208.48) (686.53)
Met Increase in cash and cash equivalents 24817 30.38
Cash and cash equivaients as Bt 181 April, 2024 | 2023
{Orpeening Balanoe) 107.74 TT.36
Cash and cash equivatents as at 31st Mar, 2025 2024
[Clasing Balanca) 35591 107.74
Cash and cash aquivalonts as per above comprisas of the following
Cash v cash squivalents 355491 107.74
Balance as par Statemant of Cash Flows 158599 107.74
000 =000

Notes: The above Cash Fiow Statemént has besn prepaned under the "indirect Mothod® as sst oul In Indian Accounting Standard-

7. ‘Salement of Cash Flows'

Az par our repart of even date
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMAMIAN

Charlersd Accountanls

RMAHADEVAN

LDIN  25027497BMNBALTIMT Partner
Place | Coimbators Mambarship Mo 027497

Dale - 30.05.2025

Far and on bekalf of ihe Board of Diraciors

KG BAALAKRISHMAN
Execullva Chairmarn
DI - 00002174

M. BALAJI
Company Secretary

B SRIRAMULL B SRIHARI
Managing Dhractor Diractor
DM ; DOO0ZSED DM ; 0002556

RAMAPRABHA .5
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(1) Current Reporting Period

Changes in Changes in
equity share | Restated | equity share
Balance as at 01.04.2024 capital due to | balanceas |  capitsl B::“::;;;'
prior period |at 01.04.2024] during the '
Brrors gurrent
2,564.90 2,564.90 2,564.90
{2] Previous Reporting Period {Rs, In Lakhs)
Changes in Changas in
equity share | Restated | equity share
Balance as at 01.04.2023 capital duato | balance as capital B::&::E:II
prior perfod |at 01.04:2023) during the :
arrors current year
2,564.90 2,564.90 2,564,90
13, OTHEREQUATY
Retained
Capital | Securities ; Earning in Non
1 General d > : .
Radamption | Fremium R;:::s ::: |_|1¢ Jointly | Total Equity | Confrolling | Total
Reserve | Reserve g Controdled Intarast
Enfities
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 161 A4 154928| 2,36R.09 410.06| 207696 | -389.30| 1,687.66
On Aliatment of Snares by Subsidiary Company 538.30 53930 33030| 150,00
Brofit loss) for the year -1.526.20 34801 256110 -1164 | 257214
Other Comprebensive ncomea for the year i 447 Hr1d 147| 20859
Total Comprefansive Income far the year -3,323.50 3048 -7353%3 1017} -2.364.15
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 1861 444 1549.28 4458 379.58 Q02| 39947 67649
O ABotment of Shares by Subsidiary Company 549.47 54947 | 39047 150,00
Profit {loss) for e year -1,587.47 707 358000 166| -3571.34
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 451.70 146 45116 045 45365
Tetal Compranensive Income fior fhe year -3,136.27 043 311684 315] -3,123.69
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 161 404 154928 -3091.68 388.01| 340386 -396.32( -3.800.18
As par our reporl of even date For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHNAN B SRIRAMULL B SRIHARI]
Charlersd Accountanls Execullva Chairmarn Managing Diraclor Diractor

DIN : 00002174
RMAHADEVAN M. BALA
UEHM 202749 7BMNBALQTIET Partner Company Secretany
Piace | Coimbatore Mambarship Na 027487

Date - 30,05.2025

DM ; DDO0ZE6D

RAMAPRABHA .5
Chief Financial Officer

DN ; 00002556
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Nate 1: Property, Plant & Equipment - Consolidated

1R In Lakhs)
Flied Assets Land Bulldings] Plant& | Edectrical| Fumniture | WVehicles Oifice Ortheer Total Capital
Equipmanf Machinary| & Fixtures Equipmani [Spacify Wiork In
natura) Progress
Gross Carmying Vakue
Doomod Cost as at April 12024 1,007 an 2364 146, 572.a6 774,50 k[ ] 188 3014 1037 26005654
Akt - 5858 2| - (R} a2.84 -
-] IndAs Adjustment EAT BT
-] Disposals - =11 11 204 40) - 2HLED -
A5 af March 31, 2025 1,081.01 GITL54 1661139 7748 J6.10 an7.5] .25 1037 ISETA.TH -
Deprociation
s at apnl 1, 024 1,700:04 918253 476.42 183 B2 BI1.7H niaz 7.7 12204 55
e precaaton for the year - 16856 562 87 G326 16.25 273 2090 0.4l AT
{-10n Gispoaals - - 42 - .06 2091 - - 22T
B a1 March 3, 2035 - 1,900.40 9.704.58 530,70 Hnim 6130 134 .83 .97 12,950,828 -
Hot Camrying Walus E
As af March 31, 202% 1,081.01 4, 365,14 B a06.41 FXI.18 114,08 i [] GE.4% 280 1231985 =
As of March 11, 2024 1,760 4 554, Tix TAITAS 208,05 13239 pluekey | BY.23 300 1380104
I I
Note 1 A Infangible Assels
\R%. In Lakhs)
Othars Total
‘Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as ai 11si March 202% (i3] (X411
Addiiors -
Dlisposain &
Balance a3 & 3131 March 3024 ] i
A curnusated Deprociation
Balance as 2t 3151 March 2023 -
Widdanrs =
Digpanas
Dalanon as & 113 March 2024
Hul Carrying Amourl
alance as at 3151 March 1033 .61 6.1
Fllnﬂcn as &t 115t March 2024 0.8 1 -]
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Mote 2 Right of Use Aszets

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Movement during the year
Beemed Cost as at April 1, 20242023 - T
Additions - -
[sposals E -41.90
Balance as at 315t March Z025/20F4 0.00 35.32
Pepreciatiaon
As at April 1, 2024/ 2023 1548
Additions .
Disposals . .
Balance as at 31st March 2025/2024 0.00 2548
Total . 9.84
Mote 3 Investments-Non current {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A Non-Trade Investments
Equity {Quoted)
i Indian Bank - 605 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3.27 1.15
Total - A 3.27 3,15
] Trade investments
i 5ri Kannapiran Mills Limited 32746 33744
3,31,588 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ -each-Quoted - 2
ii Cotton Saurcing Company Ltd 1.00 1.00
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/ -each-Un quoted
Less : Provision for diminution in the value of Investments 0,75 -0.75
sub-total azrn azr.n
Total (B= I+1}) 317N 317.7M
Grand Total (A + B) 330.98 330.86
Less ¢ Provision for diminution in the value of Investments .
Tatal 3130.98 3130.86
Mote 4 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabilities)
Opening balance 1,740.42 73747
On account of business loss & Depreciation as per books of accounts & 1,202.09 1,003.25
IT purpose (DTA)
Het Deferred tax asset 2,942.51 1,740.42
Mote 5 Other Non Current Assets {Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03,2024
a. Capital Advances
Advance for Capital Goods - Un secured considered good 211.26 209.95
Others .
211.26 209.95
|b. Security Deposits
Security Deposits - Un secured considered good 737 27.37
7.37 27.37
Total 238.63 237.32
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Hote & Inventories {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.202% 31.03.2024
a. Raw Materials and components 1.118.99 1,195.76
1,118.99 1,195.76
|b. Work-in-progress 513.37 2,017.03
513.37 2,017.03
c. Finished goads 4, 869,43 3,930.07
Goads-in transit - 144.53
4,869.43 6,074, 54
d, Stores and Spares 1,199.99 1,675.97
1,199.99 1,675.97
e, Others (Specify nature)
Stock of Waste 13,04 13.06
13.04 13.06
Total 7,714.82 10,976,136
Hote ¥ Trade Recelvables {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Current Recelvables |
Trade receivables Unsecured Considered Good 3, 78526 G, 680 96
Trade receivabies Unsecured - Doubtful Debts 515.16 515.16
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts -414.57 -414.57
Total 3,BB5.85 &, 781.55
Hote B Cash and cash equivalents {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.031.2024
. Balances with banks 353.74 104,99
b, Cash on hamd L Y
Total 355.91 107.74
Hote @ Other Bank balances {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2024
a. Others Bank Balances
Uneclairmed Dividend Account 2067 11.18
b. Others
Margin Maney Deposits on LC 5.98 252.90
Total 26.65 324.08
Hote 10 Current Tax Assets (net) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
For Duties & Taxes 199.78 7968
Total 199.78 279.68
Hote 11 Other Current Assets {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2024
a. Export incentives Receivable 271 125.18
b. IGST Refund Receivable 178.16 154,81
¢. DEPE Receivable- Court Order 50,40 184.84
d. Duty Drawback Receivable - Court Order 7.9 71.91
e, REC Certificate Income Receivabie - 63.99
f. Interest Receivable 438,46 6.70
2. Input Credit G5T Receivable 2,602,590 2,631 .44
h. Insurance Claim Receivable 719 2719
i Advance for Material Purchase 865,78 1,539.18
j Advance for Expenses / Others 921,32 7&0.B8
k Prepaid Expenses 16,35 144,33
Total 5,437.48 5,910.57
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Mote 12 Share capital {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Authorised
3,10,00,000 Eguity Shares of Rs.10 each 3,100.00 1,100.00
10,00,000 Preference shares of Rs, 100 each 1,000, 00 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up sharecapital
#,56,37,825 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 1,563.78 2,563.78
(Previous year 2,56,37,825 eguity share of Rs. 10 each)
ADD:
17,400 Ffarfeited equity shares 112 1.12 |
|
Total 2,564,990 2,564.90 |
Mote 13 :Other Equity {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a. Securities Premium Reserves
Opening Balance 444 44 444 44
Add @ Addition / Deletion -
Closing Balance a4, 44 444 44
b, Other Reserves
Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 1.61 1.61
{#) Current Year Transfer -
(-} Written Back in Current Year = L
Closing Balance 1.61 1.61
General Reserve
Opening Balance 1,549.28 1,549.28
(=) Current Year Transfer =
{-} Written Back in Current Year {Capital Redemption} -
(-} Written Back in Current Year {Share Buy Back Exp) i
Clasing Balance 1.549.28 1,549.28 |
c. Surplus
Opening balance -1,821.82 -457.67
{+1 Comprehensive Income For the current year -3,125.39 -2.364.15
-} Fair Yaluation of Recevables
Closing Balance <5,947.21 -2, 821.82
Total -3,931.88 -B26.49 |
Mote 14 : Financial Liabilities {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03,2024
Secured
{a) Term loans
Indian Rupee Loan
from banks (Secured) 14,078.11 2,599,590
from others 592.56 401.44
(b} Long Term maturities of finance lease obligations 14,89 12.52
from Others - Vehicle Hire Purchase 25].29 225.00
c) Long term - Unsecured Loan 162.95 150.00
d) Intercorporate deposit 55%.25 -
e) Others - NBFC 2,100.00
f) Long-term - Trade Payable
ol 1775905 | 3,388.86
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Security Clause
Bank Borrowlngs of Term Loans

Term Loans from Indian Bank (1B are secured by first pari passu charge on {a) all immovabla properties situated in (1) 162.1897 acres ofand
at jadayampalayam, Alangombu and Karamadal Villages in Mettupalayam Taluk, Coimbatore District, Peelamedu land, Coimbatore Tamil
Madu and (5} 2155.62 54 metres of land at Amdha Village, Dharampur Taluk, Valsad Distnct, Gujarat through equitable mortgage created
with Indian Bank and (b} all plant and machinenes including machineries and other movable fixed assets (excluding vehicles charged to
financiérs, Mumbal Propery snd Bangalors Propery) acquired for the New Capex Plan through Deed of Hypothecation and  second pan
passy charge on current assels of the Company

It has been proposad in the restructunng sanotion fo create subsarvient charge on tha Tata Capital and ICICH Property as disbursement
cond|tion

Indian Bank iz holding the anginal tite daads on ils own bahalf and on behall of other Banks. Term Loans afe alss quarantead by Shii KG
Baalaknshnan, Executive Chairmanand Shri. B Snramulu, Manadgng Directos.

Term Loan Cutstanding |Pravious [Repaymani Commancament |Last Rate of [Pravious Rate
Bank Yaar guarterly |from Imstalmeant |Interest |of interest
Rs.in  lakhs

Indian Bank TL -Vl 134,06 181.04 16 31,03.2026 31.12.2029 | 9.08% 2.60%
indizn Bank TL Y11 a0.62 101.74 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 5.05% 9,60%
indian Bank Comp. Loan E45.00 T97.32 16 31,03, 2026 IAZZ2029 B.05% 10.10%
Indian Bank GECL o7294) 112019 16 31,03, 2026 31.12.2029 | 0.05% 8.30%
Union Bank of India GEGL 13417 265,43 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 8.00% T.60%
State Bank of India GECL 16645 197.23 16 31.03.2026 IMM22029 | 8.50% 1.95%
South Indian Bank GECL 139.60 151.43 16 31.03 2026 1122029 | '9.20% 9.20%
Indian Bank GECL-2.0 aoB44| 105943 16 31.03.2026 IMAZ2029 [ 9.05% 8.30%
Unien Bank of India GECL-2.0 171.89 243.00 16 31.03.2026 31122028 | 9.00% T.85%
State Bank of India GECL-2.0 16817 135.Eﬁ 16 31.03. 2026 I A22028 | 9.50% 7.85%
South Indian Bank GECL-2.0 135494 137, 16 31.03.2026 322028 0 9.25% 9.25%
Indian Bank WCTL 4397.00 0.0 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | 9.05%

Unign Bank of India WCTL 107419 0. 16 31,03, 2026 31.12.2029 | 9.00%

State Bank of India WICTL 1147.00 0. 16 31.03.2026 31122029 | D.50%

Bank of Maharashira WCTL Bi4.0B 0.0 16 31.03. 2026 I A22028 | 9.00%

Indian Bank FITL-| 1165.34 0.0 16 31.03.2026 31422029 | B.05%

Unien Bank of India FITL- 1683.12 0.0 16 31.03. 2026 22029 | "DO0%

State Bank of India FITL- 21618 0.0 16 31.03.2026 M A22029 | B.50%

Bank of Maharashtra FITL-| 101.23 0. 16 31.03.2026 31922029 | B.O00%

Period & Repayment

Daar to Door tenor of 20 guarerly installments with morstonum of 4 quarters and principle repayable in 16 equal quartely installments
commencing from quarer ending March 2028 and ending on December 2029, Intarest 1o be serviced as and when debilad post
moratorilm period.

The Company has availed a Tarm Laan fram ICIC] Bank Ltd and Tata Capital Financial Services Lid, ICIC Bank Lid s having an exclusive
charge on the Bangaiona office property, and Tala Capital Financial Services Lid is having an exclusive charge on 2425 acras of land
situated al iadayampalayam.

Term Loan OutstandingPrevious [Repayment| Commencement|Last Rate of [Frevious Rate

Bank ____|Year months:  |from Instalment |Interest|of interest
Rs.in |lakhs

SIS Bank L1 48.00( 11308 120 |05.05.2017 05.05.2027 | BE0% B.80%

Tata-Capital Fimancial Seeaces Lid 33313 38080 B4 15102012 15082026 | 11.00% 11.00%

Tata Capital Financial Senvces Lid-2 0 21843 264.00f 48 01,09, 2024 09.01.2027 | 19.00% 11.00%

Samunatti - WCTL 46875 000 bi i 31.03.2026 31.12:2029 | 16.00%

Samunatti- FITL- 55.55( n.0o 16 31.03. 2026 31.12.2029 | 16.00%

Subsidiary Term Loan
The Subsidiery Company Trigger Apparels Limited availed & Term Loan from Indian Overseas Bank is having exclusive charge on the
Mumbai Office Propery
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Mote 15 @ Lease Liabllities {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03,2015 31.03.2024
Lease Liability - .68
| Total | = | 9.68
Mote 16 : Other Financial Liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{a) Others - Security Deposit i 321.14 31068
Total 321.14 310.68
Haote 17 : Long Term Provisions (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03,2024
{a) Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (unfunded) 282.26 H11.65
Total 281.26 611.65
Hote 18: Government Grants {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Government Grants - 130,87
- 130.87
Hote 19: Short Term Borrowings {Rs. In Lakhs)
| Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Secured
{a) Loans repayable on demand
‘Working Capital Loan from Banks (Secured) b 400, 14 13,925.65
Waorking Capital Loan from other than Banks {Secured) 384 41 deld B
Unsecured
‘Working Capital Loan from other than Banks {Unsecured) - 1,499, 04
{b) Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
Current Maturities of Long-term Debit - Secured - 2,515.06
Current maturities of financial institutions 1.08 A4, %4
There are no case of defoult in repayment of toan and nterest as on
date of balance sheet.
S Total 6,78563|  18,429.53
Socurity Clause -

Working Capital facilibes from Indtan Bank Consarlem (Indian Bank, Stele Bank of India, Bank of Maharashira and Union Banhk of India are sscared by a first pan
paseyd change on the-whole of tha current assets through Desd of Hypothecationand sscond  pan passw charge on (a) all the immovable properbee situated in
10218597 acres ol land al Jadayampalayam, Alangomobu_and Karamada: Village in Motlupalayam Taluk, Coimbaiore Destriel, Peelamedu. Colmbatore, Ta
Madu and {8) 2155 62 sq. meters of land at Amdha Vilsge, Dharampur Taluk, Valssd Diatrict, Gu|arst through equitable morigage created with Indian. Bank and
(b all plant and machineries (excluding vohicles charged to financiers. Bangatare property) throwgh Deed of Hypothecation. The enlire working capila facilibes
arealso guarantsed By Shri Kz Basaknshnan, Execut|ve Chairman and Shrl B Sreamulu, Managing Demeclor

Subsidiary Secured Loan:

‘Working Capital Loan from Indian Dverseas Bank s secumed by am esclusie first l:hargE‘a oy the fxed and current assets besides corporate guarantes by Holding
Campany vizK G DenimLimiled. The loan sre algo personally guaranieed by Shri K G Baatskrishnan, Direclor

Hote 21 :Lease Liability {Rs, In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Lease Liability - 0.43
Total - B 0.43
Note 22: Trade Payables {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Trade Payables
For Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 928.53 Q09,50
For Other Dues 8,133.68 14,002, 34
Total 9,062.21 14,911.84
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{a) MSME Interest Payable 315.68 B9, 37
1 Total 315.68 B%.32
Hote 23; Other Current Liabllitles (R, In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
l{a} Customer Credit Balarce 290,29 194,82
(b} Dutics and Taxes 146,37 103,48
() Creditors for Capital goods 51.16 49.57
() Unpaid Dividend Accrued 20.67 3108
| Total £08.49 579.035
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Hote 24: Short Term Provisions (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{a) Provision far employee benefits
Gratuity (unfunded) 3.0 67.81
Total 31.10 &7.81
Mote 25: Government Grants (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Government Grants 130,87 170,63
130.87 170.63
Hote 16: Revenue from operations iRs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Sale of products 6,167.82 |  24,726.37
Sale of services - Job work 145,86 505,90
Other operating revenues | Waste Catton/Yarn / Accessories saleg 35,18 T
Export Incentives 97.93 444 08
Total 6,546.79 26,446,41
Mote 27: Other income {Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest Income 418,24 108,00
Other Income - Creditors no longer payvable 150.00 -
Apportioned Income from Govt, Grant 170.63 170,63
Dividend Income 07 0,058
Lease Rent Recelipt Lal 210
Miscellansous Income 5.53 15.81
Insurance Claim Recetved .1 2892
Profit/Loss an sale of Fixed Assets 20,52 3.03
Exchange Difference Gain 14.90 -
Total 785.42 328.54
Hote 28: Cost of materfals consumed (A=, I Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 |
Opening Stock 1,185.74 1.421.55
Purchases 1,037.58 12,562.41
sub-total 1,233.34 13,983,956
Less ; Closing stock 1,118.99 1,195.76
Raw materials consumed 1,114,35 1Z,788.20
Hote 29 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade {Rs. In Lakhs)y
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 |
Garments purchase 947.05 287.89
Fabric Purchase 6,26 -
Total 951.31 1B7.B9 |
Note 30: Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress and Stack-in-Trade iRs. In Lakhsh
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Opening Stock : |
Work-in-process 2,7.03 1,384.54
Finished Goods 6,074.72 6,204.78
B,091.75 7,589.32 |
Closing Stock :
Work-in-process 513.37 2,017.03
Finished Goods 4,869,443 6,075.34
5,38%. 80 B.09L.37
Total 2,708.95 -503.05 |
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Hote 31: Other Manufacturing Expenses

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(a) Power & Fuel 1,356.97 5.106.33
(b Consumptions of Stores & Spare Parts 24530 85.23
() Processing Charges 188.24 567.94
(d} Repairs & Maintenance
For Plant & Machinery 52.17 11720
For Bulldings 14.04 1497
For Others | 39.68 137.45
Total | 1,896,432 6,859,.14
Mote 3F : Employee Benefits Expense {Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{a) Salanes and Wages 207742 4,045.09
(b} Salaries - Managing Directors / Whole Time Directors - 156,00
(2} Contributions te Provident fund and ather funds 105.74 215.52
(d) Gratuity as per actuarial valuations 88.43 115.47
(e} Staff welfare expenses 61.53 18%.11
Total 2,313.12 4,721.19
Note 33 : Finance costs _{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Interest expense 2,939 48 2,338.32
ther borrowing casts 71.98 218.52
Apphcable net gan/loss on Toreign currency transaciions, transiation 7.30 0.98
and import reinstatement
Total 3,014,768 1.557 .82
Mote 34 : Other expenses {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars | 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Rent 57.54 114,22
Insurance 239.13 /1.7
Rates and taxes, excluding, taxes on income, ¥6.53 56.32
Payments to the auditor as
a. as skatutory auditor 7.10 6.90
b. for other services 0,50 0.24
Legal, Professional & Cansultancy Charges B4.66 118.54
Printing and Stationery 5.45 20.92
Postage, Telegrams and Telephones 26.51 115.82
Traveling Expenses and Maintenance of Vehicles 203.43 474,49
Director Sitting Fees 1.35 5.60
Software Maintenance Expenses B.13 773
Commission on Sales 21315 2B1.67
Discount on Sales 21.0% 114,67
Selling Expenses 3914 421.59
Fraight Outwards 107.42 248.76
Prayer Hall Repairs and maintenance . 6.90
Sundry Balance / Bad debts written off 0.03 9.92
Miscellaneous expenses, 18.95 111.74
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets . 14.15
Loss on sale of DEPE Licenses | 14.38 4.27
Total | 1,134.65 2,425.64
NOTE 35 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS - DEPE RECEIPTS (R, In Lakhs}
Particulars | 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
DEPE Receipts | - 184 84
Duty Draw Back Receipts . 1M
Extraordinary Items - Excise Duty Refund | 2,039.72 R
| 2,039,72 256.75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
Mote :- 35: STATEMENT OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

35.1. Principles of Consolidation:

Subsidiaries are all entitizs over which the group has cantrol. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, orhas
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct
the relevant activitles of the entity. Subsidianes are fully consoclidated from the date on which control is transfemed to the group.
They are deconsaolidated from the date thal control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used o account for business combinations by the group. The group comblnes the
financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income
and expenses. Inter company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transaclions between group companies are
gliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
assel. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary lo ensure consistency with the policies
adopled by the group.

MNon-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolldated statement of profit
and loss, consolidated statementof changesin equity and balance sheetrespectively.

The subsidiary companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are

Mame of the Compa Country of Incorporation Proportion of voting power as on
pany o i 31.03.2025

Trigger Apparels Limited India T5%

KG Denim (USA) Inc. Delaware USA 100%

36.2 Other Material Accounting policies:
{a) Basis of preparation

(I} Compliance with Ind AS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(herelinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Acl') read with of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. The financial
statements of the Group have been consolidated using uniform  accounting policles.

{ii} Historical cost conventions
The financial statements have been prepared on g historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value in terms of Ind AS.

(i) Going Concern
The accounts are prepared on the basis of going concern concept

{iv} Currenl non-currenl classification
All assets and lizbilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycle and
other critena set out in the Schedule ||l to the Act.

(v} Presentation and Functional Currency
The Consolidated financial statements and Moles are presented in the Company's functional and presentation curmency,
Indian rupee (Rs.), rounded off to the nearest rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated.
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Use of estimates and judgments

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Group and
are bazed on historical experence and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of fulure events) that the
Group believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences belween actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the resulls are known/materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred afier that date
but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group has applied for the one-time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. April
1, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS. Hence regarded thereafter-as historical cost. Freehold land is carried at cost. All
other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly altributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are iIncluded in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that fulure economic benefils associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the tem can be measured
rediably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate assel |s derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Deprecialion methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment and other fixed assets is provided on a Siraight-Line Method, over the estimated
useful lives of asssls.

The Group depreciates its property, plant and eguipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule || to the Act,
and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule |l to the Act, except for power plant
machinery which based on an independent technical evaluation, life has bean estimated as 20 years, which s different from that
prescribed in Schedule || to the Act

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for various assets class are as follows

Assel Class Useful Life
Factory Bullding 30 years
MNon- Factary Building 60 years
Plant and Machinery 15 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Oiffice Equipment 5 years
Wehicles 8 years
Power Plant 20 years
Computers 3 years

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparng proceeds with camying amount. These are included in the
Statementof Profitand Loss.

Capital Work-in-Progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended use at the balance
sheet date. Depreciation is nol recorded on capital work-in-progress untll construction and installation are complete and the
asselisready forits intended use

Intangible Assets

Intangible assels are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amorisation/ depletion and
impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing the
asset to its working  condition for the Intended use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are recognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.
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Cost of items of intangible assels not ready for intended use as on the balance sheet date are disclosed as intangible assets
under development.

Amaortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewead atthe end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted
forona prospective basis.

Intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value in-use)} is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does nol generale cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit
(CGEU) towhich the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an assel {or CGU) Is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
assel (or CGU) s reduced toits recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is recognised in the statement of profitand loss.

BGains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assel are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Mon-Current Assets held for Sale

Mon-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than continuing use and a sale is considerad  highly probable. They are measured at the lower of thelr carrying amount
and fair value less costto sell,

Men-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assels classified as
held for sale are presented separately from the other assets inthe balance sheet.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of presentation In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and bank,
current account balances:

Inventories

Inventories of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores and spares, Finished Goods and  Stock-in-irade are staled 'al cost or
net realisahle value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprises all cost of purchasze, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories o their present location and condition. Cost formula used are "Weighted Average cost, average cost
or "Specific Identification’, as applicable. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsclete items, wherever
NECEssary.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of tax expenses,
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
aperating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Lease

As alessee: The Group lease assels primarily consist of office premises which are of short. term lease with the lerm of twelve
months or less and low value leases. For these short term and  low value leases, the Company has recognized the lease
payments as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a stralght-line basis over the term of lease. Al the date of
commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) assetand a comresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements in which it Is a lessee, exceptfor leases with a term of 12 months or less {shorl-term leases) and low value
leases. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The
ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the Initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made al or prior fo the commencemeant date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and iImpairment losses.
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ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis overthe shorter of the lease term and useful
life of the underiying asset. ROU assels are evaluated for recoverabllity whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an  individual asset basis unless the asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease liability is initially measured st
amaortized cosl at the present value of the future lease payments, The lease payments are. discounted using the interes! rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with & corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset If the Company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU assels have
been separately presented n the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows,

As a lessor: Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expecled general inflation to compensate for the
lessor's expected inflatiohary cost increases. Initlal direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added o the camying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basls as rental Income,
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to
the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as recelvables at the Company's netinvestmentin the
leases. Finance lease Income is allocated to accounting periods so as (o reflect a constant penodic rale of retum on the nel
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

1. h} Financial Instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of he instrument. All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assels recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in
the transaction value of the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial asse!s that reguire delivery of assels within a time
frame eslablished by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are recognised on trade date. While,
financial llabilities like loans and borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(&) Non-derivative Financial Assets
{l) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(a) those to be measured subseguently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the
Statement of Profit and Loss), and

(b) those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financia assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows,

2. Measurement

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

All equity instruments except Investments in subsidiaries are measured at fair value. Equily instruments held for trading Is
classified as FVTPL. For all other equity Instruments. the Group may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value in OCL. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. |f the Group decides to
classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair valus changes on the Instrument, excluding dividend are recognisedin
OCI whichis not subsequently reclassified to statementof profitand loss.

At imitial recognition, the Group measures a financial asze! at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial assets camied at
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fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assel which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amartised cost or as FVTOC!, is classified as FVTPL In additlon, the Group may elect to delgnate the financial asset, which
otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOC! enteria, as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recagnition inconsistency. Financial aszets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arsing on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss  recognised in profit or loss
incorparates any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on
financial assets al FVTPL s recognised when the Group's right to receive the dividends is eslablished, itis probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow o the entity, the dividend does notrepresent a recovery of part of costof
the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights lo the cash flows from the financial assel expire, or il
transfers the rights o receive the contraclual cash flows in a transaction In which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group  neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial assel. If the Group enters into  transactions whereby it
transfers assels recognised on its balance sheel, bul retains  either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assels, the transferred assetls are nol derecognised. On derecognition ef a financial asset, the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset (or the camying amount llocated to the portion of the asset derecognised ) and the sum of (i}
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and {il) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in OCI s recognised in Statementof Profitand Loss.

3. Impairment of financial assets

The Group measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on  histoncal trend, industry practices and the
business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The Impairment methodolegy applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

4. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment of non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amorisalion and are tested annuslly for
impairment. or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impalrment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate thal the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which  the asset's carrying amounl exceeds ils recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higherofan asset's fairvalue less costs of dispozal and valus in use. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowsst levels for which there are  separalely identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non- financial assets
that suffered an impairmantare reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment al the end of each reporting period.

5. (b) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses dernvative linancial instruments, e.g. foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Derivative financial instruments are initlally recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subseguently remeasured at their falr value at the end of each period. Any gains or losses ansing from changesin
the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profitor loss.

Financial liabilities

All financial iabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.
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Amortised cosl 5 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is Included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The effective inleresl method is a method of calculating the amortised cosl of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rale that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter perod, to the net carmmying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial llabiliies  designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and nel gains and losses, including any inlereslt expense, are
recognised in profitor loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.
Segment Reporting:

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the intermal reporling provided to the chiefl operating decision
maker.

Borrowings

Borrowings -are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transactlon costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
overihe period of the borrowings using the effective interestmethod.

Borrowing costs

Interest and other borrowing costs altributable to qualifying assets are capitalised. Other Interest and borrowing costs are
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recegnised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a8 result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are notrecognised for future operating losses.

Provisicns are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end ofthe reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of ime s recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be
confirmed by the cccurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group
or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outfiow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the
obligation cannotbe made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts  disclosed as revenue are exclusive of
G5T and netof returns, trade allowances, rebates, discounts and value added taxes.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
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benefits will flow to the Group and specific ariteria have been met for each of the Group's activilles as described below
Sale of goods

The Group earns revenue primarily from sale of manufactured goods (fabric, home textiles and garments). It has applied the
principles laid down in Ind AS 115 and determined that there is no change reguire in the existing revenue recognition
methodology, In case of sale to domestic customers, sale is made on ex-factory basis and revenue is recognized when the
goods are dispatched from the factory gate. In case of export sales, revenue is recognized on shipment date, when
performance obligation is met.

Revenue from services

Revenue from services Is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
Export Incentive

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility
and when there |s no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Dividend and Interast Income

Dividend income from invesiments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive paymenl has been established
(provided that it Is probable that the economic benefitz will flow to the Group and the amount of Income can be measured
reliably).Interest income from a financial asset |s recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference lo the
principal outsianding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rale thal exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipls through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for to the extent the Group 15 reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.
Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Short term employee benefits (other than termination benefits ) which are payable within 12 months afterthe end of the penodin
which the employees render service are accounted on accrual basis. Group's contributions paid / payable during the year to
Provident Fund and ESIC are recognized in the statement of profit and loss account. All leave encashment dues for the year
are settled within the same year.

(1) Defined contribution plans

For cerlain group of employees, employee benefitin the form of Provident fund, Employees State Insurance Contribution and
Labour Welfare fund are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
respective  fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to these funds! schemes as an expense,
when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contnbution already paid, the defict payable to the scheme Is recognised as a liability after
deducting the contribution already pald. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
befare the balance sheet date, then excess |s recognisad as an asset o the extent that the pre-payment will isad Lo, for
example, a reduction in future paymentora cashrefund.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company provides for
gratuity, a defined benefit retirament plan ('the Gratuity Plan') covering eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump-sum payment to vesled employees al retirement, death, Incapacitation or termination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employes's salary and the tenure of employment with the Company,

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valustion, performed by an independent actuary, at each
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balance sheet date,

The Company recognises the net obligation of & defined benefit plan In its balance sheet as  an asset or liabllity,
Remeasurement, comprising of actuaral gains and losses, the effect of the assel celling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the nel defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the nel
defined benefit llability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheel with 8 corresponding debit or credit 1o retained
earnings through Other Comprehensive Income (OCH) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement is not reclassified to
profit or loss: In subsequent periods.

1. Foreign currency translation and translations

Transactions in foreign currency are translated Into the respective functional currencies using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setllement of such ransactions
and from the translation al the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and foss and reported within foreign
exchange gains/ (losses).

MNon-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost in foreign  currencies are not retranstated. Foreign
currency galns and losses are reported on a net basls.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credil for the period is the lax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributabls to temporary differences and
tounused tax losses.

Deferred income tax |3 provided in full, using the liability method on lemporary differences  arising between the lax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacled or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepled to apply when
the related deferred income lax asselsis realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only If, it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be avaitable 1o ulilise those temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabllities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same laxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where
the Group hasa legally enforceable right 1o offset and intends either to settle on a netbasis, or torealize the

asset and setlle the liability simultaneousty.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, exceptto the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equily. in this case. the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in egulty, respectively Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent
there is convineing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed al
each Balance Sheel date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the exlent there is no longer
convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

{1} the profit attributable lo owners of the Group

(it} by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share
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Diluted eamings per share ad|usts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take Inlo account:
-the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
recelved, and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Governiment grants refating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non=current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to Profit and Loss on a stralght - line  basls over the expected lives of related assets and
presented within other income.

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which by definition will seldom equal
the actual results.

Managemant also need to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and items which are
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally
assessed. Detailed information  about each of these estimates and judgrments is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving eritical estimates or judgment are:

Estimation of current tax expenses and Payable. Estimation of defined benefit obligation,

Note: 36; FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Financial Instrument by category and hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included atthe amount al which the Instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other thanin a forced or liguidation sale,

The faollowing methods and assumptions were used lo estimate the fair valuas:
= Fair value of cash and shori-term deposits, trade and other short-term receivables, trade payables. other current liabilities,

short term loans from banks and other financial institutions  approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term
maturities of these instruments

- Financial instruments with fixed and variable interesl rates are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as
interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty.

Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these recelvables. Accordingly, fair value of
such instruments is not materfally different from their carrying amounts.

The fair values for loans and security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate.
They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due lo the inclusion of unobservable Inputs including
counter party credit risk.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current  borrowing rate. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the used of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

Forfinancial assels and liabilities that are measured atfair value, the carrying amounts are equal lothe fair values.
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{Rs. In Lekhs)
Financial Assets and Liabllites as a1 3151 March Mon Current Total Level1 | Levelz Lavel 2 Total
curreni
Financial Asaols
linvestmanis
Enquily isinements 4371 3R 330 58 17T A7 71 330.88
(Other Assots
Trede Recelvables 3,585.85 3.8858.85 3,08585 3 68588
Cesh ard cash squivalens 5591 255 97 345,51 385,01
Oitrar Bank Balanoes .66 26 05 26 65 20.65
|Eut-‘n:-u! 4, 6841 4,788 41 - - 4,288 41 4. 268 41
otal 330.98 4,768.41 4,599.39 327 - 4,5%6.12 4,589.39
Financial Lisbilites
Bormowings 16,5157 A 7OEGY | P2 L13ED PDAfIEA | 2247288
Lease Liability . - = - H
Trade payables 2 052 2 206221 2.062.21 8,062,231
Otner Financial Lizbilities 321,44 32114 32114 144
Fﬂhl 15,936.51 15,8680.73 | 31.797.24 - - 31.797.24 | 3179724
[R=. In Lakhs)
Enln:lll Assets and Linbllities &= ol 315t March Nan Current Totml Level1 | Levelz Level 3 Total
2024 curreni
nancial Assets
IAvestments
mEl-l‘-l‘}' EEdrLETE e A0 86 islen i 46 azr.n 330.84
Othar Assets
Trade Recsivables 67B1.55 | G6.78155 6,7B1.55 6,781.55
Cahy nrd enisth orpuivisienis 107 74 10774 107 74 107.74
Ciiver Bank Balanoes A28 .08 32408 334 08 32408
Euh-ww T, 21337 7.213.37 . . 721347 7.293.37
otal A30,BE 7,213.57 7,544,231 315 . 754108 7,544.23
Financial Liabilities
Bormowinge 3,068, 56 1842850 | 2101839 21,8183 21,6818.39
Lease Lishility 8 o43| 101 10,11 1011
Trads payables 1487184 | 1400184 1401184 | 14.011.84
Ciher cuent labilities 310,66 3O.EE F10.ES 31068
Total 470022 | 3334180 | 37.061.02 - - 37.051.02 | 37.081.02

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial Instruments by valuation
cheque: Level 1; quoted (unadjusted ) prices in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities.

Level 2: other technigues for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly orindirectly.

Level 3: lechniques which use inputs that have significant effect on the recarded fair value that are nol based on observable
market data

Mote :- 37 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financia! instrument or custemer contract, leading to
a financial loss. The Group is exposed o credit risk from ils operation activiies (primarily trade recebvables) and from its
financing aclivities, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting  period. To assess whether there is & significant increase in
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credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date ofinibal recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-locking information such as:

1. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

2. Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

3. Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet
its obligations,

4. Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,

5. Financial assels are written off when there s no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor falling to
engage In a repayment plan with the Company.

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed subject o the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Trade recelvables are non-interest bearning and generally on 7 days to 180 days credit term. Credil
limits are established for all customers based on internal rating cnteria. Ouistanding customer receivables are regularfy
monitored. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically
and geographically

AS

AT 31 MAR 25 _ _ _ 1Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars =0 BM-1 Yirs 1-2%rs 2-3 ¥rs =3 yrs Total
moanths =

(1) Un Disputed Trade Receivable- Consdersd BE3. T4 AT3.45 THZ.38 | 70418 74752 3,471.28

Goods

{ll} Un Disputed Trade Recelvable- Consldersd - p 121.58] 14879 14410 41457

oubtful

(il Disputed Trade Recelvablas Consldarad Good - - - = - =

(v} Disputsd Irads Hecalvables Considered - - - - - -

| Dot

TOTAL BRa. T4 ATAAS DOE.08 | HB208 BO1.82 3,865 85 |
AS AT 31 MAR 24 {As. In Lakhs)
Particulars <8 BM-1Y¥rs | 1-2%rs | 23%rs >3 yrs Total
mamnths =

TlUn Disputed Trede Mecelvable- Consldered £ 198 18 802,12 E17.64 | 27420 B.7E3.12 |

Ledatalst:d

{1} Un Disputed Trede Recelvable- Considered o404 2674 52| 11687 144.10| 21457

Dbt

([INDisputed Trade Recelvables Conzidersd Good - - - E - -

(viDisputed Trade Receivables Considersd| . . - | - - |

Dresasbstiual = -

TOTAL 5.284 10 71686 B850 | 481.07 14410 7,187.68

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed creditfacilities lo meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses. Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability
under committed credit lines.. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liguidity position {comprising the
undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

(i} Financing arrangements

The Company had noun drawn borrowing facitities at the end of the reporting period;

122




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS K G DENIM LIMITED

(ii} Maturity patterns of borrowings

{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
0-1 years |1-5 years :';:’: Total | 0-1 years | 1-5years z‘:ﬂ‘:‘: Total
|Long term borrowings 13.07| 15615.37] 16.620.3¢] 2560.00] 3385.86 5,045, 86|
{Incleding current maturity of
lomg term debit)
Shor tarm borrowings 6754.55 6,784.55 15&59.53I 15,868.53
Total 6798.52] 15615.37 0] 22413.88] 18429.53| 3388.86] o 21818.39|
Maturity patterns of other Financial Liabilities
AS AT 31% March 2025 Rs. In lakhs
Trade payable <1Year | 1-2Yrs 2-3¥rs >3 Yrs Total
MSME 928.53| 928.53
Others 2,073.88| 4,720.20| 2,639.81 790,79| 10,233.68
Disputed MSME | -
Disputed Others | -
TOTAL 3,002.41] 472920 2,639.81 790.79| 11,162.21
AS AT 31 March 2024 Rs. In lakhs
Trade payable <1Year | 1-2¥rs 2-3¥rs >3 Yrs Total
MSME 909.50| 909.50}
Others 8,304.00] 4,53564| 1,161.95 0.75| 14,002.34
Disputed MSME 1 -
Disputed Others | -
TOTAL 9,213.50| 453564 1,161.95 0.75 14,911.84

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execule its business strategies. The Company's
financial isk management policy is set by the Managing Board

Market nsk is the nsk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a
financial instrument. The value of 2 financial statement may change as a result of changes in the Interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Marketrisk is
attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments Including investments and deposits. foreign currency
receivables, payables and loans and bormrowings.

The Group manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exerclses independent control over the
entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends nisk management objectives and policies,
which areapproved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this department include management
of cash resources, Implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures like foreign exchange forward contracts,
borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.
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MNote 38: GRATUITY

NOTE - 39 : RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER Ind AS 24

CGratuity is provided as per actuanal valuation of the holding company and its subsidianes.

{Rs, InLakhs)
2014-2025 2023-2024
K IFl:nlati i K Relatives of
Other Ralated 2 VEE B EEY] other Related e s o1 oy
Partlculars Barties Management | Management Parties Maenagement | Management
Personmel Personne Personnocd Personnel
Purchase of Goods
5 Kannaplran Milks Limited 416,325 4,594.00
Other releted party 0.59 1,897.96
Sale of Goods
S Karmagiran Mills Lireited 23,09} 1bb.1%
Dither redated puarly P |
Processing / other Charges Pald
5 Kannapiran Mills Limited 0.18] 9,03}
Other related parly
Processing J/ ather Charges
\Becehseg
Sri Kannapiran Mills Limited 15,72
Other related parly
Remunaration 19.32 24,00 20142 23.71
NOTE - 39.1 Balance Qutstanding 5
A (B nE
a5 on 105 a5 on .03 200
Dther Fietated ey Felatives of Hey Cther Related Py Felatives of Key
Patios
Particulars Pasty Maragenent anagemen Menagement Menagement
Pearsonrd Personrel Personns Personnel
TraE Fechtie a3 ) 3
Tk pevcbie ] TR
[Fremmrent= TR g
Loerm and Addvarces WL o :

Other Relslad Party

- Key Manageméenl Personnel

Sri Kannapiran Milis Limited

Sri Balamurugan Textile Processing Limited
Danalakshmi Paper Mills Privale Limited
Crocodile India Pyt Lid

Shii KG Baalakrshnan, Executive Chairman
Shri B Sriramulu. Managing Director
Shiri B Srihari, Direcior

5mi 5 Ramaprabha, Chief Fmancial Officer
Shri.M Balaji, Company Secretary

Relative of Key Managemenl Personnel

Shri Pranay Srirmaman (Son of Shri B Snramaulu)
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NOTE - 40: Title deeds of Properties
Titles deeds of all the immovable properties in the Financial Statements are held in the name of the group only,
NOTE - 41: Capital-work-in progress.

There is no Capital-work-in progress as on the date of balance sheel as at 31sl March 2025, There is no project which is
temporarily suspended.

NOTE - 42: Intangible Assets under development

There are no any intangible assets under development as on the date of balance sheel as at 31st March 2025,

MOTE - 43: Relationship with strike off companies.

Group does not have any transactions with the companies "Striken off” or in the process of strike off.

NOTE - 44: Scheme of arrangements
The group has not enfered into any "Scheme of Arrangements” during the year ended 31st Mar 2025,

NOTE - 45: Details of Benami Property Held

The group does not hold any benami property as defined under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and the rules made there under. Mo proceeding has been inltiated or pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition ) Act, 1988 {45 of 1888) and the rules made there under.

NOTE - 46: Compliance with number of layer of companies.
The group is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Companies Act read with
the Companies (Restriclion on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

MOTE -47: Thegroup hasnot traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency.

NOTE -48: Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies.
The group - does not have any charges or satisfaction, which Is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

NOTE -49: Thegroup has not done any revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment or Intangible assets.

NOTE - 50: The group was not declared as “willful defaulter” by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

Note 51 : The group has no such transactions which Is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1981 (Such as search or survey or any

other relevant provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961).

Mate - 52: The group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity (les). including forelgn
entities (Intermedianes) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:
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a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company ( UWtimate Beneficianes)or

b) Provide any guarantes, secunty or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimaie Beneficiaries.

Mote - 53: The group has notreceived any fund from any person(s) or entity (les). including foreign entities (Funding party ) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:

1. Directly or indirectly lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behall
of the funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

2. Provide any guaraniee, security or the |ike lo or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

MNote - 54: Restructuring of Debit

The operations of the holding Company came to halt since March 2024 due to TN Government Order putting a ban on drawal
of processing water from Bhavanl River, subsequently the holding Company has entered into a loan restructuring
arrangement with its consortium lenders under the Reserve Bank of India's framework for relief measures in areas affected by
natural calamities. While the resolution plan has been approved by the majonty of the consortium lenders, one bank holding
7% of the debi exposure has dissented from the plan, and one Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) with an oulstanding
loan of Rs. 625 lakh has not participated in the restructuring scheme. With respect to the dissenting lenders’ non-participation
in the restructuring scheme, the holding Company has filed & writ petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Madras and
oblained an injunction order, with the matter being sub-judice. Repayment under the restructured plan is scheduled to
commence from the quarter ending March 2026,

Note - 55: Approved Financial Statements:

The Board of Directors of the group has reviewed the realizable value of all the current assets and has confirmed that the value
of such assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value at which these are recognized in the financial
statements. In addition, the board has also confirmed the camrying value of the non-current assets in the financial statements,
The Board, duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statements in its meeting
held on 30th May 2025,

MNote - 50 : CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Managemeni

The group aim to manage Its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem and to optimise
returns to our shareholders. The capital structure of the group s based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance
of key elements in order to meel its strategic and day-lo-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and
manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders. return
capital lo shareholders or issue new shares. The group's policy is 1o maintain a slable and strong capital structure with a focus
on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its
business. The group will lake appropriale steps in arder to maintain, orif necessary, adjust, its capital structure.
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NOTE - 57 : EARNINGS PER SHARE

Rs.in Lakhs
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Eamings Per Share has been computed as under ;
Profit/ (Loss) for the year -3579.15 -2572.74
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 2,56,37.825 256,37 825
Eamings Per Share - Basic (Face Value of Rs.10 per share) -13.96 -10.03
Diluted eamning per share is same as basic eaming per share -13.96 -10.03

NOTE - 58 : EXPORT PROMOTION CAPITAL GOODS (EPCG)

Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme allows import of certain capital goods including spares at concessional
duty subject to an export obligation for the duty saved on capital goods imported under EPCG scheme. The duty saved on

capital goods imported under EPCG scheme being Government Grant, Is accounted as stated in the accounting policy on
Government Grant.

Mote - 59: DETAILS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENDITURE

The Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company during the Financial Year
2024-25

NOTE - 60: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)
|. Contingent Liabilities

a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as Debt;

(R=.n lakhs)
2024 -2025 2023 -2024
' Disputed Excise / Customs duties 335.35 33535
Legal Case - Claim of Securty Deposit 9.68 0.68

in respect of disputed excise ! custom dubkes and Income tax demands. the Group feeals that there will be no financial impact, based
on legal oplniens oblalned.

b) Guarantees

2024 - 2025 2023 -2024
Guarantees given to Bank for loan to subsidiary 500.00 500.00
c) Other Money for which the company is contingently liable
2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Bills discounted with banks 1456 68
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Il. Commitments

Thera is no contract remaining to be executed In Capital Account

Note - 61: SEGMENT REPORTING:
Operating Segments:

{n Taxtile (it} Power (i) Garment

ldentification of segments:

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its business segmenl separately for the purpose of
making decision about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit
orloss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements, Operating segments have been identified an
the basis of nature of products and other guanhitative critera specified inthe Ind AS 108

Segment revenue and results:

The expenses and income which are not directly attributable to any business segment are shown as unallocable expenditure
{netof allocable income ),

Segment assets and liabilities:

Segment assets include all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consist of property, plant and
equipment, trade receivables, inventories and other operating assets. Ssgment liabllities primarily include trade payable and
other liabilities. Comman assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to any of the business segment are shown as
unallocable assets liabilities

Inter segment transfer:
Inter segment revenue are recognized at sales price. The same is based on market price and business risks. Profit or loss on
inter segment transfer are

[Rs. In Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Consolidated
Audited Audited
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1 Segment Revenue (Mel Sales !/ Income from Operations)
[a} Textiles 5408 23122
(b} Power 428 AATE
(o) Garments 1708 1758
Total 7544 20356
Add: Other Unaliocable income
Less: Inter Segment Sales 212 2581
Met Sales | Income from operations T332 26TTS
2 Segment Results (Profit before Interest & Tax)
{al Textiies -BR5 -703
b Power -1068 -B7E8|
() Garments 124 106
Total 1799 -1275|
Leass:
* Interest & Finance Charges{Met) 2883 2558
= Other Unallecable expenditure(MNet of Unallocable Inoome)
Profit Before Extra Ordinary ltems & Tax -4682 -3833
3| Segment Assets
(a) Textiles 25619 30601
(b} Power A824 G506
e} Garmenis 3816 3303
Total Segment Assets 34059 A0459]
4| Segment Liakilities
(@) Textiles 12822 28771
(b} Powear 2802 3285
[e) Garments 1554 1083
Total Segment Liabilities 16878 34159
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NOTE -62 HOLDING AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY STOCK STATEMENT SUBMISSION WITH BANKS

The group has borrowed from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly retums or statements of current
assets filed by the group are nol in agreement with books of accounts. Summary of reconelliation and reasons for matenal

discrepancies asat 31" March 2025 1s given balow.

HOLDING COMPANY {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Inventories as per declaration with Bank 6,109.46 9,222.51
Trade Receivable as per declaration with Bank 6,297.91 9,547.10
TOTAL (A) 12,407.37 18,769.61
Inventaries as per Books 6,109.63 9,489.05
Trade Receivables as per Books 6,297.91 9,533.41
TOTAL (B) 12,407.54 19,022.46
Difference in Inventories -0.17 -266.54
Difference in Receivables - 13.69
TOTAL DIFFEREMCE (A)-(B) -0.17 -252.85

[he aforesaid difference, were due to the declaration made to the bank before financial reporting closure process. The
predominant reason for irade recefvables being lower in financial statement are the difference s due to the credit notes,
discount and other year end provisions in financial statement. Similarly with respect (o inventory being higher in financial

statement is because of stock valuation as part of year end cut-off procedures

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY - TRIGGER APPAREL LIMITED STOCK STATEMENT SUBMISSION WITH BANKS

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Inventories as per declaration with Bank 1,499 .80 1,380.62
Trade receivables as per declaration with Bank 1,003.65 666.53
Total (A) 2,503.45 2,047.15
Inventories{Finished) as per Books 1,501.65 1,377.29
Trade receivables as per Books 1,047.41 717.34
Total (B) 2,549.06 2,094.63
Difference in inventories 1.85 -3.33
Difference in receivables 4376 50.81
Total Difference (A)-(B) 45.61 47.48

The aforesaid difference. were due to the declaration made to the bank before financial reporting closure process. The
predominant reasom for trade receivables being higher in financial statement are the difference is doe to the credit notes

discount and other year end provislons in Anancial statement

Mote - 63: There are certain amounts remaining overdue 1o the trade credilors. Some of the trade creditors have issued legal
notices demanding their dues thereby indicating liquidity stress. Subsequently, trade creditors for aggregate value of Rs 2252
Lakh have filed liguidation petitions before the NCLT.
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For disclosures mandated by Schedule lll of the Companies Act, 2013 by way of additional information

{Amount Rs.in Lakhs} 2024-25
Met Assets i.e., total
Name of the entity in the assets minus total Share in other Share in total
Group liabilities Share in profit or loss Comprehensive Income comprehensive income
As % of
As Hoof As % of Cansolidated A5 %% of total
Consolldated | Amount |Consolidated | Amount other Amount  |comprehensi Amaount
net assets profit or lass Comprehensive wE Incaonse
income
Parent
¥ G Denim Limited -29.96 AD0.75 100.25 -3587.97 9957 451.81 100.34 -3136.16
Subsidary- Indian
g ALt 118,52 158535 0,30 10.63 043 1.35 0.0 12.58
Sulsidary - Forelgn 11.44 -153.06 0.05 181 ¢ - 0.06 -1.81
KiG Denim {USA] inc
Sub Total - 1337.57 - -3579.15 - 453.76 - -3125.39
Intercompany elimination
and consolidatad 0,53 500.06 B T ) - N )
adjustments
Mon controfling interest in
N 32.12 -396.32 = 1063 ‘ 0.49 ” 3.15
Grand Total -1733.89 - -3568.52 = 454,25 - -3122.24
2023-24
Mame of the entity in the Met Assets i.e., total Share in other Share in total
Group assets minus total Share in profit or loss Comprehensive Income comprehensive income
As % of
As % ol As % of Consolidated As % of total
Consolidated | Amount | Consolideted Amount other Amount  |comprehens] Amaunt
net assets profit or loss Comprehensive we income
income
arent
G Denim Limited 197.83 31,536.90 58.19 -2,526.05 97.18 202.70 95.72 -2,313.35
ubsidary- Indian
rigger Apparels Ltd -B9.37 -1,597.84 181 -46.54 2.82 L.EB9 L&7 -40.65
bsidary - Foreign
G Denim (USA) Inc -B.46 -151.35 001 -0.15 161 -63.32
Sub Total = 1,787.81 - =-2,572.74 - 208.59 - -2,427.32
Intercompany elimination
and consolidated
adjustments 26.48 500.06
Mon controlling interest in
subsidaries -21.15 -3599 46 -11.64 147 40.15
Grand Total 1,888.41 -2, 58438 210.06 -2,427.47
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Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries /| associate companies / joint

ventures
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors
For GOPALAIYER AND SUBRAMANIAN  KG BAALAKRISHNAN B SRIRAMULU B SRIHARI
Chartared Accountants Executive Chairman Managing Director Direclor
D - G0002174 DM - 00002560 DM 00002556
. RMAHADEVAN M. BALAJI RAMAPRABHA .5
UDIN 25027497 BMNBALCT 4T Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Placs | Colmbatore Mambearship Mo 027457

Date : 30.05.2025
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CIN: L17118TZ1992PLC003798
Registered Office; Then Thirumalai, Colmbatore - 641302
E-mail: cekgdl@kgdenim.in
Website: www.kgdenim.com Phone: 04254-235240

Attendance Slip
33"“Annual General Meeting
DF 1D Folic No.
Client ID MNo.of Shares
Mame of Member
Name of Proxy

I hereby record my presence at the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Tuesday the 8th day of
September 2025 at 4.30 pm at Then Thirumalai, Coimbatore - 641 302

Members/ Proxy's Signature

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

K G DENIM LIMITED

CIN: L17115TZ1802PL CO03708
Registered Office; Then Thirumalal, Coimbatore - 641302
E-mail. cshgdl@kgdenim.in

Website, www kgdenim.com Phone: 04254-235240

33™ Annual General Meeting (9th September 2025)

Mame of the Membear (s) |

Registared address ;

Ermail 1D :

Folia No. / Chient 14 oP ID:

liWe, being the mamber (siof .....cocoooeieenn, shares of the above named Company, hereby appaint:

1. Name:

Address;

E-mail |D:

Signature: or failing him
2, Mame:

Address:

E-mail 10

Signature; ar failing him
3. Name:

Address:

E-mail 1D
Signalure:




as my { our proxy to attend and vole (on a poll § for me / us and on fmy [ odr behalf at the 33rd Annual General Mealing of tha Company
to be held on Tuesday the Sth day of Septembar 2025 at 430 pm at Then Thirumalal, Coimbatore - 641 362 and at any adjournment thare
ol In respect of such resolulions as are indicated balow.

Rasoluthons

8. No.
o
E
E
!

Ordinary Business

To recetve, consder and sdopt the Stendaions and Consoidabsd Audited Fimnoal Stalsmenis ncluding Balanme Sheet s on 373t Manch, 2025 the Stalement

+§ uf Profit and Loss (including Oiher Campretenaive Income}, The Stalemant of Chaonges in Equiy and bie Stalement af Cash Flow for the year ended am {hal D E]
dalir logather with 1he Ropord of Boerd of Directors ond the Audion” themon.

fu

Toappoind & Directar m place of Shri Balnkrshnan Snrmenlu (MK BO002680), wio relines by molation and baing elipbls. offers himaell for re-appointment.

3.| Ta appomd & Directar in place of Shin Ramaswamy Selvaaumar (Dik 00051808}, wio relfes by rolation and baing efiphbie, affers. himae# lor re-appaintment
Special Busimess

1| [
=
4 & Ta appmve ihe sppontment of MOS & Associates LLP. Company Secretares s Seoretorinl Auditors of e Comoomy for the first teem ol five (55 D |:|
my .
mjj=

consecutive financial years

.| To apprave the offer; issus and stalmen of warrants fully comerdibles intg squity shanes o ihe Promaler ol the Campany an peferental b

.} Ta appmave lhe ofier, ssue and alol 6% Norecanversiile Cumudallye Redesmabis Pralerence Shares hmough preate placeman

Al 1
Signad this ., ... soday ol By 025 Fir
Sinnalirs & Sharehokiar ... Lol vy
Stamp
Signatare of Proxy holder(s] ... o e
Motes -

1. This form af prady in deder 16 be effechve shoull be duly compleled onif deposted ol lhe Registered CHice of the Company. not less Sian 48 hours belore the
commsnssment af e Meetig

2. For e resoluSons. papfanalory stalements and Motes pleaas rater iooibs Notice of the 13nd Anmml General Mealing

B s oplicoal b pait W I M appropriate collimn agalins the Resolubons indicabed m o Box, § you leendo the For of “Agalest cobumn biank agamstany or all
nasslution, wo praay will be mtitled to walo in tho manoe @ be /b thinks approprao

4 Plrase complpie afl detaile moluding detalis of membsoris ] in the above box before submisson




